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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a provider of outsourced servicesmall and mid-sized public agencies in Califorania other western states. Outsourcing
enables these agencies to provide a wide rangeecfaized services, without having to incur andntzn the overhead necessary to develop
staffing in-house. We provide a broad range ofisessto public agencies and to a lesser extenafgrindustry, including:

. Civil Engineering;
. Building and Safety Services;
. Geotechnical Engineering;

. Energy Efficiency Consulting;
. Financial and Economic Consulting; and

. Disaster Preparedness and Homeland Security.

We operate our business through a netwbdifices located throughout California and otherstern states and had a staff of 550 as of
January 2, 2009 that includes licensed engineerotrer professionals. We ranked 154 out of 50Qi&gign firms in Engineering News-
Record's 2008 Design Survey. Our core clients abfipagencies in communities with populations iaggrom 10,000 to 300,000 people.
We believe communities of this size are undersebyeldrge outsourcing companies that tend to facusecuring large federal and state
projects, as well as projects for the private sedtte seek to establish close working relationshijib our public agency clients and, over
time, to expand the breadth and depth of the sesvie provide to them.

While we currently serve communities thrieogt the country, our business is concentratediifd@nia and neighboring states. We
provide services to approximately 60% of the 49@siand over 60% of the 58 counties in Califoriiee also serve special districts, school
districts, a range of public agencies, and to selesxtent, private industry.

General economic conditions have recergllided due to a number of factors including sloaesnomic activity, a lack of available
credit, decreased consumer confidence and reduepdrate profits and capital spending. These camdithave led to a slowdown in
construction, particularly residential housing domstion, in the western United States. As a resfuthis slowdown, our engineering services
segment has suffered declines in revenue and werhade several reductions in workforce and fadiéigses in order to align resources to
workload and reduce costs. We believe that theatezhs achieved through January 2, 2009 will béiceht to align resources with expected
future demand for our services. However, shouldettenomic slowdown continue for longer than expgcteworsen, we will need to
evaluate further reductions in headcount and faslin geographic areas that are underperforngeg."Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cgiem."

We were founded over 40 years ago and Wfill@droup, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was forinezD06 to serve as our holding
company. Today, we consist of a family of whollysmd companies that operate within the followingnsents for financial reporting
purposes:

Engineering Services. Our Engineering Services segment includes pieeations of our subsidiaries, Willdan EngineerMdlldan
Geotechnical, Willdan Energy Solutions, Willdan Bese Solutions, and Public Agency Resources (PAR®se businesses collectively
provide engineering-related services, geotechmiggineering services, environmental engineeringeamvitonmental related services and
energy efficiency, water conservation, sustaingbilnd renewable energy services.
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Additionally, PARs primarily provides staffing to Wdan Engineering. For fiscal years 2008 and 2@@Venue for the Engineering Services
segment represented 78.3% and 81.7% respectifedyr @verall contract revenue.

Public Finance Services. Our Public Finance Services segment consistiseobperations of our subsidiary, Willdan Finah&arvices
(WFS), which offers financial and economic consigjtservices to public agencies. For fiscal yeaf82ihd 2007, contract revenue for the
Public Finance Services segment represented 1&1d%&1%, respectively, of our overall contracterave.

Homeland Security ServicesOur Homeland Security Services segment consfdtse operations of our subsidiary, Willdan Hoarel
Solutions, which offers homeland security, pubéfesy consulting and management consulting servitsformed this subsidiary in fiscal
year 2004 and began operations in the second hfidical year 2005. For fiscal years 2008 and 2@@ntract revenue for our Homela
Security Services segment represented 3.0% and r2@déctively, of our overall contract revenue.

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2@B8re were changes to our senior management arioaud of Directors. On April 20, 2008,
Ms. Chell Smith, resigned from her positions aseaniner of our Board of Directors, Audit, Compengatod Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committees, and as chairperson of @@stment, Finance and Strategy Committee. On 2@riR008, our Board of Directors
announced the appointment of Mr. Wayne Sheltohed®oard. Mr. Shelton currently serves as the pbason of our Compensation
Committee and as a member of our Audit and Investnfénance and Strategy Committees. Mr. Tracy kkaofilled the vacancy left by
Ms. Smith on the Nominating and Corporate Goverademmittee and currently serves as chairperstéimbttommittee. Additionally,
Ms. Mallory McCamant, our Chief Operating Offic&enior Vice President and Assistant Secretarygmesi effective May 10, 2008.

Our Markets

We provide engineering, public finance &ndeland security services primarily to governnaggencies. We believe the market for tt
privatized governmental services is, and will béyeh by a number of factors, including:

. Population growth, which leads to a need for inseglbcapacity in government services and infrasiract

. Demand by constituents for a wider variety of segsi

. Increased demand for services and solutions tloaige energy efficiency, sustainability, water cemvgtion and renewable
energy;

. The creation of new municipalities and the growitisroaller communities, which creates the need tainthighly specialized

services without incurring the costs of hiring parrant staffing and the associated support structure
. The deterioration of local infrastructures, esplcia aging areas; and

. Government funding programs, such as federal hardedacurity grants and various state legislatioat provide funds for
local communities to provide services to their ¢ibnents.

Engineering Services

Engineering services encompass a varietifsaiplines associated with the design and coastmu of public infrastructure
improvements. We expect continued population grawiBalifornia and other western states to plasgaificant strain on the infrastructure
in those areas, driving the need for both new stftecture and the rehabilitation of aging strucsufeederal, state and local governments have
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responded to this need by proposing an increageinfunding of infrastructure related activitiegd voters in California and Arizona have
recently passed sales tax increases to fund tralasipo improvements.

Private industry and public agencies, sponse to an increased awareness of global wamamidglimate change issues among their
constituents, are increasingly seeking out costetiffe solutions, turn-key solutions that providedvative resource management, energy
efficiency, resource conservation and sustaingtsktrvices. State and local governments are freltyuemning to specialized resource
conservation firms to strike the balance betweesrenmental responsibility and economic competitiges. Consultants have the expertise to
develop efficient and cost effective solutions. Tise of energy efficiency services, including asiditogram design, benchmark analysis,
metering and partnerships with local governmentsuditities, provides city, local and state goveemts with the ability to realize long-term
savings.

Public Finance Services

Public agencies face an increasing burdeaise the necessary funding to build, improve mag¢htain infrastructure and to provide
services to their local communities. While tax mewes are a primary source of funding, in Califothiere are property tax and spending lii
that curtail the generation of these funds. Altéues include the issuance of tax-exempt securitfesformation of special financing districts
to assess property owners on a parcel basis f@sinficture and public improvements, such as assggglistricts and community facilities
districts (known as Mello-Roos districts in Califigx); the implementation of development impactgesgrams that require developers to bear
the cost of the impact of development on localasfructure; user fee programs that pass costs &dahg actual users of services;
optimization of utility rates; and special taxeseted by voters for specific purposes.

Public agencies frequently contract witlvate consultants to provide the advance studiesiage the processes and provide the
administration necessary to support these mett@aissultants have the expertise necessary to fograghcial financing districts and produce
an impact fee study used to develop a schedulewaldper fees. Privatized services are also utiltepémplement the programs or revised
schedules, and in the case of special financingais administer the districts through the lifettee bonds. Consultants also frequently
provide the services necessary to comply with f@dequirements for tax-exempt debt, such as adgtrebate calculations and continuing
disclosure reports. Use of such services allowsipabencies to capitalize on innovative publiafige techniques without incurring the cost
of developing in-house expertise.

Homeland Security Services

After September 11, 2001, the need to ptateil infrastructure and implement additionatsgty measures became a priority at all
levels of government. In addition to the threatesforism, Hurricanes Katrina and Rita highlighted vulnerability of our country's
infrastructure to natural disasters. These evdated an increased burden on local and regiondigapencies to be prepared to respond. In
addition to fire and safety personnel, agenciegaesible for the physical safety of infrastructetements, such as water and wastewater
systems, ports and airports, roads and highwaidgés and dams, are under increased pressureparpridr natural and man-made disasters.
Accordingly, the federal government now considerlic works staff members to be "first respondéessuch incidents and we believe that
agencies are allocating resources accordingly.

For fiscal year 2009, under the Departnoétiomeland Security Grant Program, (HSGP), therfakdgovernment will provide
$1.7 billion to the states, which in turn will digise these funds to local law enforcement and @encies. The federal Department of
Homeland Security, or DHS, has designated 62 melitap areas throughout the country to receive atrhalf of the HSGP funds
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through a program called the DHS Urban Area Sectnitiative, or UASI. Designated UASI metropolitaneas include six metropolitan
areas in California; the Phoenix, Arizona (Maricéaunty) metropolitan area; Denver, Colorado; aad Vegas, Nevada. Homeland security
funding has remained constant over the last thsealfyears and we do not anticipate a changeridifig levels at the federal or state level
the foreseeable future.

Our Services

We specialize in providing privatized sees to public agencies. Our core client base ispomed of cities, counties, special districts,
other local and state agencies, tribal governmamnis to a lesser extent, private industry.

We are organized to profitably manage neuesmall to mid-size contracts at the same timigh @dr focus on local and regional
agencies, typical contracts can range from $5,0@¢r $1,000,000 in contract revenue. Our tygicaject contract has a duration of less
than 12 months, although we have city servicesraot# that have been in effect for over 26 yeatslahuary 2, 2009, we had approximately
2,500 open projects.

We offer services in three segments: Eraging Services, Public Finance Services, and HamdeBecurity Services. The interfaces and
synergies among these segments are key elememts sfrategy. Management established these segimesesl upon the services provided,
the different marketing strategies associated tiise services and the specialized needs of #spective clients. The following table
presents, for the periods indicated, the approx@rpatcentage of our consolidated contract revetitibigable to each segment:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Engineering Service 78.2% 81.1% 84.1%
Public Finance Service 18.7% 16.1% 14.7%
Homeland Security Servici 3.% 2.2% 1.2%

See Item 8 of Part Il, "Financial Staterseamtd Supplementary Data" for additional segmdotrmation.
Engineering Services

We provide a broad range of engineeringises to the public sector and limited serviceth®private sector. In general, contracts for
engineering services (as opposed to constructintras) are awarded by public agencies based plynupon the qualifications of the
engineering professional, rather than the propésesl Many jobs are awarded without a mandatedogadprocess, especially if an agency
has a longstanding relationship with an enginegpitafessional with relevant expertise. A substapiscentage of our engineering related
work is for existing clients and represents an msiten of our long-term associations with them.

Our broad range of engineering servicedisted in the following table and described indivally below:

City Engineering Landscape Architectul
Building and Safet Geotechnical Engineerir
Public Works and Infrastructure Desi  Flood Control
Construction Manageme Code Enforcemer
Traffic Engineering Energy Efficiency

Water and Wastewater Engineer Sustainability

Structural Engineerin Water Conservatio
Planning Environmenta
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City Engineering. We specialize in providing engineering servilored to the unique needs of municipalitiegy Gngineering can
range from staffing an entire engineering departrt®oarrying out specific projects within a mupiglity, such as developing a pavement
management program or reviewing engineering plansetalf of a city. This is the core of our oridibasiness and was the first service
offered when we were founded.

Building and Safety. Our building and safety services can range fnoamaging and staffing an entire municipal builditegpartment to
providing specific outsourced services such as maiew and field inspections. Other aspects o tigcipline include performing
accessibility compliance and providing disasteowety teams, energy compliance evaluations, pgroitessing and issuance, seismic
retrofitting programs and structural plan reviewamy of our building and safety services engagememtsvith municipalities and counties in
high growth areas where workloads exceed the cpaftin-house staff.

Public Works and Infrastructure Design.This sector constitutes our traditional engimegdesign function. Our engineers design
streets and highways, airport and transit facdjtieeeway interchanges, high occupancy vehicledapavement reconstruction, and other
elements of city, county and state infrastructure.

Construction Management. We have developed construction and program gemant systems specifically devoted to our public
sector clients. We provide inspection servicess@hwith full construction management and suppapeshding on the client's needs and the
scope of the specific project. Our construction aggment experience encompasses projects sucleeis shridges, sewers and storm drains,
water systems, parks, pools and utilities.

Traffic Engineering. Our traffic engineering services involve segvas the contract city traffic engineer in commigsitas well as
performing design and traffic planning projectsdor clients. These services and projects inclid&ipg management studies, intersection
analyses and improvements, traffic impact reparts, traffic signal and control systems.

Water and Wastewater EngineeringOur water and wastewater engineering servitgade design and project management of public
water and wastewater facilities. Our core compeéésnioclude hydraulic modeling, master planning¢g studies and design and construction
services. Our design experience includes resepvymessure reducing stations, pump and lift statiand pipeline alignment studies, as well
as water/wastewater collection, distribution amdtment facilities.

Structural Engineering. Our structural engineering services includddeidesign, bridge evaluation and inspection, haghand
railroad bridge planning and design, highway irftarege design, railroad grade separation desigigdseismic retrofitting, building design
and retrofit, sound wall and retaining wall designgd planning and design for bridge rehabilitaton replacement.

Planning. We offer services to planning agencies as asstommunity development/redevelopment departnwettig cities.
Typically, cities contract with us to relieve peakrkload situations or to fill vacant planning pgasis on an interim basis. In other instances,
we handle the entire planning function for smalhewly incorporated cities.

Landscape Architecture. Our services in the area of landscape architedéhclude design, planning, landscape manageamehtrban
forestry. Specific projects include park design amakter planning, bidding and construction docus)emater conservation plans, urban
beautification programs, landscape maintenance geanent, site planning and assessment district neaneaif.

Geotechnical Engineering. We provide geotechnical engineering servigeguding soil testing, slope stability evaluatioaarthquake
engineering, engineering geology and hydrogeoldgy.have a
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licensed, full service geotechnical laboratory @t leeadquarters in Anaheim, California, which affan array of testing services, including
construction materials testing and inspection.

Flood Control. We provide a complete analysis and projectiostarm flows for use in master drainage plansfandndividual storm
drain systems to reduce flooding in streets andcadijt properties.

Code Enforcement. We assist municipalities with the developmemt anplementation of neighborhood preservation ot and the
staffing of code enforcement personnel.

Energy Efficiency. We provide complete energy efficiency servitesluding comprehensive surveys and audits, mengceservices,
implementation services, program design, benchmaakysis, metering, and partnering with local gameents and utilities. We also create
and implement innovative information technologyusions for the energy industry.

Sustainability. We assist clients, including utilities, schoaiw private companies, in developing and manafgicitities and
infrastructures through a holistic, practical agmio to sustainability. Our services in the aresustainability cover renewable energy, master
plans, Leadership in Energy and Environmental DedigED) certification for buildings, reduction ategies for Green House Gas Emission
(GHG), and the development of Assembly Bill No. §AB-811) projects.

Water Conservation. We offer a full range of water and wastewatanagement services. Our services in the area efwat
conservation cover water efficiency hardware régpEomprehensive audits and custom developecepses to ensure that the audits rest
actual measurable installations of conservationsues. We work with local governments and wateneigs, to provide solutions that are
complete and all-embracing, from initial analysisl @esign to implementation.

Environmental. We provide environmental consulting and remtalieservices to cities, counties and local goveentOur
environmental services encompass many technicaiptiirees and programs including human health amdogiical risk assessment, hazardous
materials and waste management, construction maregeand environmental compliance.

Representative Projects.Examples of typical ongoing projects we havéhim Engineering Services segment include:

. Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTAWWe were hired by the Orange County Transportatiotinority to prepare
plans, specifications and estimates for a new Mak@ommuter rail station in the City of Placent@alifornia. The new
station will be located along the San Bernardinodstision of the BNSF Railway. The project sitegmtified in the
environmental document, is approximately 4.75 acrhe project will provide a commuter rail statidvat meets current and
future transit demand. The station is a key compbagtransit-oriented development envisioned i estgate Specific Plan
for the City of Placentia. The Metrolink statiorofct will include street improvements, railroaddk improvements,
pedestrian improvements, new rail platforms, anttipg facilities.

. City of San ClementeWe were selected to provide construction prajeghagement services for the Senior Center and ©
County Fire Station No. 60 Project. The projectudes construction of a 7,851 square-foot two skirg Station facility and a
7,963 square foot senior center. Both facilitieh bé constructed within a single building. Theimstted project construction
cost is $8 million. The project construction isrpl@d to commence in April 2009 and be completetiwit2 months.

. California Department of State Architects (DSA)Ve were selected to review plans and specifinatfor certain projects
within the state of California on an "as-neededsi®@ accordance with Titles 19 and 24, Califo@a@de of Regulations and
all National Fire
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Protection Association (NFPA) Referenced StandindEire and Life Safety, according to the policéasl procedures of the
California Department of State Architects (DSA).r@ule is to provide plan review, back-check revigfndrawings and
specifications and review of change orders, addeisddeferred approvals, alternate designs, andioe for California
school buildings, state buildings and public calle@nd universities. These services will be pralidethe DSA Sacramento,
Oakland, Los Angeles, and San Diego regions.

. John Wayne Airport. We are providing a development review for a $&Bllion terminal expansion project at John Wayne
Airport. The expansion involves a 12-gate expansiosn existing facility. As part of the expansidohn Wayne Airport will
add international gates in preparation for diratgrinational flights. The scope of work also indagbartial demolition of an
existing parking structure, with remaining portiadded as part of the expansion. The total expansicomprised of
approximately 300,000 square feet of space.

. San Gabriel Valley. We developed the San Gabriel Valley Energy Wisgrfership, a comprehensive energy efficiency
program targeting 32 cities in the San Gabriel 8glhssisting in the creation of a mutually benafielationship between
Southern California Edison, Southern California@dation of Governments and the San Gabriel Vdlleuncil of
Governments. The program goal is to deliver 2,783 J8Vh in annual energy savings from a combinatibcommissioning
and retro-commissioning projects in three San @hbfalley cities. Additionally, the program promstimcreased awareness of
energy efficiency programs and of the importanceredfrgy conservation among residents and businesses

. San Francisco Public Utility CommissionWe have been working for the San Francisco Pultilty Commission (SFPUC)
to implement the San Francisco Water Savers praogfam SFPUC Water Savers Program seeks to redutR€gGEustomer
consumption by targeting high consumption, nonel@siial water customers that represent the higtegercent of water
users. The program also leverages associated es&vigyy opportunities to maximize customer finahicieentives through th
adoption of water saving technologies. To dateptlogram represents a savings of approximatelyats@ feet of water to the
SFPUC. We are currently providing municipal watediaservices to the SFPUC.

. San Diego Gas & Electric (SDG&E)We are implementing server and desktop virtuibmatechnologies for certain SDG&E
commercial customers through SDG&E's 2008-2009bidiram. The program targets customer locationis igh server and
desktop loads, helping to reduce energy costsdimmeercial customers within the SDG&E service teryit Customers have
been able to reduce their energy costs and congumipt as much as 80-90 percent through a largeeser desktop
virtualization project with SDG&E subsidizing a tion of the project through an incentive process.

. Southern California Edison.We are currently implementing the Hospital Fagilinergy Efficiency Program (HFEEP), a
Southern California Edison 2007-08 retrofit prograivat offers cash incentives to energy consunwerprbviding
comprehensive energy efficiency services to exgstiguipment or systems in medical office buildintdSEEP targets 20
medical office buildings for energy efficiency ingphentations, and delivers energy savings of ox&mtllion gross kWh.

Public Finance Services

We acquired our public finance consultingibess in 1999 to supplement the services we offepublic sector clients. In general, we
supply expertise and support for the various fimagntechniques employed by public agencies to fieaheir operations and infrastructure.
We also support the mandated reporting and otlyglinements associated with these financings. Wiead@rovide underwriting or financial
advisory services for municipal securities.
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Unlike our Engineering Services businessoften compete for business, at least initiaHyptigh a competitive bid process. However,
since many public sector financing instrumentshsagtax-exempt bonds, remain outstanding for \B®tgears, once we have established a
client relationship, the client tends to retairfarsas long as the financing remains in place. €auvices in this segment include the following:

District Administration. We administer special districts on behalf dblppiagencies. The types of special districts adstened include
community facilities districts (in California, MeiRoos districts), assessment districts, landsaapdighting districts, school facilities
improvement districts, water districts, benefitessnent districts, fire suppression districts, langiness improvement districts. Our
administration services include calculating thewsiitevy for each parcel in the district; billingarges directly or through a county tax roll;
preparing the annual Engineer's Report, budgetesalutions; reporting on collections and payméaiius; calculating prepayment quotes;
and providing financial analyses, modeling and tdgrecasting. From July 2008 to June 2009, weetip administer over 1,900 districts
on behalf of more than 220 public agencies, invgvén annual levy of more than 7.8 million pardbét is expected to generate
approximately $670 million in public revenue.

The key to our District Administration s&m®s is our proprietary software package, MuniM@&gidunicipal Administration &
Government Information Coordinator, which we depeld internally to redefine the way we administexcsal districts. MuniMagic® is a
database management program that maintains paelahlculates special taxes, assessments, feeharges; manages payment tracking;
maintains bond-related information in a single,tcaiocation; and provides reporting, financialaeting and analysis at multiple levels of
detail. MuniMagic® offers a significant competitiaglvantage in an industry driven by the abilitatzurately process extremely large
guantities of data. MuniMagic® is also available lfoensing by our existing clients. See "—Intetlesd Property" for a discussion of the
licensing terms.

Financial Consulting Services. We perform economic analyses and financialgutsjfor public agencies, including:

. Fee and rate studies, such as cost allocationestuger fee analysis, utility rate analysis, fisopact studies and developmi
fee studies;
. Special district formation, which involves the dgsidevelopment and initiation of community fa@é districts, school

facilities, improvement districts, assessment witsty landscape and lighting districts, benefieassent districts, business
improvement districts, fire suppression assessnamise-engineering;

. Facility financing plans;

. Economic impact analyses;

. The formation of new public entities, annexationd acorporations;

. Reassessment engineering for bond refunding; and

. Inf%af/t/r_lljlgture analysis both to evaluate the needghabilitation efforts, and for financial regog purposes, in association
with Willdan.

Federal Compliance Services We offer federal compliance services to isseéraunicipal securities, which can be cities, teywn
school districts, housing authorities and otheitiestthat are eligible to issue tax-exempt semgitSpecifically, we provide arbitrage rebate
calculations and municipal disclosure services liedp issuers remain in compliance with federaltatipns. We provide these reports,
together with related compliance services suchoas lelections, temporary period yield restrictiescrow fund monitoring, rebate payments
and refund requests. In terms of continuing disgleservices, we both produce the required aneyalrts and disseminate those
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reports on behalf of the issuers. We provide fddemanpliance services to approximately 575 issireB8 states and the District of Columbia
on more than 2,100 bond issues totaling over $idrbin municipal debt.

Representative Projects.Examples of typical projects we have in thellRUEinance Services segment include:

. City of Riviera Beach, Florida.We were engaged by the City of Riviera Beachotmglete a utility rate structure overhaul for
their water and wastewater utilities. This engaganmevolved creating new, cost-of-service basedewand wastewater rate
schedules.

. City of Fort Worth, Texas.The City of Fort Worth was facing significant deages providing adequate infrastructure in the

face of continued high levels of growth. At the gatime, the development community was concernedtgticies that woul
shift the infrastructure funding burden directht@mew development. The City of Fort Worth andltiwal chamber of
commerce contracted us to prepare a study thatdwdmuelop a 10-year forecast of General Fund rexeand expenditures;
identify the gap in funding for transportation dtructure based on the forecast; estimate theoatonmpact of increased fe
on new development; and compare the cost of derredapin Fort Worth with 19 comparable cities.

. San Diego County Area Fire Protection Districté\fter a competitive bid process in February 208%9jdan Financial
Services was awarded a five-year contract to peofird suppression assessment district administratervices for the Alpine,
Bonita Sunnyside, Borrego Springs, Deer SpringgduLakeside and Rancho Santa Fe Fire Prote&listricts. In an effort t
expedite the process, the seven agencies decidedtdinate their efforts into a single requestdaposal process and host
interviews of the top four firms in front of their! person panel. At the end of the interviews, @eeived the highest rating
from each of the agencies, which resulted in seegarate contracts.

. City of Irvine, California. In June 2003, the City of Irvine engaged us féiveryear contract to prepare arbitrage rebate re
for all of the City's tax-exempt debt. In June 208@& contract was renewed for an additional tiyess plus two one-year
optional extensions. Additionally, we have beervjifimg assessment district administration servioahe city for over ten
years and recently had this contract renewed fadalitional three years. This contract includesatheinistration of over 50
special financing districts as well as the munitigisclosure for each of the associated bond issues

. Bollam, Sheedy, Torani & Company, LLP (BST), Nevk.Ydn 2008, we began a relationship with BST, antaadcounting
and tax compliance firm, to provide arbitrage rebaiporting for their governmental and healthcéisnts. Our first client
through this relationship, Albany Parking AuthorityAlbany New York, has expanded our initial oreay contract through
20009.

. Frisco Independent School District, Texag/e were hired in 2008 by Frisco ISD, the largast fastest growing school disti
in the State of Texas, to prepare arbitrage refeguerts for all of their taxexempt bonds. The portfolio we manage currently
over $835 million in assets.

. Pershing Yoakley & Associates, TennessBershing Yoakley & Associates (PYA) is an augiizounting, and tax compliance

firm that provides service to healthcare and gowverntal clients around the nation. In 2008, PYA dhius to prepare arbitrage
rebate compliance reports for one of their cliemt€hattanooga, TN.

Homeland Security Services

In fiscal 2004, we formed our subsidiarnildéin Homeland Solutions (WHS), formerly known américan Homeland Solutions. We
provide homeland security and public safety comsgiservices to
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cities, counties and related municipal service agsnsuch as utility and water companies, as veedichool districts, port and transportation
authorities, tribal governments and large busimegsrprises with a need for homeland security edlaervices. We staff our projects in this
area with former high-level local and regional paiskfety officers and focus on solutions tailofedlocal agencies and their personnel. Our
services include:

Training Services. We design customized training courses for gleats of disaster, unusual occurrence and emsrgesigonses. In
this regard, we have developed and own severaliigatourses that meet or exceed the requirementhéd federal National Incident
Management System, or NIMS, training. These couassist clients in meeting their obligations topame their staff to utilize the NIMS. Our
courses have been approved by California’'s Comomissi Peace Officers Standards and Training, thiéo@aa Office of Emergency
Services and the Federal National Integration Geftaining and Education Division, formerly the fz@tment of Homeland Security's
"Office of Grants and Training".

Emergency Operations Planning.We design, develop, implement, review and eatalpublic and private agencies' emergency
operations and hazard mitigation plans, includiogpliance and consistency with federal, state andllaws and policies. Plans are tailored
to respond to terrorism, intentional acts of sapetand natural disasters. We also provide commadaantrol and emergency response
training for all types of unusual occurrences. Wt#S developed emergency operations, continuityhaadrd mitigation plans for municipal
governments, special districts, school districtel private industry clients.

Terrorism and Threat Vulnerability Assesstae These assessments involve the developmentiofgsoand procedures to assess
threats and the vulnerability of local, region&hts and national infrastructures, including cityl @ounty buildings, ports and airports,
facilities, power supplies, water supplies, commations networks and transportation systems.

Planning Evaluations and ExercisesWe conduct planning sessions and exercisdsidimg those relating to weapons of mass
destruction, large events, mass casualty trangfortdisasters, terrorism incident response, nhtlisaster response and recovery, and civil
disorder events. We design these exercises foi-aggincy involvement and are fully compliant witte federal government's Homeland
Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEHER) State Emergency Management System (SEMS) fifio@ad, and the National
Response Framework. Exercises are designed toagalnd test "first responders" and support perdpan well as elected officials and
agency management.

Public Safety and Management ConsultingVe provide independent analyses, evaluatiodg@ommendations for enhancing the
performance of public safety agencies, such aggalnd fire departments. Management consultingceeareas include organizational
assessments and studies, staffing and outsoungpppg for new and existing cities, managemenhingi and development, administrative
investigations, and background investigations. €rsesvices are provided to local, state, and tgbakrnments and agencies; private
companies; trade associations; non-profit orgaiwimat and educational institutions from K-12 thrbuplleges and universities.

Representative Projects.Examples of typical Homeland Security Servigesects include:

. NIMS/EOC Training SessionsWe conduct NIMS training sessions for law enfaneat, fire protection, building department
and public works personnel, and other "first regf@rga". In 2008, representatives from over 550 pudadiencies attended WHS
training courses. We also provide a series of nevergency Operations Center (EOC) training courBls.California Office
of Homeland Security contracted with WHS to instihem in their Emergency Operations Center respoities.

Additionally, we provide transit focused NIMS traig on site to Santa Clara Valley Transportatiohduity (VTA)
employees as required by the
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National Department of Homeland Security. The eypés are located at five VTA locations in Santa&faounty and in San
Jose, California.

. City of Burbank, California. We were retained by the City of Burbank to prevadcomprehensive review and organizational
assessment of the Burbank Police Department. Folgpe transition of leadership, the city was insted in identifying areas
of best practices that could be employed withirirthelice department. Focus groups were develogetd, collection methods
established and benchmark cities were identifie¢donparative purposes. We produced a detailedtrépat provided
recommendations and implementation guidelines fréwe the overall service of the department andtipast for enhanced
service delivery.

. Anaheim/Santa Ana Urban Area Security Initiativin 2008, we were selected as the prime contrattpporting the
Anaheim/Santa Ana Urban Area Security InitiativesSg8UA). Emergency preparedness services providéioetd\SAUA
include planning, training and exercise supporsupport of urban area planning initiatives, weaneently updating the
ASAUA strategy and developing continuity of opewas plans for the cities of Anaheim, Santa Ana, tiihgiion Beach, Irvine,
and Fullerton. We are a full-service training pd®i of U.S. Department of Homeland Secudpproved training courses to
ASAUA. In preparation for Orange County participatin Golden Guardian 2008 (GG08je Great California Shake Owte
provided a series of general and section spedifiergency operations center (EOC) training coutsatspgrepared EOC
personnel for their participation in the exerciE®C personnel from 34 cities participated in 6 Ei@dining courses conducted
over a two-month period. We also provided exerdisgign, development, conduct, and evaluation stijggovices to over 24
participating cities and 14 agencies. Moreoverhaee delivered over 30 Incident Command System)(IDH - 400 direct
delivery and train-the-trainer courses to audieramess Orange County.

. Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTAYWe were selected to implement a three-year Emegg®lanagement
Training & Exercise program for OCTA, based upoistixg Emergency Management plans, operating @sliand division
protocols. The program covers training course€®/EOC and the OCTA Emergency Management Plares thbletop
exercises focused on evaluating bus operation gottpand a full-scale exercise culminating thereise program.

. Leadership Training Programs, Orange and Ontariajifornia. We developed and presented a seven-module tgainin
program for new workplace leaders for a major cédllevision company. The program covered leadershiping,
communication, interviewing, coaching, performanedews, corrective action, and key human resoissges.

Competitive Strengths

Founded over 40 years ago, we have a wtdbéished track record of providing a wide ranfjprivatized services to the public sector.
We have developed the experience base, professtafhhnd support technology and software necgdeajuickly and effectively respond
the needs of our clients. We believe we have deegla reputation within our industry as problenver across a broad range of client
issues. Some of our competitive strengths include:

Quality of service. We pride ourselves on the quality of servica thie provide to our clients. The work for which e@mpete is
awarded primarily based on the company's qualiticat rather than the fees proposed. We belieuvetitaservice levels, experience and
expertise satisfy even the most rigorous qualificastandards. We have developed a strong repntticquality, based upon our depth of
experience, ability to attract quality professia&iustomized technology and software that supporservices, local knowledge and the
expertise we possess across multiple disciplinesb®@lieve we are well-positioned to serve publataeclients due to our knowledge of the
unique
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reporting processes and operating procedures dicpadencies, which differ substantially from thévate sector. We believe our high quality
of service is a significant reason we currentlyvte services to over 60% of the cities and cousritieCalifornia.

Broad range of services. Our focus on customer service has led us ttiragadly broaden the scope of the services we piavit
different stages in our 40-year history, as thedeed our public sector clients have evolved, weehdeveloped service capabilities
complementary to our core engineering businesfydirgy building and safety services, financial @mdnomic services, planning services,
geotechnical services, code enforcement serviasnaost recently, disaster planning and homelandrég services. Further, because we
recognize that local public sector projects anddéssften cross departmental lines, we have degdlte ability to deliver multiple services
in a cohesive manner to better serve our clientneconities as a whole.

Strategic locations in key marketsLocal agencies want professionals who undedstagir local needs. Therefore, we deliver our
services through a network of offices dispersedughout the western United States. Each of oucesdfis staffed with quality professionals,
including former management level public sector kyges, such as planners, engineers, inspectatqaitce and fire department personnel.
These professionals understand the local and ralioarkets in which they work.

Strong, long-term client relationships.We have developed strong relationships withpalnlic agency clients, some of whom we have
worked with for over 25 years. The value of thesggtterm relationships is reflected in the recigré@ward of new projects, ongoing staffing
assignments, and long-term projects that requgh-tével supervision. We also seek to maintaineclpsrsonal relationships with public
agency decision-makers to strengthen our relatipashith them and the agencies with which they wave frequently develop new client
relationships as our public agency contacts armpted or move to other agencies. Our strong cutiicommunity involvement and
leadership in key public agency organizations usclaes our customer focus and helps us cultivateegpand our client base.

Experienced, talented and motivated emgeye Our staff consists of seasoned professiondls avbroad array of specialties, and a
strong customer service orientation. Our corpocateire places a high priority on investing in @aople, including providing opportunities
for stock ownership to attract, motivate and retajmprofessionals. Our executive officers havaarage of more than 24 years of
experience in or supporting the public sector, améverage of 6 years with our company.

Clients

Our clients primarily consist of cities,usties, redevelopment agencies, water districtgalaistricts and universities, state agencies,
federal agencies, a variety of other special distrand agencies, tribal governments and to arlessent, private industry. Our typical clien
an agency serving a community of 10,000 to 300¥ple. In fiscal year 2008, we served over 80findisclients. No individual client
accounted for over 3.5% of our consolidated cohteenue in fiscal year 2008. For fiscal year 2@&8h of our top eight clients accounted
for between 1.6% and 3.5% of our consolidated emhtrevenue. Our clients are predominantly bas€thiifornia. We also have clients in
Arizona, Nevada and, to a lesser extent, otheestaroughout the United States. In fiscal yeai828@érvices provided to public agencies and,
to a lesser extent, private industry in Califoraé@ounted for approximately 91% of our contracereie.
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Contract Structure

We provide our services under contractsclpase orders or retainer letters. The contractsnter into with our clients contain three
principal types of pricing provisions:

. Time-and-materials provisionzovide for reimbursement of costs and overheasd alfee for labor based on the time exper
on a project multiplied by a negotiated hourlyihdl rate. The profitability achievable on a timaelanaterials basis is driven by
billable headcount and cost control.

. Unit-based provisiongequire the delivery of specific units of work, bugs arbitrage rebate calculations, dissemination o
municipal securities continuing disclosure repastshuilding plan checks, at an agreed price pér with the total payment
under the contract determined by the actual nurabenits performed.

. Fixed price provisionsequire all work under a contract to be performardsf specified lump sum, which may be subject to
adjustment if the scope of the project changestr@ots with fixed price provisions carry certailménent risks, including risks
of losses from underestimating costs, delays ifept@ompletion, problems with new technologieg;gincreases for
materials, and economic and other changes thate@ay over the contract period. Consequently, thétpbility, if any, of
fixed price contracts can vary substantially.

The following table presents, for the pdsidndicated, the approximate percentage of outracinrevenue subject to each type of pricing
provision:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007
Time-anc-materials 50% 59%
Unit-basec 23% 25%
Fixed price 2% 16%
Total 10C% 10C%

The percentage of our contract revenuevddrirom fixed price contracts increased to 27%sical year 2008 from 16% in fiscal year
2007 primarily because of our acquisition of Wilidanergy Solutions in June 2008. Willdan Energy8ohs has fixed price provisions in a
higher percentage of their contracts than our abperating subsidiaries.

For time-and-materials and fixed price cacits, we bill our clients periodically in accordarwith the contract terms based on costs
incurred, on either an hourly-fee basis or on agmiage of completion basis, as the project pregeeg-or unit-based contracts, we bill our
clients upon delivery of the contracted item ors@ame cases, in advance of delivery.

Our contracts come up for renewal peridiGgnd at the time of renewal may be subject tegwtiation, which could impact the
profitability on that contract. In addition, duritige term of a contract, public agencies may reicpditional or revised services which may
impact the economics of the transaction. Most efamuntracts permit our clients, with prior notite terminate the contracts at any time
without cause. While the renewal, termination odifioation of a contract may materially impact adividual project, we do not believe the
renewal, termination or modification of any specifontract would have a material adverse effeaiwrconsolidated operations due to our
large volume of transactions and low customer cotnagon.
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Competition

The market for our services is highly fragrted. We often compete with many other firms nagdrom small local firms to large
national firms. Contract awards are based primanilyjualifications, relevant experience, staffiagabilities, geographic presence, stability
and price.

Doing business with governmental agendeomplex and requires the ability to comply wittricate regulations and satisfy periodic
audits. We have been serving cities, counties,iagpeistricts and other public agencies for overyé@rs. We believe that the ability to
understand these requirements and to successtuljuct business with governmental entities and @igeris a barrier to entry for potential
competitors.

Our competition varies by type of clierypé of service and geography. The range of congpstibr any one project can vary depending
upon technical specialties, the relative valuehefiroject, geographic location, financial ternisks associated with the work, and any client
imposed restrictions. Unlike most of our compesitave focus our services on public sector cliddtslic sector clients generally choose
among competing firms by weighing the quality, enguece, innovation and timeliness of the firm'syggrs. When selecting consultants for
engineering projects, many government agenciesgréred to, and others choose to, employ Qualifioa Based Selection, or QBS. QBS
requires the selection of the most technically ifjedl firms for a project, while the financial atefjal terms of the engagement are generally
secondary. QBS applies primarily to work done by Bngineering Services segment. Contracts in theidEinance Services and Homeland
Security Services areas typically are not subjgahéndatory QBS standards, and often are awardedgh a competitive bid process.

Our competition varies geographically. Altigh we provide services in several states, welmagtronger in certain service lines in sc
geographical areas than in other regions. Similadyne of our larger competitors are stronger meseervice lines in certain localities but
not as competitive in others. Our smaller competigenerally are limited both geographically aslaslin the services they are able to
provide.

We believe that the primary competitorsdar Engineering Services segment include Charldsoft & Associates, Inc., Bureau Verit
Harris & Associates, Psomas, RBF Consulting, Té&eh, Inc., Stantec, Inc., Michael Baker CorporatibRC Companies, Inc., AECOM
Technology Corporation, CH2M Hill and Jacobs Engiireg Group, Inc. Our chief competitors in our RalBlinance Services segment
include David Taussig & Associates, Harris & Asstes, NBS Government Finance Group and Ernst & YadurP. We believe the
Homeland Security Services segment competes plimeith EG&G (a division of URS Corporation) and SRnternational, Inc.

Insurance

We currently maintain general liability imance, with coverage in the amount of $1.0 millg@n occurrence, subject to a $2.0 million
general aggregate limit; and professional liabilityurance, with $5.0 million in coverage per claand a $10.0 million annual aggregate
limit. Our professional liability policy is a "clais made" policy. We also carry excess coveraga afditional $9.0 million for general,
automobile and employer's liability claims. We hable to pay these claims from our assets if ahémthe aggregate settlement or judgment
amount exceeds our policy limits.

Employees

At January 2, 2009, we had approximately 2i-time employees and 165 part-time employ@dlsPublic Agency Resources'
employees are classified as part-time. Our emplbyesude, among others, licensed civil, trafficiatructural engineers, land surveyors,
certified building officials, licensed geotechniealgineers and engineering geologists, certifisgeators and plans examiners, licensed
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architects and landscape architects, certifiedriges) and information technology specialists. Weebe that we attract and retain highly
skilled personnel with significant industry expege and strong client relationships by offeringithehallenging assignments in a stable work
environment. We believe that our employee relatanesgood.

The following table sets forth the numbgoor employees in each of our business segments@anholding company:

As of Fiscal Year End
2008 2007 2006

Engineering Service 401 49€ 54z
Public Finance Service 74 75 78
Homeland Security Servici 16 8 4
Holding Company Employees (Willdan Group, Ir 59 49 46

Total 55C 628 67C

At January 2, 2009, we contracted with agpnately 93 former and current public safety ddfie to conduct homeland security services
training courses. These instructors are classégedubconsultants and not employees. At Janu@§0B, we had one field survey employee
covered by a Master Labor Agreement between theriational Union of Operating Engineers Local Unim 12 and the Southern
California Association of Civil Engineers and LaBdrveyors, which expires in October 2010.

Intellectual Property

The "Willdan" name, the logo and the tag Ifextending your reach” are service marks of ,camd we have applied for federal
trademark registrations for each with the Uniteat&t Patent and Trademark Office. We believe we B&ong name recognition in the
western United States and that this provides umpetitive advantage in obtaining new business s€guently, we believe it is important to
protect our brand identity through trademark regtgins. The name and logo of our proprietary safey MuniMagic®, are registered
trademarks of Willdan Financial Services, and weehagistered a federal copyright for the souratedor the MuniMagic® software. We
license the MuniMagic® software to existing clieptesuant to licensing agreements that allow varjgwels of access to data. This
technology allows clients to view their own data ama form of deliverable to our clients. The o$éicensing provides us protection for this
proprietary technology. MuniMagic® is not a commakproduct offered for sale.

Available Information

Our website isww.willdan.comand our investor relations page is under the captiovestors" on our website. We make available on
this website under "SEC Filings," free of charga, annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly report$-orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-
K, and amendments to those reports as soon asaadg@racticable after we electronically file arfish such materials to the U.S. Secur
and Exchange Commission, or SEC. We also makeadkaibn this website our prior earnings calls amdier the heading "Investors—
Corporate Governance," our Code of Ethical Conduutther, a copy of this annual report on Form 13-kKcated at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Wgisim, D.C. 20549. Information on the operatioritef Public Reference Room car
obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. $E€ maintains an Internet site that contains rgpproxy and information statements
and other information regarding our filingshetp://www.sec.gov
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry

A downturn in public and private sector construction activity in the regions we serve may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

A downturn in construction activity in ogeographic service areas may affect demand fos@wices, which could have a material
adverse effect on the results of our operationsoamdinancial condition. During fiscal year 20@Bmajority of our contract revenue was
generated by services rendered to public agentiesrinection with private and public sector corttam projects.

The current recession in the United Sth#ssled to a slowdown in construction, particuladgidential housing construction, in the
western United States. As a result of this slowdawum engineering services segment has sufferdehdsdn revenue and we have made
several reductions in workforce and facility leagesrder to align resources to workload and rediasts. We believe that the reductions
achieved through January 2, 2009 will be sufficterdlign resources with expected future demanatwrservices. However, should the
economic slowdown continue for longer than expectedorsen, we will need to evaluate further regunt in headcount and facilities in
geographic areas that are underperforming.

Our business, financial condition and ressaf operations may also be adversely affectedomglitions that impact the construction se
in general, including, among other things:

. Changes in national and local market conditionstdughanges in general or local economic conditanms neighborhood
characteristics;

. Slow-growth or no-growth initiatives or legislation

. Adverse changes in local and regional governmemidies on investment in infrastructure;

. Adverse changes in federal and state policies daugthe allocation of funds to local and regioagéncies;

. The impact of present or future environmental llegisn and compliance with environmental laws atiteoregulatory

requirements;

. Changes in real estate tax rates and assessments;

. Increases in interest rates and changes in théahility, cost and terms of financing;

. Adverse changes in other governmental rules andlffmlicies; and

. Earthquakes and other natural disasters, whicltaase uninsured losses, and other factors whicheyr@nd our control.

Any of these factors could adversely afteetdemand for our services, which could have g adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Changesin thelocal and regional economies of California could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Adverse economic and other conditions éifigcthe local and regional economies of Califormiay reduce the demand for our services,
which could have a material adverse effect on ogirtess, financial condition and results of opereti During fiscal year 2008,
approximately 91% of our contract revenue was @erivom services rendered to public agencies anal|Jésser extent, private industry in
California. From 1991 to 1996, California experied@n economic downturn that had a negative impathe construction and development
sectors. This economic downturn caused us to expegicash flow difficulties and substantial opetosses. California is currently
experiencing
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another economic downturn, which has negativelyaiotgd our revenue and profitability. Our revenufiscal year 2008 decreased by 7.1%
from fiscal year 2007 and we sustained a net 684 6 million for fiscal year 2008 as comparedh& income of $2.1 million for fiscal year
2007. We believe the downturn in the residentialdiog market has had a significant impact on osults, in particular the loss of revenue
from fees associated with building permits and étsion services.

We may not be able to obtain capital when desired on favorable terms, if at all, or without dilution to our stockholders.

We anticipate that our current cash, caghvalents, cash provided by operating activitied funds available through our revolving line
of credit will be sufficient to meet our currentdaanticipated needs for general corporate purpidgesg the next 12 months. It is possible,
however, that we may not generate sufficient clsh from operations or otherwise have the capiaburces to meet our future capital
needs. For example, at the end of our third andHdiscal quarters in 2008, we did not meet cerfaiancial covenants under our revolving
credit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, National Assation ("Wells Fargo"). As of January 2, 2009, &zl no outstanding borrowings under
this facility, but as a result of these covenaotations, Wells Fargo was no longer obligated tteera funds to us under the revolving credit
agreement. Wells Fargo has waived these breacklesliarinated or modified certain financial coversimt the credit agreement in exchange
for a reduction in the commitment from $10 millitm$5 million, increased pricing and additionallatéral being provided. However, we
cannot provide any assurance that Wells Fargomake any loans under the facility if we violate teenaining financial covenant in the
future. If we fail to comply with this or any otheovenant in the credit agreement, any loans qudsig at that time could be accelerated by
Wells Fargo and Wells Fargo would not be obligatethake any new loans under the revolving creditifg. If this occurs and we do not
generate sufficient cash flow from operations treotvise, we may need additional financing to exeacut our current or future business
strategies, which include the following:

. Hire additional personnel;

. Develop new or enhance existing service lines;
. Expand our business geographically;

. Enhance our operating infrastructure;

. Acquire complementary businesses; or

. Otherwise respond to competitive pressures.

If we raise additional funds through th&uisnce of convertible debt or equity securities,gércentage ownership of our stockholders
could be significantly diluted, and these newluid securities may have rights, preferences oil@g®s senior to those of existing
stockholders. We cannot assure you that additimehcing will be available on terms favorable & ar at all. If adequate funds are not
available or are not available on acceptable teifras,d when needed, our ability to fund our operat, take advantage of strategic
opportunities, or otherwise respond to competitikessures would be significantly limited.

Reductionsin state and local government budgets could negatively impact their capital spending and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Several of our state and local governméants are currently facing budget deficits, reisigitin smaller budgets and reduced capital
spending, which has negatively impacted our revemakeprofitability. Our state and local governmelignts may continue to face budget
deficits that prohibit them from funding new or &tkig projects. In addition, existing and potentiénts may either
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postpone entering into new contracts or requesemoncessions. If we are not able to reduce aiscpickly enough to respond to the
revenue decline from these clients that may oaurpperating results would be adversely affectetordingly, these factors affect our
ability to accurately forecast our future revenad aarnings from business areas that may be adwvargeacted by market conditions.

Legislation may be enacted that limits the ability of state, regional or local agenciesto contract for our privatized services. Such legidation
would affect our ability to obtain new contracts and may decrease the demand for our services.

Legislation is proposed periodically, pautarly in California, that attempts to limit thbikity of governmental agencies to contract with
private consultants to provide services. Shouldhdegislation pass and be upheld, demand for auicgs may be materially adversely
affected. During fiscal year 2008, approximatel$®af our contract revenue was derived from servieaslered to public agencies in
California. While attempts at such legislation héaited in the past, as the composition of Califailegislative body changes over time tt
is an increased risk that measures could be adapted future that limit the market for privatizedrvices.

State and other public employee unions may bring litigation that seeksto limit the ability of public agencies to contract with private firmsto
perform government employee functions in the area of public improvements. Judicial determinationsin favor of these unions could affect
our ability to compete for contracts and may have an adverse effect on our revenue and profitability.

Over at least the last 20 years, stateotimel public employee unions have challenged tliditsaof propositions, legislation, charters
and other government regulations that allow pusdjencies to contract with private firms to provégevices in the fields of engineering,
design and construction of public improvements thigtht otherwise be provided by public employedsede challenges could have the affect
of eliminating, or severely restricting, the alyilif municipalities to hire private firms for thegpose of designing and constructing public
improvements, and otherwise require them to useruemployees to perform the services.

For example, the Professional Engineef3dlifornia Government, or PECG, a union represgnstate civil service employees, has been
challenging Caltrans' hiring of private firms sirk®86, and in 2002 began a judicial challenge dfr@as' hiring practices based on Caltrans'
interpretation of the effect of Proposition 35 (fessional Engineers in California Government, evaleff Morales, et al.). The California
Supreme Court ruled in favor of Caltrans, conclgdimat Caltrans may hire private contractors tdquar architectural and engineering
services on public works. Although Caltrans wascsssful in this recent litigation, similar claimsynbe brought in the future and we cannot
predict their outcome. If a state or other pubfigpéoyee union is successful in its challenge ana @sult the ability of state agencies to hire
private firms is severely limited, such a decisiould likely lead to additional litigation challeimg the ability of the state, counties,
municipalities and other public agencies to hiiiggie engineering, architectural and other firrhg, dutcome of which could affect our abil
to compete for contracts and may have an advefset &h our revenue and profitability.

Changesin elected or appointed officials could have a material adverse effect on our ability to retain an existing contract with or obtain
additional contracts from a public agency.

Since the decision to retain our servisasade by individuals, such as city managers,catyncils and other elected or appointed
officials, our business and financial results andition could be adversely affected by the resfitocal and regional elections. A change in
the individuals responsible for selecting consufdar and awarding contracts on behalf of a pudsjency due to an election could adversely
affect our ability to retain an existing contragtiwor obtain additional contracts from such pulalgency.
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Fixed price contracts under which we perform some of our servicesimpose risksto our ability to maintain or grow our profitability.

In fiscal year 2008, approximately 27% af contract revenue was derived from fixed pricetacts, which increased from 16% in
fiscal year 2007. This increase was primarily altesf our June 2008 acquisition of Willdan Enegiutions, which has fixed price
provisions in a higher percentage of their consréitan our other operating subsidiaries. Undedfjpgce contracts, we perform services
under a contract at a stipulated price which ptetelients but exposes us to a greater numbeskd than time-and-materials and unit-based
contracts. These risks include:

. Underestimation of costs;

. Ambiguities in specifications;

. Problems with new technologies;

. Unforeseen costs or difficulties;

. Failures of subcontractors;

. Delays beyond our control; and

. Economic and other changes that may occur duriagdntract period.

The occurrence of any such risk could heaweaterial adverse effect on our results of opamator financial condition.

Because we primarily provide services to municipalities and other public agencies, we are more susceptible to the unique risks associated
with government contracts.

We primarily work for municipalities andhetr public agencies. Consequently, we are expaseértain risks associated with
government contracting, any one of which can hamreterial adverse effect on our business, finamgatition or results of operations. Th
risks include:

. The ability of the public agency to terminate tloatract with 30 days' prior notice or less;

. Changes in government spending and fiscal poliglgsh can have an adverse effect on demand fosenices;
. Contracts that are subject to government budgéésyand often are subject to renewal on an arbvasis;

. The often wide variation of the types and priciagnts of contracts from agency to agency;

. The difficulty of obtaining change orders and aiddi$ to contracts; and

. The requirement to perform periodic audits as alitam of certain contract arrangements.

Changesin the perceived risk of acts of terrorism or natural disasters could have a material adverse effect on our ability to grow our
Willdan Homeland Solutions business.

If there is a significant decrease in teecpived risk of the likelihood that one or morésaaf terrorism will be conducted in the United
States, or a significant decrease in the percaig&df the occurrence of natural disasters, oilitatto grow and generate revenue through
Willdan Homeland Solutions, or WHS, could be negdi affected. WHS provides training and consultéegvices to local and regional
agencies related to preparing for and respondimgcidents of terrorism and natural disaster. Stholé perceived risk of such incidence
decline, federal and state funding for homelandisgcand emergency preparedness could be redub&thwinight decrease demand for our
services and have a material adverse affect obuginess, financial condition and results of openst
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Theloss of certain of our key executives could adversely affect our business, including our ability to secure and compl ete engagements and
attract and retain employees.

We have experienced significant turnovesun management team since 2006. In 2006, our godfer and Chief Executive Officer, Dan
Heil, passed away unexpectedly. Just prior to Muil'sideath, and at his recommendation, our BoaRirectors elected Win Westfall to
succeed Mr. Heil. Mr. Westfall resigned as our €hieecutive Officer in February 2007 and we appaihThomas Brisbin as our new
President and Chief Executive Officer in April 2007 July 2007, Kimberly Gant was appointed as@©bief Financial Officer when Mallory
McCamant, our former Chief Financial Officer, assahthe role of Chief Operations Officer. Ms. McCautnigesigned in May 2008.
Additionally, Richard Kopecky, our former Seniorcéi President and President of Willdan Engineenivas terminated in February 2007 and
replaced by David Hunt, who has been with us foreriban 21 years. In December 2008, Daniel Chotaceg Mr. Hunt as Chief Executive
Officer and President of Willdan Engineering and Munt assumed the role of Chief Operations Offfoewilldan Engineering.

Because of the turnover of our manageneanht any additional losses of our management tedmyoemployees could have a material
adverse effect on our business, including thetgitihi secure or complete contracts and to attnadtratain additional employees. Our success
is highly dependent upon the efforts, talents, sl marketing skills and operational executibmar key executives and managers.

Our ability to grow and compete in our industry will be hampered if we are unable to retain the continued service of our key professionals
or to identify, hire and retain additional qualified professionals.

A critical factor to our business is ouili&pto attract and retain qualified professionalge are continually at risk of losing current
professionals or being unable to hire additionafgssionals as needed. If we are unable to atieetqualified employees, our ability to gr
will be adversely affected. If we are unable t@ieicurrent employees, our financial condition aeslilts of operations may be adversely
affected. We would also be increasing our competjtas former employees pose the greatest thresggraificant competition to our business.

We operatein a highly fragmented industry, and we may not be able to compete effectively with our larger competitors.

The market for services in the engineenmgnicipal consulting, public finance consultingotechnical, homeland security and other
technical services industries is competitive amghlyi fragmented. Contract awards are based priynarilquality of service, relevant
experience, staffing capabilities, reputation, gapbic presence, stability and price. Some of ounetitors in certain service areas have
more personnel and greater financial, technicalraacketing resources than us. With regard to erging related services, which represel
approximately 78% and 82% of our contract revemudi$cal years 2008 and 2007, respectively, omnmetitors include many larger
consulting firms such as AECOM Technology CorpamatiCH2M Hill, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. andrddech, Inc. In certain public
finance consulting services, we may compete witlpdaccounting firms, such as Ernst & Young LLP. tda offer no assurance that we will
be able to compete successfully in the future thi#dse or other competitors.

Our services may expose us to liability in excess of our current insurance coverage, which may have a material adverse effect on our
liquidity.

Our services involve significant risks ebfessional and other liabilities, which may substdly exceed the fees we derive from our
services. In addition, from time to time, we assuiagilities as a
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result of indemnification provisions contained ir gervice contracts. We cannot predict the madeitf these potential liabilities.

We currently maintain general liability imance, with coverage in the amount of $1.0 milfi@n occurrence, subject to a $2.0 million
general aggregate limit; and professional liabilityurance, with $5.0 million in coverage per claand a $10.0 million annual aggregate
limit. We also carry excess coverage of an addii®®.0 million for general, automobile and empltyéability claims. Claims may be made
against us that exceed these limits. We are li@bpmy claims from our assets if and when the agageesettlement or judgment amount
exceeds our policy limits. In 2002, we experiented claims against our professional liability inance that exceeded by $3.1 million the
aggregate annual limit of our coverage, which at time was $5.0 million. Following resolution bse disputes, we were liable for the
$3.1 million in excess of our policy limits. Ourgfessional liability policy is a "claims made" poli Thus, only claims made during the term
of the policy are covered. If we terminate our pssional liability policy and do not obtain retrtiae coverage, we would be uninsured for
claims made after termination even if these clanesbased on events or acts that occurred durangetim of the policy. Further, our
insurance may not protect us against liability lnseaour policies typically have various exceptitimtghe claims covered and also require L
assume some costs of the claim even though a patithe claim may be covered. In addition, if wg@and into new markets, we may not be
able to obtain insurance coverage for these newitges or, if insurance is obtained, the dollaramt of any liabilities incurred could exceed
our insurance coverage. A partially or completetingured claim, if successful and of significantgmidude, could have a material adverse
effect on our liquidity.

The quality of our service and our ability to perform under some of our contracts would be adversely affected if qualified subconsultants
are unavailable for usto engage.

Under some of our contracts, we rely ondffierts and skills of subconsultants for the perfance of some of the tasks. In fiscal years
2008 and 2007, subconsultant costs comprised ajppatedy 10.6% and 5.8%, respectively, of our carttravenue. The absence of qualified
subconsultants with whom we have a satisfactogtimiship could adversely affect the quality of earvice offerings and therefore our
financial results.

Potential future acquisitions could be difficult to integrate, divert the attention of key personnel, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder
value and impair our financial results.

As part of our business strategy, we intencbnsider acquisitions of companies that areptementary to our business, such as our
acquisition of Intergy Corporation in June 2008 pAgpriate acquisitions could allow us to expand imtw geographical locations, offer new
services, or acquire additional talent. Accordinglyr future performance will be impacted by ouitighto identify appropriate businesses to
acquire, negotiate favorable terms for such actipie and then effectively and efficiently integratuch acquisitions into our existing
businesses. There is no certainty that we will eaddn such endeavors.

Acquisitions involve numerous risks, anydfich could harm our business, including:

. Difficulties in integrating the operations, techogies, products, existing contracts, accountingmerdonnel of the target
company and realizing the anticipated synergigh@tombined businesses;

. Difficulties in supporting and transitioning custers, if any, of the target company;

. Diversion of our financial and management resouficers existing operations;
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. The price we pay or other resources that we dawalgexceed the value we realize, or the value wéduwave realized if we
had allocated the purchase price or other resotimcasother opportunity;

. Risks of entering new markets in which we havetkahior no experience;

. Potential loss of key employees, customers antegiiaalliances from either our current businesthertarget company's
business;

. Assumption of unanticipated problems or latentiliadss, such as problems with the quality of theget company's services;
and

. Inability to generate sufficient net income to jfysthe acquisition costs.

Acquisitions also frequently result in tteeording of goodwill and other intangible asselsolr are subject to potential impairment in
future that could harm our financial results. ldi&dn, if we finance acquisitions by issuing cortitde debt or equity securities, our existing
stockholders may be diluted, which could lower ket price of our common stock. As a result, éffail to properly evaluate acquisitions
or investments, we may not achieve the anticiphtatfits of any such acquisitions, and we may iosts in excess of amounts that we
anticipate.

If we fail to comply with the requirements imposed by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the trading price of our stock could drop
significantly.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the SarbanesyOktt of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley, we are requingatovide a management certification on
our internal controls over financial reporting. Base we are a smaller reporting company, we witelpgired to provide an attestation report
related to the effectiveness of our internal cdetower financial reporting from our independergiséered public accounting firm for the first
time for fiscal year 2009. In order to achieve ctiame with Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley, in 2@@7engaged outside professional
consultants to assist us in documenting and evafuatir internal control over financial reportinthis exercise was both costly and
challenging. We believe the efforts we have putféo date give us the basis to conclude that we léective internal controls over financ
reporting. When our independent auditors attelieceffectiveness of our internal controls oveafigial reporting this upcoming fiscal year
end and in future years, our auditors may not agitteour management's conclusion and, as a rewalf,not be able to conclude that our
internal controls over financial reporting are effee. Moreover, the costs to comply with the psiens of Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley, as
presently in effect, could continue to be significa

In addition, during the course of testihg tlesign and effectiveness of our internal costrek or our independent registered public
accounting firm may identify deficiencies that waymot be able to remediate in time to allow fouaualified report from our independent
registered public accounting firm. Furthermoreyd fail to achieve and maintain the adequacy ofiti@rnal controls, as such standards are
modified, supplemented or amended from time to tiwemay not be able to ensure that we can condodm ongoing basis that we have
effective internal controls over financial repogtiim accordance with Section 404 of Sarbanes-Og#egctive internal controls, particularly
those related to revenue recognition, are nece$sang to produce reliable financial reports arelienportant to helping prevent financial
fraud. If we cannot provide reliable financial rescor prevent fraud, our business and operatisglt®could be harmed, investors could lose
confidence in our reported financial informationdahe trading price of our stock could drop sigpaiftly.

We have incurred, and will continueto incur, significant costs as a public company.

As a public company, we incur significaegal, accounting and other expenses that we dithoot prior to November 2006 as a private
company. New rules and regulations for public conggmay increase our legal and financial compéagwsts and will make some activities
more
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time-consuming and costly. For example, we expgdesrand regulations applicable to public compatdevake it more difficult and more
expensive for us to maintain director and offigability insurance, and we may be required to irsustantial costs to maintain the same or
similar coverage.

The concentration of ownership of our stock may delay or prevent a change of control of our company or changesin our management, and
asa result may hinder the ability of our stockholders to take advantage of a premium offer.

The concentration of ownership of our stotky have the effect of delaying or preventing angfe in control of the company or a cha
in our management and may adversely affect thagat other rights of other holders of our commtmtks. As of March 19, 2009 our
directors and executive officers beneficially ow825,229 shares of common stock, or approximat@l2% of our outstanding common
stock. Of these shares, 923,120 shares, or appatediyrl 2.8% of our outstanding common stock, araamhby Linda L. Heil, a member of
our board of directors.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

In addition to current and historical infaation, this report contains forward-looking stagens within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Thesdetaents relate to our future operations, prospectgntial products, services,
developments and business strategies. These stdtecas, in some cases, be identified by the useodds like "may,” "will," "should,"
"could," "would," "intend," "expect," "plan," "artipate," "believe," "estimate," "predict," "projgctpotential,” or "continue" or the negative
of such terms or other comparable terminology. Tésrt includes, among others, forward-lookingesteents regarding our:

. Expectations about future customers;

. Expectations about expanded service offerings;

. Expectations about our ability to cross-sell addisil services to existing clients;

. Expectations about our intended geographical expans

. Expectations about our ability to attract executiffecers and key employees;

. Evaluation of the materiality of our current legabceedings; and

. Expectations about positive cash flow generatichexisting cash and cash equivalents being sufic@meet normal

operating requirements.

These statements involve certain knownuarkchown risks and uncertainties that could causeowal results to differ materially from
those expressed or implied in our forward-lookitegements. Such risks and uncertainties includengnothers, those listed in this section.
We do not intend, and undertake no obligation,pdate any of our forward-looking statements afterdate of this report to reflect actual
results or future events or circumstances.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters are locategpnoximately 42,000 square feet of office space wealease at 2401 East Katella Avenue,
Anaheim, California. In addition, we lease offiggee in 19 other locations principally in Calif@nNevada, and Arizona. In total, our
facilities contain approximately 104,000 squaré tdeffice space and are subject to leases thateethrough fiscal year 2014. We also rent
additional office space on a month-to-month baats.believe that our existing facilities are
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adequate to meet current requirements and thatdeiddditional or substitute space will be avadas needed to accommodate any
expansion of operations and for additional offices.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject to claims and lawsuits ftome to time, including those alleging professioeabrs or omissions, that arise in the
ordinary course of business against firms, likesptirat operate in the engineering and consultinéepsions. We carry professional liability
insurance, subject to certain deductibles and pdiliaits, for such claims as they arise and mayrfitome to time establish reserves for
litigation that is considered probable of a los® kvay incur substantial expenses in defending ag#iird party claims. In the event of a
determination adverse to us, we may incur substamionetary liability and be required to change lmusiness practices. Either of these
results could have a material adverse effect orfinancial position, results of operations or clelvs.

County of San Diego v. WilldaBuperior Court of California, Riverside County

A complaint was filed against us on Febyu28, 2008 relating to a project for the recongiaicof a portion of Valley Center Road
located in an unincorporated area of San Diego Godie design was completed by us and a contrastawarded to a construction
contractor for construction of the improvementse Tonstruction was originally scheduled for corniplein December 2008; however
completion has been delayed until fall 2009. Theslsit alleges that the delays in construction voanesed by errors and omissions in our
preparation of reports and design and engineeffitigeoproject, resulting in additional design amdstruction costs, in an amount to be
determined but believed to be in excess of $5.0anilWe deny the allegations asserted in the lévesid will vigorously defend against the
claims.

Topaz v. City of Laguna Beaclsuperior Court of California, Orange County

This suit concerns a project by the City.afjuna Beach to reconstruct a retaining wall supmpa city road. We served as the
construction observer for this project and desigihedretaining wall. Subsequent to completion efphoject, a slope below the retaining wall
failed damaging the plaintiffs' residence. Theiréta wall did not fail. The construction work wperformed from February to March 2005
and the slope failure occurred in June 2005. Thintiffs were not injured in the incident. The pitifs allege that the City of Laguna Beach
violated its own ordinances by not obtaining appiadp geotechnical data during the design stagebgradlowing the work to be constructed
during the rainy season. The lawsuit names Merifigering, the project designer, Peter§&rase Engineering, the general contractor an
the construction observer, as defendants. We wared as a defendant in the first amended compiliidton October 17, 2007. The
plaintiffs filed a mediation brief on April 25, 280ndicating damages to real and personal propertye amount of $0.8 million and general
damages between $1.6 million and $4.7 million. dssrcomplaint has been filed in the action by BeteiChase against us seeking equitable
apportionment. We deny the allegations assertéfukitawsuit and cross-complaint and will vigoroudgfend against the claims.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote ofstackholders during the last quarter of our figesr ended January 2, 2009.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK , RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market | nformation for Common Stock

Since November 21, 2006, the common sté&Kithdan Group, Inc. has been listed and tradedhenNasdaq Global Market under the
symbol "WLDN". The following table sets out the hignd low daily closing sale prices as reportetherNASDAQ Global Market for fiscal
years 2008 and 2007. These reported prices réfiex-dealer prices without adjustments for retail mgkumarkdowns, or commissions.

2008 2007
High Low High Low
15t Quarter $6.8¢ $5.0C $10.1C $8.9C
2"d Quarter $5.9¢ $4.71 $10.07 $9.0C
31 Quarter $5.0¢ $1.7¢ $10.4¢ $9.5¢
4™ Quarter $2.21 $1.5C $10.4C $6.31

On March 31, 2009 the closing sales primeghare of our common stock, as reported on tlsel&dpGlobal Market, was $1.70.
Stockholders

As of March 31, 2009, there were 108 stotdtérs of record of our common stock.
Dividends

We did not declare or pay cash dividendswncommon stock in fiscal years 2007 and 2006.déared our final S Corporation
distribution of $6.3 million to holders of our conamstock in 2006. The distribution was paid in ®egual portions in December 2006 and
January 2007. Our revolving credit agreement piiththe payment of any dividend or distribution@m common stock either in cash, stock
or any other property without the lender's consent.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In the three years preceding the filinghi$ report, we have issued the following secusitleat were not registered under the Securities
Act:

In connection with our purchase of Willdanergy Solutions (formerly, Intergy Corporation) &ume 9, 2008, we agreed to make
potential earn-out payments of up to $6.2 millioritte sellers if Willdan Energy Solutions achiegesgain levels of earnings before interest
and taxes in each of the first three years follgndompletion of the acquisition. If any earn-ouyp@&nts are due, we may elect, in our sole
discretion, to pay up to 50% of such earn-out paysm shares of our common stock as long as (ajnawket capitalization at the time of
any such earn-out payment is between $57.0 midiwh $86.0 million and (b) the shares of commonkséwe traded on a United States
national securities exchange or reported througisNAQ as of the end of the applicable period foralhthe earn-out was achieved. If the
Average Daily Trading Volume (as defined in theckt®urchase Agreement) of our common stock aseoétid of an applicable earn-out
period is less than 0.42% of our then-issued amstanding common stock, we may not pay more th&h @bthe applicable earn-out
payment in shares of our common stock.

On November 27, 2006, we issued stock wssria connection with our initial public offerinig the underwriter, Wedbush Morgan
Securities, Inc., for the right to purchase 290,66mon shares at
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120% of the IPO share price (or $12.00 per shaie).warrants became exercisable on November 2@, 00 expire on November 20, 20
The stock warrants were issued in reliance on Reignl D promulgated under the Securities Act 0of3,3% amended.

On June 30, 2006, we issued an aggregatg 2,640 shares of our common stock to the 7&ekbiders of The Willdan Group of
Companies, Inc., a California corporation ("Willd@alifornia"). The shares were issued in conneatitgh the merger of Willdan California
into Willdan Group in order to effect its reincorption in the state of Delaware. The shares waieeid in reliance on Rule 145(a)(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Unless otherwise stated, the sales of log@securities were deemed by the Registrant exempt from registration under the
Securities Act in reliance upon Section 4(2) of 8eeurities Act as transactions by an issuer nativing any public offering. The purchasers
comprised a select group of our officers, diregtoranagers and service providers who, as a graye, had longstanding relationships with
and knowledge of our Company, our senior managearahbur board of directors. The purchasers wereighed financial and other
information concerning us and were allowed the opmity to ask questions and receive informatianfrus prior to making their investment
decisions. The purchasers represented their inteidi acquire the securities for investment purp@sel not with a view to sell or for sale in
connection with any distribution thereof. Basedluoa limited nature of the offering, the level ofdmledge and relationships of the purchasers
with us, the provision and access to informatiod #e restrictions on transfer, we believe ourriffgs satisfied the Section 4(2) exemption
of the Act.

I ssuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The financial data set forth below shoutdréad in conjunction with our corresponding coiasdéd financial statements and notes

thereto and Management's Discussion and Analydinaincial Condition and Results of Operationsudeld elsewhere in this annual report.

Consolidated Statement of Operations Datz
Contract revenu

Direct costs of contract revenue (exclusive of def@tion and amortization shown separatel

below):

Salaries and wagt
Subconsultant servict
Other direct cost

Total direct costs of contract rever

General and administrative expens
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes, employee bsi
Facilities and facility relate
Stocl-based compensatic
Depreciation and amortizatic
Lease abandonme
Impairment of goodwil
Litigation accrual (reversa
Other

Total general and administrative expen
(Loss) income from operatiol

Other income (expense
Interest incom:
Interest expens
Other, ne
Total other income (expens

(Loss) income before income tax expe

Income tax (benefit) expen
Net (loss) incomi

(Loss) earnings per common share, basic and d{tLit

Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic(1)
Diluted

S Corporation distributions paid per share

Pro Forma Data (unaudited)(2):

Pro forma provision for income tax

Pro forma net income (los

Pro forma earnings per common share, basic anted

Other Operating Data (unaudited):
Adjusted EBITDA(3)

Revenue per employee(

Employee headcount at period enc
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Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands except per share amounts)

$73,19( $78,79¢ $78,33¢ $67,26° $58,26:

21,99. 25,76¢ 24,60: 20,91¢ 15,62:
7,75C 4,600 4,16¢ 4,74t 6,08¢
2,97: 1568 1,49¢ 1,52¢ 1,49

32,71« 31,937 30,26¢ 27,19 23,20¢

24,43¢ 2506, 26,05 22,72( 19,71
4,80 4,546 4,046 3,481 3,267
214 20¢ 38 2,731 —
1,97¢ 1,747 158 1257 1,05¢
742 — — — —
14¢ — — —
—  1,04¢ (1,049 2,68¢ —
10,95: 11,727 10,35¢ 7,93t 6,92¢
43,27¢ 44,33¢ 41,02¢ 40,81¢ 30,95

(2,800 2,52 7,04 (745 4,09

312 69 13F 19 2
(33) 49¢ (779 (630) (272
(15)  (27) 2,33t (8) ®)
26 1,16F 1,691 (615 (279
(2,535 3,681 8,741 (1,360 3,81¢

(930) 1,54: 2,021 17 47
$(1,605$ 2,14< $ 6,72 $(1,381)$ 3,772

$ (0.29% 0.3($ 1.37$ (0.39$% 1.07

7,15¢  7,14¢ 4,90C 3,99¢ 3,65
7,16C 7,15C 4,90C 3,99¢ 3,65

$ 11€$ 0.4€3$ 0.3C

$ 259 $ 54¢$ 1,52¢
$ 6,14F $(1,919$ 2,291
$ 1.25% (0.49$ 0.62

$ 68%532% 7,65]% 59518% 5,16
$ 13:$ 132¢$ 131$ 12t$ 11¢
55C 62€ 67C 59¢ 50¢
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Fiscal Year Ended
January 2, December 26 December 2¢ December 3C December 31

2009 2007 2006 2005 2004
Consolidated Balance Sheet Datz
Cash and cash equivalel $ 814« ¢ 1551 $ 20,63 $ 3,066 $ 26€
Working capital 19,82( 30,17: 26,72 9,42¢ 7,19t
Total asset 47,57( 48,22¢ 57,10¢ 32,79 23,22:
Total indebtednes 394 1,547 1,632 1,85¢ 3,54:
Total redeemable common stc — — — 14,66( 11,477
Total stockholders' equi 34,33¢ 35,65: 33,26¢ — —

(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

()

Per share amounts have been adjusted for a staickedd paid on January 1, 2005 of three sharesaur outstanding share.

Prior to our initial public offering in November @6, we were taxed as an S Corporation for purpokgsieral and state income tax
As a result of that offering, our S Corporatiortgsaerminated and we are now taxed as a C Corponander federal and state tax
laws. The pro forma data reflects combined fedmnal state income taxes on a pro forma basis as ifad been taxed as a C
Corporation during those periods using an effedixerate of 40%.

Adjusted EBITDA is a supplemental measure useduryntanagement to measure our operating performévealefine Adjusted
EBITDA as net income plus net interest expens@nmetax expense (benefit), depreciation and anatidiz, goodwill impairment
expense, lease abandonment expense, loss (gaisa)esnof assets, accrued expenses related igadidih matter and a one-time
stock-based compensation expense recorded ingattai of our IPO, less proceeds from life insueapolicies carried on our former
chief executive officer. Our definition of Adjust&BITDA may differ from those of many companiesagng similarly named
measures. This measure should be considered iticadtti, and not as a substitute for or superipptber measures of financial
performance prepared in accordance with U.S. giyaecepted accounting principles, or GAAP, susloperating income and net
income. We believe Adjusted EBITDA enables managegrteseparate non-recurring income and expensssifeom our results of
operations to provide a more normalized and casrsistiew of operating performance on a period-toguebasis. We use Adjusted
EBITDA to evaluate our performance for, among othérgs, budgeting, forecasting and incentive camspton purposes. We also
believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful to investors,egasch analysts, investment bankers and lendersibedaremoves from our
operational results the impact of certain non-réngrincome and expense items, which may facilicaparison of our results from
period to period.

Adjusted EBITDA is not a recognized term under GAZiI does not purport to be an alternative to dimgrancome or net income as
an indicator of operating performance or any ofB8AP measure.

The following is a reconciliation of net incomeAdjusted EBITDA (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net loss (income $(1,605) $2,14¢ $6,72C $(1,381) $3,77:
Interest incom (319 (699 (13%) (19 (2)
Interest expens 33 (499) e 63C 272
Income tax (expense) bene (930) 1,54: 2,021 17 47
Lease abandonment expel 742 — — — —
Goodwill impairment 14¢ — — — —
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,97¢ 1,75t 1,58¢ 1,257 1,05¢
Loss (gain) on sale of ass: 15 27 (13) 24 18
Life insurance proceec — — (2,250 — —
Litigation accrua — 1,04¢ (1,049 2,68¢ —
Stocl-based compensation expense recorded in anticipaftioar IPC — — — 2,73 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 68 $532¢ $7,651 $50951 $5,16:

Reflects contract revenue, excluding revenue relet@eimbursement of subconsultants and othescdstided by the average
number of full-time equivalent employees during plegiod.

Includes full-time and part-time employees.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

We are a provider of outsourced servicesnall and mid-sized public agencies in Califorania other western states. Outsourcing
enables these agencies to provide a wide rangeeofadized services, without having to incur andmzdn the overhead necessary to develop
staffing in-house. We provide a broad range ofisess/to public agencies and to a lesser extenafarindustry, including:

. Civil Engineering;

. Building and Safety Services;

. Geotechnical Engineering;

. Energy Efficiency Consulting

. Financial and Economic Consulting; and

. Disaster Preparedness and Homeland Security.

We operate our business through a netwbdifices located throughout California and othexstern states and had a staff of 550 as of
January 2, 2009 that includes licensed engineerotrer professionals. We ranked 154 out of 50Qi&gign firms irEngineering News-
Record's2008 Design Survey. Our core clients are publicags in communities with populations ranging frd@000 to 300,000 people.
We believe communities of this size are undersebyeldrge outsourcing companies that tend to facusecuring large federal and state
projects, as well as projects for the private sedtte seek to establish close working relationshijib our public agency clients and, over
time, to expand the breadth and depth of the sesviee provide to them.

While we currently serve communities thrieogt the country, our business is concentratedalifdnia and neighboring states. We
provide services to approximately 60% of the 49i@siand over 60% of the 58 counties in Califorkiiée also serve special districts, school
districts, a range of public agencies, and to selesxtent, private industry.

Prior to our initial public offering in Newmber 2006, we were taxed as an S Corporationdiguoges of federal and state income taxes.
As a result of the offering, our S Corporation gsaierminated and we are now taxed as a C Corporatider federal and state tax laws. In
fiscal year 2006, we recognized a net deferrednmectax liability of $1.5 million resulting from thiermination of our S Corporation status.

Willdan Group, Inc. is a Delaware corpayatformed in 2006 for the purpose of effecting thi@corporation of The Willdan Group of
Companies, a California corporation, formed in 26®%erve as our holding company. The reincorpanatias completed effective June 30,
2006. We were founded over 40 years ago, and toolasist of a family of wholly owned companies thpérate within the following
segments for financial reporting purposes:

. Engineering ServicesOur Engineering Services segment includes theatipaes of our subsidiaries, Willdan Engineering,
Willdan Geotechnical, Willdan Energy Solutions, W#n Resource Solutions and Public Agency ResoRARS). These
businesses collectively provide engineering-relaggtices, geotechnical engineering services, enwiental engineering and
environmental related services and energy effigienater conservation, sustainability and renewahblergy services to public
agencies and, to a lesser extent, private induatiglitionally, PARs primarily provides staffing Willdan Engineering.
Willdan Engineering is our largest subsidiary andently represents our core business. Contraetma for the
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Engineering Services segment represented 78.3%Hiiélo of our consolidated contract revenue fofigyear 2008 and fiscal
year 2007, respectively.

. Public Finance ServicesOur Public Finance Services segment consistiseobtisiness of our subsidiary, Willdan Financial
Services, which offers financial and economic cdtireyi services to public agencies. Contract reveioug¢he Public Finance
Services segment represented 18.7% and 16.1% abosgplidated contract revenue for fiscal year 2008 fiscal year 2007,
respectively.

. Homeland Security ServiceOur Homeland Security Services segment consigteedusiness of our subsidiary, Willdan
Homeland Solutions, which offers homeland secunitgnagement consulting and public safety consu#tergices. Contract
revenue for our Homeland Security Services segmegmesented 3.0% and 2.2% of our consolidated @cintevenue for fiscal
year 2008 and fiscal year 2007, respectively.

Recent Developments

General economic conditions have recergflided due to a number of factors including sloaesnomic activity, a lack of available
credit, decreased consumer confidence and reduepdrate profits and capital spending. These camdithave led to a slowdown in
construction, particularly residential housing domstion, in the western United States. As a resiuthis slowdown, our engineering services
segment has suffered declines in revenue and werhade several workforce reductions in order gnalesources, primarily human capital,
to workload. Additionally, we have terminated andibandoned five facility leases, subleased pastadrtwo facilities and reduced the size
an additional facility lease in order to reducetso®/e believe that the reductions in workforce fauiity leases achieved through January 2,
2009 will be sufficient to align resources withdtg demand for our services. However, should tea@nic slowdown worsen, we will need
to evaluate further reductions in headcount anilitias in geographic areas that are underperfognifie will also continue to focus on
reducing discretionary expenditures and the efficgrocurement of necessary services.

Declining revenue resulting from the ecomaonditions discussed above also contributedstbayving two consecutive fiscal quarters
with net income after taxes of less than $1.00cWvkiolated one of the covenants in our revolvinedd agreement with Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association ("Wells Fargo") for the quartaded September 26, 2008. Wells Fargo agreeaiteevthis default for the quarter enc
September 26, 2008, but in connection with suclverawe amended the credit agreement to reducagtpeegate revolving loan commitme
from $10.0 million to $5.0 million and amend centfinancial covenants. For the year ended Janua2@@, we also failed to meet our
maximum net loss before tax covenant. In March 2008lls Fargo agreed to waive this default and ielate or modify certain financial
covenants in exchange for our agreement to casdtellize the commitment and increase pricing. fEnms of our amended credit
agreement are discussed in more detail below Uurdéerquidity and Capital Resources—Outstanding Intg@elness.” While we believe that
our cash on hand, cash generated by operatingt@stiand funds available under our amended cfadiiity with Wells Fargo will be
sufficient to finance our operating activities fbe next 12 months, if we do experience a cash floartage or violate the current terms of our
credit agreement, we may have difficulty obtainaulglitional funds on favorable terms, if at allti@ current credit market.

Components of Income and Expense
Contract Revenue

We enter into contracts with our clientattbontain three principal types of pricing prowiss: fixed price, time-and-materials and unit-
based. Contract revenue on our fixed price corgriact
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determined on the percentage-of-completion metfasath generally on the ratio of direct costs inauteedate to estimated total direct costs
at completion. Many of our fixed price contracts eglatively short in duration, thereby lowering tlisks of not properly estimating the
percent complete. Revenue on our time-and-mateaxrasunit-based contracts are recognized as thie iwperformed in accordance with
specific terms of the contract. Approximately haflbur contracts are based on contractual ratehq@arplus costs incurred. Some of these
contracts include maximum contract prices, butntiagority of these contracts are not expected teed¢he maximum.

Adjustments to contract cost estimateswade in the periods in which the facts requiringhsievisions become known. When the
revised estimate indicates a loss, such loss igqed for currently in its entirety. Claims revengeecognized only upon resolution of the
claim. Change orders in dispute are evaluatedaass! Costs related to unpriced change ordersxg@ensed when incurred and recognitio
the related contract revenue is based on an ei@iuaitthe probability of recovery of the coststiEgted profit is recognized for unpriced
change orders if realization of the expected pofcine change order is assured beyond a reasodable.

Direct Costs of Contract Revenue

Direct costs of contract revenue consisharily of that portion of technical and nontectalisalaries and wages that has been incurt
connection with revenue producing projects. Dists of contract revenue also include productigperses, subconsultant services and
other expenses that are incurred in connection iithnue producing projects. Direct costs of cattravenue exclude depreciation and
amortization, that portion of technical and nontechl salaries and wages related to marketing tsffeacations, holidays and other time not
spent directly generating revenue under existingrests. Such costs are included in general andréstnative expenses. Additionally,
payroll taxes, bonuses and employee benefit cosllifof our personnel are included in general aduhinistrative expenses since no
allocation of these costs is made to direct cost®otract revenue. No allocation of facilities t0s made to direct costs of contract revenue
nor is depreciation and amortization allocatediteal costs. We expense direct costs of contrastmee when incurred.

As a firm that provides multiple and diversutsourced services, we do not believe grossimar@ consistent or appropriate indicato
our performance and therefore we do not use thasare as construction contractors and other typesnsulting firms may. Other
companies may classify as direct costs of contex@nue some of the costs that we classify as geaed administrative expenses. As a
result, our direct costs of contract revenue maybeoccomparable to direct costs for other compaeidiser as a line item expense or as a
percentage of contract revenue.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses indbde&osts of the marketing and support stafferatiarketing expenses, management and
administrative personnel costs, payroll taxes, seswand employee benefits for all of our employaesthe portion of salaries and wages not
allocated to direct costs of contract revenuetiosé employees who provide our services. Genetaddministrative expenses also include
facility costs, depreciation and amortization, pasfional services, legal and accounting fees amihigtrative operating costs. Within gene
and administrative expenses, "Other" includes exgesuch as professional services, legal and atfileguoomputer costs, travel and
entertainment and marketing costs. We expense glearest administrative costs when incurred.

Until November 2006, we had not operated pablic company. As a public company, we havewificcontinue to incur significant
legal, accounting and other expenses that we dithnor as a private company, and we expect ouegrand administrative expenses to
increase as a result. Our management and othempeisneed to devote a substantial amount of tom@®mply with the requirements of be
a public company. Moreover, rules and regulati@mgfiblic companies have
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increased our legal and financial compliance castshas made some activities more time-consumidgastly.
Critical Accounting Policies

This discussion and analysis of financaidition and results of operations is based uparconsolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with generalgpaed accounting principles in the U.S., or GAAB.pfepare these financial statement
conformity with GAAP, we must make estimates arglagptions that affect the reported amounts of ass®l liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount @fme& and expenses in the reporting period. Ouabisults may differ from these
estimates. We have provided a summary of our sggmf accounting policies in Note 2 to our consatiéd financial statements included
elsewhere in this report. We describe below thasewnting policies that require material subjectiveomplex judgments and that have the
most significant impact on our financial conditiand results of operations. Our management evaltiades estimates on an ongoing basis,
based upon information currently available and arious assumptions management believes are reds@sabf the date of this report.

Contract Accounting

Applying the percentage-of-completion meklod recognizing revenue requires us to estimagarttlicated outcome of our long-term
contracts. We forecast such outcomes to the besirdfnowledge and belief of current and expectedgions and our expected course of
action. Differences between our estimates and bitgalts often occur resulting in changes to reggbrevenue and earnings. Such changes
could have a material effect on our future conséd financial statements.

Accounts receivable are carried at originabice amount less an estimate made for doubtfobunts based upon our review of all
outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. We deterthia allowance for doubtful accounts by identifytroubled accounts and by using
historical experience applied to an aging of actau@ur credit risk is minimal with governmentatigas. Account receivables are written
when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accowtmivable previously written off are recorded wheeeived. For further information on
the types of contracts under which we perform euvises, see "Business—Contract Structure" elsesvinethis report.

Goodwill

The Statement of Financial Accounting Stadd No. 142;Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetéSFAS No. 142) requires that we test
goodwill, at least annually, for possible impairmekccordingly, we complete our annual testing obdwill as of the last day of the first
month of our fourth fiscal quarter each year ted®ine whether there is impairment. In additiomto annual test, we regularly evaluate
whether events and circumstances have occurredndnaindicate a potential impairment of goodwille\ecognized impairment charges for
fiscal year 2008 related to our Homeland SecurégviBes reporting unit. Our Homeland Security Ssggireporting unit had no remaining
goodwill following this impairment charge. We didtrrecognize any impairment charges in fiscal yea67 and 2006.

We test our goodwill for impairment at tbeel of our reporting units, which are componenfteur operating segments. The reporting
units that have material amounts of goodwill aréldfdh Energy Solutions, which is part of our engirieg services segment, and Willdan
Financial Services, which constitutes our publ@afice services segment. The process of testingagibéat impairment involves the
determination of the fair value of the applicaldparting units. To estimate the fair value of @parting units, we have historically used an
income approach based on a multiple of historiaahdlows, management's estimates of future casisfand other market data. In fiscal y
2008, we
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expanded our methodology to include a market ambrbased upon multiples of EBITDA earned by similablic companies. For our fiscal
year 2008 annual impairment test, we weightedriberme approach and the market approach at 80%G#dr2spectively. The incon
approach was given a higher weight because it Inasra direct correlation to the specific econonuitthe reporting units than the market
approach, which is based on multiples of compathiats although comparable, may not provide the saimeof services as our reporting
units.

Once the fair value is determined, we tbempare the fair value of the reporting unit tocigsrying value, including goodwill. If the fair
value of the reporting unit is determined to be lkgn the carrying value, we perform an additi@sskessment to determine the extent of the
impairment based on the implied fair value of goiidvoempared with the carrying amount of the gooltlvim the event that the current
implied fair value of the goodwill is less than tteerying value, an impairment charge is recognized

Inherent in such fair value determinatians significant judgments and estimates, includignot limited to assumptions about our
future revenue, profitability and cash flows, opeational plans and our interpretation of curemtdnomic indicators and market valuations.
To the extent these assumptions are incorrectanagnic conditions that would impact the future @iens of our reporting units change,
goodwill may be deemed to be impaired, and an impait charge could result in a material adversecefin our financial position or results
of operation. For example, if we experienced a Hafrease in the fair value of each of our reportinigs that have goodwill from that
determined during our 2008 annual impairment tgstive would require an impairment charge of apprately $0.3 million.

Accounting for Claims Against the Company

We record liabilities to claimants for padite and estimable claims on our consolidated lbalaheet, which is included in accrued
liabilities, and record a corresponding receivdlden our insurance company for the portion of tlens that is probable of being covered by
insurance, which is included in other receivablése estimated claim amount net of the amount estidit@ be recoverable from the insure
company is included in our general and administea¢ixpenses. Determining probability and estimatiagn amounts is highly judgmental.
Initial accruals and any subsequent changes irstimates could have a material effect on our dafeded financial statements.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the ipels indicated, certain information derived front consolidated statements of operations
expressed as a percentage of contract revenue. ®smmay not add to the totals due to rounding.

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Statement of Operations Data:
Contract revenu 100.% 100.(% 100.(%
Direct costs of contract revenue (exclusive of detion and amortization shown separately bel
Salaries and wagt 30.C 32.7 31.4
Subconsultant servict 10.€ 5.8 B2
Other direct cost 41 2.C 1.¢
Total direct costs of contract rever 447 40.5 38.¢€
General and administrative expens
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes, employee bsi 33.4 31.¢ 33.:
Facilities and facility relate 6.€ 5.€ 5.2
Stocl-based compensatic 0.2 0.2 —
Depreciation and amortizatic 2.7 2.2 2.C
Lease abandonme 1.C —
Impairment of goodwil 0.2 — —
Litigation accrual (reversa — 1.3 2.3
Other 15.C 14.¢ 13.2
Total general and administrative expen 59.1 56.:2 52.4
(Loss) income from operatiol (3.9 3.2 9.C
Other income (expense
Interest incomi 0.4 0.€ 0.2
Interest expens — 0.€ (2.0
Other, ne — — 3.C
Total other income (expense), | 0.4 1.t 2.2
(Loss) income before income tax expe (3.5 4.7 11.2
Income tax (benefit) expen 1.3 2.C 2.€
Net (loss) incom 22% 2.7% 8.6%

Fiscal Year 2008 Compared to Fiscal Year 2007

Contract revenue. Our contract revenue was $73.2 million for fiseal year ended January 2, 2009, with $57.3 amilkttributable to
the Engineering Services segment and $13.7 midittbutable to the Public Finance Services segnt@uat Homeland Security Services
segment generated $2.2 million during this peri@ansolidated contract revenue decreased $5.6 mitin7.1%, from $78.8 million in the
fiscal year ended December 28, 2007. This decwaseadue primarily to a decrease of $7.1 million110%, in contract revenue of the
Engineering Service segment, offset by increas&d @ million, or 7.9%, and $0.5 million, or 29.4% contract revenue of the Public
Finance Services and Homeland Security Servicanesets, respectively. Our revenue for fiscal year

34




Table of Contents
2008 also includes $7.8 million of revenue sinaeeJ2008 from Willdan Energy Solutions, which we @oed in June 2008.

Contract revenue of the Engineering Ses/g@gment has been significantly impacted by tleérein the California residential housing
market and state and local government budget Butsurce of revenue in our Engineering Servicesmeay is fees assessed for building
permits. Since the second half of fiscal 2007, aechexperienced reductions in revenue from theselecause of the continuing slowdown
in residential construction in the western Unitedt&s. The $7.1 million decrease in contract reedouthe Engineering Services segment is
net of $7.8 million of revenue recognized by Wildanergy Solutions following our acquisition of W&n Energy Solutions in June 2008.
Our Public Finance Services business, specifichflirict administration projects, tends to run dewrcyclical to the residential housing
market. Revenue in the Public Finance Services sagimcreased primarily due to increased distoomfation services to fund infrastructure
projects as well as increased delinquency managesaerices in our district administration servid@svenue in the Homeland Security
Services segment has increased due to an increase €émergency response training courses, patlgih Southern California.
Additionally, our Homeland Security Services seghteas expanded its service offerings beyond itdittcanal training services to include
training exercises and management consulting sssvic

Direct costs of contract revenue Direct costs of contract revenue was $32.7ionilfor the fiscal year ended January 2, 2009, with
$27.8 million attributable to the Engineering Sees segment and $3.7 million attributable to theliedrinance Services segment. The
additional $1.2 million is attributable to direaigts of contract revenue for our Homeland Sec@égvices segment. Direct costs of contract
revenue increased $0.8 million, or 2.5%, from $3tilfion for the fiscal year ended December 28, 200f this total increase, direct costs of
contract revenue increased $0.1 million, or 0.3%he Engineering Services segment and $0.4 milboi1.7%, in the Public Finance
Services segment. The remaining $0.3 million inseeaas attributable to the Homeland Security Sesvgegment. The increase in direct
costs of contract revenue for our Engineering $es/segment is primarily due to increased salatycansultant and other direct costs related
to Willdan Energy Solutions which we acquired img2008, offset by decreases in direct salary @ustsss other areas of the segment.
Increases in direct costs of contract revenue ioiRublic Finance Services and Homeland Securityi&es segments were primarily the
result of the increased volume of activity thatgyated the increased contract revenue previousbudsed for these operating segments.
Direct costs of contract revenue as a percentagertdfact revenue for the fiscal year ended Jan2a2p09 increased to 44.7% from 40.5%
for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2007, pilynbecause contract revenue in our Engineeringies segment decreased at a higher
rate than the direct costs of contract revenuéattble to this segment.

Within direct costs of contract revenudasas and wages decreased to 30.0% of contraehtevfor the fiscal year ended January 2,
2009 from 32.7% for the fiscal year ended Decen2iBe2007. Comparing those same periods, subconsshkavices increased to 10.6% of
contract revenue from 5.8% of contract revenuecBnsultant costs increased primarily due to ouussitipn of Willdan Energy Solutions
which utilizes a higher percentage of subconsudtdmn our other subsidiaries.

General and administrative expensegseneral and administrative expenses decreasil.bh million, or 2.3%, to $43.2 million for the
fiscal year ended January 2, 2009 from $44.3 milfar the fiscal year ended December 28, 2007.$h& million decrease in general and
administrative expenses primarily relates to dexgsdn salaries and wages, payroll taxes and emplognefits and other general and
administrative expenses. The reduction in emplaogéged costs primarily resulted from reductionbéadcount and cost control measures.
The reduction in other general and administratikgeases related to cost control measures and fedsdh professional service costs
primarily related to the legal costs incurred dgriiscal year 2007 for the settlement of the Wesll\rvood litigation and lower professional
fees during fiscal year 2008 as compared to figeat 2007
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primarily because we had to comply with Section d0the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the first time iscfal year 2007. The decreases in general
and administrative expenses were partially offgehbreases of $0.3 million in amortization of arqd intangibles related to Willdan Energy
Solutions, $0.7 million of lease abandonment casts $0.1 million of goodwill impairments. Fiscalaye2007 general and administrative
expenses also included a $1.0 million litigationraal for the West Hollywood litigation.

Lease abandonment expense includes futatalrobligations and other costs associated wikdd space that is no longer utilized by us
or sublease tenants.

As discussed above under "—Componentsaufrie and ExpenseBirect Costs of Contract Revenue," we do not atiethat portion o
salaries and wages not related to time spent tlirgeherating revenue to direct costs of contracenue.

(Loss) income from operations.As a result of the above factors, loss fromrapens was $2.8 million for the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2009 as compared to income from opesatb$2.5 million for the fiscal year ended Decem®8, 2007. (Loss) income from
operations as a percentage of contract revenuealsm to (3.8)% for the fiscal year ended Janua2@, from 3.2% for the fiscal year
ended December 28, 2007.

Other income (expense).Other income, net, decreased by $0.9 milliery, 3%, to $0.3 million in the fiscal year endesJdary 2,
2009 from $1.2 million of income in the fiscal yearded December 28, 2007. This was due primari(i) @ndecrease in interest income of
$0.4 million resulting primarily from a reduction average invested balances due to the purchas@ldan Energy Solutions, and (ii) an
increase in interest expense of $0.5 million relgtemarily to the inclusion in fiscal year 2007afeversal of $0.6 million of accrued interest
related to the West Hollywood litigation that wadtled without payment of interest.

Income tax (benefit) expenselncome tax benefit was $0.9 million for thecfibyear ended January 2, 2009, as compared tmmtax
expense of $1.5 million for the fiscal year endest®nber 28, 2007.

Net (loss) income. As a result of the above factors, our net leas $1.6 million for the fiscal year ended Janugrg009, compared to
net income of $2.1 million for the fiscal year edd@ecember 28, 2007.

Fiscal Year 2007 Compared to Fiscal Year 2006

Contract revenue. Our contract revenue was $78.8 million for disgear ended December 28, 2007, with $64.4 miliitiributable to
the Engineering Services segment and $12.7 miflttibutable to the Public Finance Services segn@at Homeland Security Services
segment generated $1.7 million during this per@ansolidated contract revenue increased $0.5 mjlbo 0.6%, from $78.3 million in the
fiscal year ended December 29, 2006. This increasedue primarily to an increase of $1.2 million;16.3%, and $0.8 million, or 82.0%, in
contract revenue of the Public Finance ServicesHordeland Security Services segments, respectioébet by a decrease of $1.5 million,
or 2.3%, in contract revenue of the Engineering/i8es segment. Revenue in the Public Finance Sendgegment increased primarily due to
increased district formation services to fund isfracture projects as well as increased delinquemmyagement services in our district
administration services. Revenue in Homeland Sic8grvices has increased due to an increase iamargency response training courses,
particularly in Southern California. Our EngineegriBervices segment decline was due in part toltiwedswn in residential housing
construction in the western United States. A soofaevenue in our Engineering Services segmeiieieis assessed for building permits. In
latter part of fiscal year 2006 and throughoutdisear 2007, we experienced a reduction in revémume these fees because of the downturn
in the housing market.

36




Table of Contents

Direct costs of contract revenue Direct costs of contract revenue was $31.9onilfor the fiscal year ended December 28, 200% wi
$27.7 million attributable to the Engineering Seed segment and $3.4 million attributable to theliedrinance Services segment. The
additional $0.8 million is attributable to direasts of contract revenue for our Homeland Sec@&éyvices segment. Direct costs of contract
revenue increased $1.7 million, or 5.6%, from $30illon for the fiscal year ended December 29,&00f this total increase, direct costs of
contract revenue increased $0.8 million, or 2.6%he Engineering Services segment and $0.6 milbo21.4%, in the Public Finance
Services segment. The remaining $0.3 million inseeaas attributable to the Homeland Security Sesviegment. Direct costs of contract
revenue as a percentage of contract revenue fdistted year ended December 28, 2007 increasefl.&%gfrom 38.6% for the fiscal year
ended December 29, 2006, primarily because ouctdists of contract revenue increased withoutreesponding increase in our revenue.
This is due in part to higher levels of non-sakded wages costs which are passed through tdaschén lower mark-up than salaries and
wages.

Within direct costs of contract revenudasas and wages increased to 32.7% of contraetma for the fiscal year ended December 28,
2007 from 31.4% for the fiscal year ended Decen2Be2006. Comparing those same periods, subconsshkavices increased to 5.8% of
contract revenue from 5.3% of contract revenue.

General and administrative expensegseneral and administrative expenses increag&a 13 million, or 8.1%, to $44.3 million for the
fiscal year ended December 28, 2007 from $41.0anifor the fiscal year ended December 29, 2006 Was due primarily to increases of
$3.1 million and $0.2 million in general and admstrative expenses of the Engineering Services amddthnd Security Services segments,
respectively. General and administrative expensethe Public Finance Services segment and unaidarporate expenses remained flat.
The Engineering Services segment increase inclad2s0 million change in our litigation accrualaasesult of the $1.0 million charge in
fiscal year 2007 for reversal of the $1.0 milli@tovery of a prior indemnity claim recorded durfisgal year 2006. Also included in our
general and administrative expenses are the cesteiated with management changes in the fiscalereded December 28, 2007. These
costs resulted in an increase of approximately 80ln in expenses for the payment of severamzka@her employee benefits. Overall,
general and administrative expenses as a perceotagatract revenue increased to 56.3% in thafigear ended December 28, 2007 from
52.4% in the fiscal year ended December 29, 2006.

The increases in general and administraiyeenses also resulted from (i) an increase afoappately $1.4 million, or 13.2%, in other
general and administrative expenses, which inclé@e$ million of legal fees related to the settlamnaf the West Hollywood litigation and
(i) an increase of $1.5 million related to incredsosts associated with being a public compamuhath $0.5 million related to costs
associated with compliance with Section 404 ofSaebanes-Oxley Act. The balance includes additiandit and legal fees and Board of
Director fees. Additionally, approximately $0.4 haih of the increase to other general and admatist expenses resulted from increased
insurance premiums, computer expenses and othesr aesociated with our increase in contract revefiset by decreases in marketing
expenses, bad debt expenses and other expenggzaXienately $0.9 million.

As discussed above under "—Componentsaufrie and ExpenseBirect Costs of Contract Revenue," we do not atiethat portion o
salaries and wages not related to time spent tlirgeherating revenue to direct costs of contracenue.

Income from operations. As a result of the above factors, income frqgrarations was $2.5 million for the fiscal year eshde
December 28, 2007 as compared to $7.0 millionHerfiscal year ended December 29, 2006. Income &penations as a percentage of
contract revenue, decreased to 3.2% in the fiseal gnded December 28, 2007 from 9.0% in the paar period.
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Other income (expense).Other income (expense), net, decreased byrdillibn, or 31.4%, to $1.2 million of income in tfiscal year
ended December 28, 2007 from $1.7 million of incomthe fiscal ended December 29, 2006. This deer@as primarily due to $2.3 millic
of life insurance proceeds received in 2006 asaltref the death of our former chief executivaadf in May 2006, partially offset by a
decrease in interest expense of approximately ®illi®n primarily as a result of (i) the reversdl®0.6 million of accrued interest payable
associated with the West Hollywood litigation satikent and (ii) an increase in interest income pfaxmately $0.5 million from invested
initial public offering proceeds.

Income tax expense.Effective as of the first day of trading of asommon stock, November 21, 2006, the S Corporatiatus of our
Company and the "qualified S subsidiary" statuswfsubsidiaries terminated and thereafter we webgect to federal and state income taxes
as a C Corporation. Thus we were taxed at reguolgrocate rates during the fiscal year ended Dece2®e2007 and the income tax expense
for fiscal year 2007 and 2006 is not comparable.

Net income. As a result of the above factors, our net ineamas $2.1 million for the fiscal year ended Decen#8, 2007, compared
net income of $6.7 million for the fiscal year edd@ecember 29, 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of January 2, 2009, we had $8.1 milikdrcash and cash equivalents. Our primary sourtkguidity are cash generated from
operations and borrowings under our revolving bieredit. We believe that our cash on hand, castemted by operating activities and
funds available under our credit facility will befficient to finance our operating activities fdrl@ast the next 12 months.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activitiesre $3.5 million for fiscal year 2008 compared&sh flows used in operating activities of
$0.3 million for fiscal year 2007 and cash flowsyided by operating activities of $6.3 million fiiscal year 2006. The cash flows provided
by operating activities in fiscal year 2008 werenparatively higher than in fiscal year 2007 duenariily to increased collection of accounts
receivable and the payment of accrued liabilitedated to the West Hollywood litigation accruedigtal year 2007, net of amounts paid for
by our insurance company. These increases weralpadffset by decreases related to the net Insarred in fiscal year 2008 compared to
net income earned in fiscal year 2007. In the 208od, net cash provided by operating activitreguded $2.3 million of life insurance
proceeds received as a result of the death ofavordr chief executive officer in May 2006.

Cash Flows from I nvesting Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities &8B.5 million for fiscal year 2008 compared to%thillion for fiscal year 2007 and
$2.9 million for fiscal year 2006. The increasesésh used in investing activities for fiscal ye@02 over fiscal year 2007 resulted primarily
from $10.2 million used by the acquisition of Wald Energy Solutions, partially offset by cash pded by net sales of liquid investments.
The decrease of cash used in investing activitiefigcal year 2007 over fiscal year 2006 resuftgoharily from the decrease in expenditures
for equipment and leasehold improvements, partiffiyet by an increase of net purchases of ligm@$tments. Fiscal year 2006 included
higher than historical levels of equipment and édadd improvements purchases due to the establighoh@ew office locations and the
relocation of existing office facilities, includirmur corporate offices.
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Cash flows used in financing activities &&d.4 million for fiscal year 2008 compared totclisws used in financing activities of
$2.9 million for fiscal year 2007 and cash flowsyided by financing activities $14.2 million fos@ial year 2006. The decrease of cash used
in financing activities for fiscal year 2008 ovésdal year 2007 resulted primarily from the fisgahr 2007 payment of $3.2 million in
distributions to holders of our redeemable comntonks partially offset by an increase in net paytaef notes payable of $1.1 million. The
fiscal year 2007 distribution was our final S cagtn distribution to our stockholders and we utetlproceeds from our initial public
offering to pay this amount. We will not make a géndistribution in the future because we canargker elect to be treated as an
S corporation. The net change between fiscal y2@0F and 2006 for cash from financing activitie$15.2 million, which is primarily the
result of net proceeds of $20.4 million receivedisaal 2006 from the sale of stock in our initiblic offering and the exercise of the
overallotment option, partially offset by a decreea$ $2.3 million in distributions paid to holdeysour redeemable common stock.

Outstanding I ndebtedness

We currently have a revolving line of ctedith Wells Fargo Bank, National Association ("WgéeFargo™), which was amended on
March 30, 2009. We have also financed, from timent@, insurance premiums by entering into unsatuames payable with insurance
companies. During our annual insurance renewalsariourth quarter of our fiscal year ended Jan@a®009, we elected not to finance our
insurance premiums for the upcoming fiscal year.

Under the terms of our credit agreementWiells Fargo, we can borrow up to $5.0 millionnfrtime to time (as may be limited by the
covenants in the credit agreement as discussedpefpto and until January 1, 2010. Loans made wtiaerevolving line of credit will
accrue interest at either (i) the floating rateada the prime rate in effect from time to time(iby the fixed rate of 1.75% above LIBOR, at
our election. For prime rate loans, the interet véll be adjusted when each prime rate changg&ypank is announced and becomes
effective. There were no outstanding borrowingseuntis agreement as of January 2, 2009.

Borrowings under the credit agreement aceised by all of our accounts receivable and atlyéts to payment, general intangibles,
inventory and equipment, including those of ourssdilaries. In addition, borrowings under the credjteement are secured by investment
property we hold in a securities account at Wedlggp that must at all times have a collateral valuat least $5.0 million. Each of our
subsidiaries (except Public Agency Resources anidiaii Resource Solutions) has signed an unconditigmaranty of our obligations under
the agreements.
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The credit agreement contains customamesgmtations and affirmative covenants, includingwenant to maintain a tangible net worth
of at least $18.0 million at all times. Tangible m@rth is defined in the credit agreement as diotders' equity less intangible assets and
loans or advances to, or investments in, any rlatities or individuals. As of January 2, 2009, tangible net worth as defined under our
credit agreement was $21.8 million(1).

1) At January 2, 2009, we were required to maintaengible net worth of at least $20.0 million. Thevenant was amended on March 30, 2009 and we arently required to
maintain a tangible net worth of at least $18.0iaril Tangible net worth is a supplemental measised in our credit agreement. If we do not maintaigible net worth of at
least $18.0 million, Wells Fargo could choose toederate any loans then outstanding under theitfaoil refuse to make additional loans to us urnttlerfacility. Management
therefore believes that presentation of tangibtenweth as defined in the credit agreement is Ugefinvestors because it helps them understanddwwangible net worth
compares to the financial covenant contained incoedit agreement and whether we are close totinglauch covenant. Management also reviews ta@giét worth to ensure it
will continue to have access to its financing sesrcTangible net worth is defined in the credileagnent as the "aggregate of total stockholderstyelgss any intangible assets
and less any loans or advances to, or investmengy related entities or individuals." This défon of tangible net worth may differ from thosemany companies reporting
similarly named measures. This measure should bgidered in addition to, and not as a substitut@fsuperior to, other measures of financial penfance prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accoumptimgiples, or GAAP, such as stockholders' equigngible net worth is not a recognized term und&A8 and does not
purport to be an alternative to stockholders' goast an indicator of net worth or any other GAAPaswge.

The following is a reconciliation of stockholdees{uity to tangible net worth:

Year Ended
January 2, 200¢
Stockholders' equit $  34,336,00
Goodwill and other intangibles, n (12,512,00)
Related party loans, advances or investm —
Tangible net wort! $ 21,824,000

Prior to the amendment of the credit ages@nm March 2009, the credit agreement contaimglitianal financial covenants, including
minimum net income and maximum net loss covendsliscussed above in "—Recent Developments,” wadbred our minimum net
income covenant for the quarter ended Septembe2@®® and, in exchange for Wells Fargo's waivehisf breach, we amended our credit
agreement in December 2008 to reduce the amouitableaunder the facility from $10.0 million to $bmillion and to revise the financial
covenants under the facility. We also breachedmaximum net loss covenant for the year ended Jgrj&009 by sustaining net losses
before taxes greater than $1.0 million. In MarcB20Nells Fargo waived this breach and eliminatechodified certain financial covenants
in the credit agreement in exchange for increasiethg and additional collateral being provided.

The credit agreement also includes custpmegative covenants, including a covenant thatipits the incurrence of additional
indebtedness by us or our subsidiaries other thachpse money indebtedness not to exceed $2.@mdhd indebtedness existing on the
of the credit agreement, and a covenant that pitstplayment of dividends on our stock and redemgtioepurchases or other acquisitions of
our stock; provided that we can repurchase stothk an aggregate fair market value up to $5.0 nmllimany calendar year. In addition, the
credit agreement includes customary events of ttefana credit facility. Upon a default, the inésst rate will be increased by a default rate
margin of 4.0%. Upon the occurrence of an evewtedéult under the credit agreement, including atieof any of the covenants discussed
above, Wells Fargo has the option to make any ltd@rs outstanding under the credit agreement imaelgidue and payable and is no
longer obligated to extend further credit to usemttie credit agreement.

40




Table of Contents
Contractual obligations

We have certain cash obligations and atbermitments which will impact our short- and lomgrh liquidity. At January 2, 2009, such
obligations and commitments consisted of long-tdeht, operating leases and capital leases. Thmniolf table sets forth our contractual
obligations as of January 2, 2009:

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3Years 3 -5 Years 5 Years
Long term debt(1 $ 1,070,000 $1,053,000 $ 17,000 $ — 3 —
Operating lease 14,596,000 4,043,000 6,580,000 3,246,000 727,00(
Capital lease 444,00( 240,00( 197,00( 7,00(C —

Total contractual cash obligatic $16,110,00 $5,336,000 $6,794,000 $3,253,000 $727,00(

@ Long-term debt includes principal and interest pagta under our debt agreements assuming no adaditbenrowings or principal
payments and includes purchase price payable 608000 related to our purchase of Willdan Energlt®ns.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accoun8tendards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 1Bb@ir Value Measurement{SFAS 157)
which defines fair value, establishes a frameworknfieasuring fair value and expands disclosureatdh® value measurements. We adoy
SFAS 157 on the first day of fiscal year 2008 dreldadoption did not have a material effect on marfcial statements and disclosures.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS™®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and &mtial Liabilities—Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. J(SFAS 159). SFAS 159 provides companies with afoofgb measure, at specified election dates,
many financial instruments and certain other itet&ir value that are not currently measured iatviue. A company that adopts SFAS 159
will report unrealized gains and losses on itermavioich the fair value option has been electedaimimgs at each subsequent reporting date.
SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and digelosguirements designed to facilitate comparid@te/een entities that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of assedisliabilities. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscadars beginning after November 15, 2007.
provisions of SFAS 159 are elective, and througtudey 2, 2009, we had not elected to adopt SFASd5&8ny of our financial assets and
liabilities.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMG. (revised 2007)Business Combination§SFAS 141R). SFAS 141R establishes the
principles and requirements for how an acquir@mreggognizes and measures in its financial statésrtbe identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling intereghe acquiree; (ii) recognizes and measuregttoelwill acquired in the business
combination or a gain from a bargain purchase,(gijdletermines what information to disclose table users of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of tharmss combination. SFAS 141R makes significanb@és to existing accounting practices
for acquisitions. Under SFAS 141R, adjustment$iéoacquired entity's deferred tax assets and wicdex position balances occurring
outside the measurement period are recorded amporent of the income tax expense, rather thanwiipadhich nullifies EITF 93-7,
Uncertainties Related to Income Taxes in a Purcligasgness Combinatio(EITF 93-7). This requirement applies to all busime
combinations regardless of consummation date. SEAR applies prospectively to business combinatifamavhich the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual reipor period on or after December 15, 2008, excepttfe transition provisions of EITF 93-7.
We
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adopted SFAS 141R on January 3, 2009 and this diaffect on our financial statements. We will rdeage the impact, if any, that
SFAS 141R will have on future business combinations

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 14ZEtermination of the Useful Life of Intangible Ass'(FSP 142-3). FSP 142-3 amends the
factors that should be considered in developingwet or extension assumptions used to determinagéil life of a recognized intangible
asset under SFAS No. 143podwill and Other Intangible Asset&ESP 142-3 will be effective for fiscal years breing after December 15,
2008. We are currently assessing the effect of 3 on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. I8he Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountingieiples"(SFAS 162), which
identifies the sources of accounting principles pravides a framework, or hierarchy, for selecting principles to be used in preparing
U.S. GAAP financial statements for nongovernmeatdities. SFAS 162, effective November 15, 2008esghe hierarchy explicitly and
directly applicable to preparers of financial sta¢mts. This recognizes the preparers' respongBilior selecting the accounting principles
their financial statements. We do not believe thatadoption of SFAS 162 will have a material dffac our consolidated financial stateme

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss to futurareings, to fair values or to future cash flows thay result from changes in the price of a
financial instrument. The value of a financial msbhent may change as a result of changes in intextes, exchange rates, commodity prices,
equity prices and other market changes. Marketisisittributed to all market risk sensitive finaddnstruments, including long-term debt.

As a result of our initial public offeringie had cash and cash equivalents of $8.1 millsoofdanuary 2, 2009. This amount includes
$0.4 million invested in the Wells Fargo Stage Co8weep Investment Account, $6.0 million investethe Wells Fargo Money Market
Mutual Fund and $0.6 million invested in the Wéllrgo Advantage Heritage Fund. Although these tnvests are subject to variable
interest rates, we do not believe we are subjesigtaficant market risk for these short-term inwvesnts.

We do not engage in trading activities dodhot participate in foreign currency transactionstilize derivative financial instruments.
Additionally, as of January 2, 2009, we did notdawny outstanding debt under our revolving creatitlity that bears interest at variable or
fixed rates.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

The financial statements and related fir@ncformation, as listed under Item 15, appeaa separate section of this annual report
beginning on page F-1.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no changes in and/or disagretméth accountants on accounting and financiatld&ire during the year ended January 2,
20009.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procesldefined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchandeasocontrols and other procedures that
are designed to ensure that information requirdzbtdisclosed by the issuer in the reports tHded or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported yvtfthitime periods specified in the SEC's rulesfams. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controlgigarocedures designed to ensure that informatiguired to be disclosed in the reports that
we file or submit under the Securities Exchangeisetccumulated and communicated to our managemnehiding our President and Chief
Executive Officer, Thomas Brisbin, and our Chieidicial Officer, Kimberly Gant, as appropriate tiow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

In connection with the preparation of tAisnual Report, an evaluation was performed undestipervision and with the participation of
management, including the Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, of the effectivenessoof disclosure controls and procedures.
Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer concluded that oiscthsure controls and procedures were
effective as of January 2, 2009.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlisand maintaining adequate control over finanegbrting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ae®nthternal control over financial reporting ip@cess to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of our financial repouifior external purposes in accordance with accagnirinciples generally accepted in the
United States. Because of its inherent limitatiom®rnal control over financial reporting is notended to provide absolute assurance that a
misstatement of our financial statements would feegnted or detected. Our management assesseffettéveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of January 2, 2009mkking this assessment, our management used tagacset forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg€dSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Frameworkr @anagement has concluded
that, as of January 2, 2009, our internal contvelrdinancial reporting was effective based on ¢herdteria.
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This annual report does not include arstdten report of the Company's registered puldaoanting firm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management's report watssaibject to attestation by the Company's regigteublic accounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Cissiom that permit the company to provide only ngmaent's report in this annual
report.

Changes in Internal Controls

Based on our evaluation carried out in ed@oce with SEC Rule 15d-15(b) under the supemiaitd with the participation of our
management, including our President and Chief BreeOfficer and our Chief Financial Officer, wertduded that there were no changes
during the fourth fiscal quarter of 2008 of oureimtal controls over financial reporting that havatenially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal controls over firgad reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item is@mporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@drStatement for its 2009 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2008 fiscat.ye

We have posted our Code of Ethical Condunabur websitewww.willdan.com under the heading "Investors—Corporate Governance
The Code of Ethical Conduct applies to our Chie¢gxive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Upaquest, we will provide any person
with a copy of the Code of Ethical Conduct. Seertitl. Business—Auvailable Information."

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@drStatement for its 2009 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2008 fiscat.ye

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is@mporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@drStatement for its 2009 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2008 fiscat.ye

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@#rStatement for its 2009 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2008 fiscat.ye

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item isdmporated by reference to Willdan Group, Inc.@#rStatement for its 2009 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 1@4ys after the end of the Company's 2008 fiscat.ye
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

(@  The following documents are filed as part of tkEpart:

1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Wald Group, Inc. and report of independent auditoesrecluded in Item 8 of this annual report
and submitted in a separate section beginning ga pal:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 2, 2tD®acember 28, 20( F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheofiscal years in the thr-year period ended January 2, 2( F-3
Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Common atatstockholders' Equity for each of the fiscalrgea the three-year period
ended January 2, 20! F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheofiscal years in the thr-year period ended January 2, 2( F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-6
2. Financial Statements Schedules

All required schedules are omitted becdleg are not applicable or the required informatsoshown in the financial statements or the
accompanying notes.

3. Exhibits
The exhibits filed as part of this annwegart are listed in Item 15(b).
(b)  Exhibits.
The following exhibits are filed as a pefthis report:

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 8, B§@nd among Willdan Group, Inc., Intergy Cogimm and the
Stockholders of Intergy Corporation(

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Willdan Group, Incndluding amendments thereto
3.2 Bylaws of Willdan Group, Inc.(2
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate for shares of the Reggiss Common Stock(:

4.2 The Company agrees to furnish to the SecuritiesEantiange Commission upon request a copy of eattuinent with respect
to issues of long-term debt of Willdan Group, land its subsidiaries, the authorized principal amad which does not exceed
10% of the consolidated assets of Willdan Group, &md its subsidiarie

10.1 Credit Agreement, dated December 28, 2007, betwdéidan Group, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, NatioAakociation, relating
to the Revolving Line of Credit Note in 10.6(

10.z First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated May®& between Willdan Group, Inc. and Wells FargalBaational
Association(4

10.2 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated JuB@0RB, between Willdan Group, Inc. and Wells FaBaok, National
Association(4
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.¢

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, entered oridecember 19, 2008, between Willdan Group, dnd. Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association(&

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, entered amdlarch 30, 2009, between Willdan Group, Inc. ¥ells Fargo Bank,
National Association’

Revolving Line of Credit Note for $5,000,000, dadMédrch 30, 2009, by Willdan Group, Inc. in favor\Wklls Fargo Bank,
National Association’

Security Agreement: Equipment, dated December @87 2between Willdan Group, Inc. and Wells FargolBaational
Association, relating to the Revolving Line of Citedote in 10.6(3]

Continuing Security Agreement: Rights to Paymemt Baventory, dated December 28, 2007, between Wfill@droup, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, relatinghie Revolving Line of Credit Note in 10.6(

Security Agreement: Securities Account, dated M&@h2009, between Willdan Group, Inc. and WellsggpaBank, National
Association, relating to the Revolving Line of Citedote in 10.6*

10.1¢T willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

10.11T Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement

10.1:T Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement(

10.1T Amended and Restated Willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Epg#icStock Purchase Plan

10.1<F willdan Group, Inc. 2008 Performance Incentive PTa

10.1:T Form of Indemnification Agreement between Willdaro@, Inc. and its Directors and Officers

10.1¢€

10.17

10.1¢

10.1¢

Office Lease by and between Spectrum Waples Streé€t, a California limited liability company, Speam Lambert
Plaza, LLC, a California limited liability compamnd The Willdan Group of Companies dated Octobe2@84 for the principal
office located at 2401 East Katella Avenue, Anah&alifornia(2)

First Amendment to Lease by and between 2401 katellC and The Willdan Group of Companies, dateldré&ary 27, 2006 fc
the principal office located at 2401 Katella Avendeaheim, California(2

Second Amendment to Lease by and between 2401l&dtelC and The Willdan Group of Companies dateddie, 2006 for
the principal office located at 2401 Katella AvenAeaheim, California(2

Warrant Agreement between Willdan Group, Inc. aneiish Morgan Securities Inc.|

10.2(T Indemnification Agreement between Willdan Groug;. land Linda Heil(2

10.21T Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Inal Zhomas D. Brisbin dated April 2, 2007

10.2:T Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Ind Kimberly D. Gant dated July 23, 2007

10.2:T Offer Letter from Willdan Group, Inc. to Daniel Ohalated October 29, 2008 and accepted Novembe0B(20)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
14.1 Code of Ethical Conduct of Willdan Group, Inc.

21.1 Subsidiaries of Willdan Group, Inc
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking*
24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature page g

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Secuixebange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to § 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002*

31.Zz Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securifiehange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to 8§ 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002*

32.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, éspded pursuant to 8§ 906 of
the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002*

* Filed herewith.
T Indicates a management contract or compensatimggplarrangement.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
June 9, 2008.

2 Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, InR&gistration Statement on Form S-1, filed with 8eeurities and Exchange
Commission on August 9, 2006, as amended (File388:136444).

3) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€.lsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
January 2, 2008.

4) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, InQtsarterly Report on Form 1Q; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on August 11, 2008.

(5) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
December 23, 2008.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, InArsmual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Secwitiand Exchange Commission
on March 27, 2007.

@) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit | to Willdamo@p, Inc.'s Proxy Statement, filed with the Setiesiand Exchange Commission
April 25, 2008.

(8) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
April 3, 2007.

9) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form R; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
July 26, 2007.

(10) Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€(srent Report on Form R; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia
December 17, 2008.
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SIGNATURES AND CERTIFICATIONS

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgrsil, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Agian, State of California, on April 2,
20009.

WILLDAN GROUP, INC.

/s KIMBERLY D. GANT

Kimberly D. Gant
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President
Date: April 2, 200¢

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT, thatleaerson whose signature appears below constantkappoints Kimberly D.
Gant his/her attorney-in-fact, with the power dbstitution, for him/her in any and all capacitigssign any amendments to this Report on
Form 10-K and to file the same, with Exhibits ttterand other documents in connection therewith wighSecurities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming allttaid attorney-in-fact, or substitute or subséisutnay do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidny the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbsated.

Signature Title Date

/sl THOMAS D. BRISBIN

Director, President and Chief Executive Offi April 2, 2009
Thomas D. Brisbir

/s/ KIMBERLY D. GANT Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice

. April 2, 2009
Kimberly D. Gant President
/sl WIN WESTFALL
Director April 2, 2009
Win Westfall
/s/ LINDA L. HEIL
Director April 2, 2009
Linda L. Heil
/sl W. TRACY LENOCKER
Director April 2, 2009
W. Tracy Lenocke
/sl KEITH W. RENKEN
Director April 2, 2009

Keith W. Renker
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Signature

/sl WAYNE SHELTON

Wayne Sheltol
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Willdan Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselilbtlance sheets of Willdan Group, Inc. and sidogés as of January 2, 2009 and
December 28, 2007, and the related consolidatéehséants of operations, redeemable common stocktac&holders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the fiscal years in the three-yearqibended January 2, 2009. These consolidated fadaiatements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to@sgpan opinion on these financial statements basedr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform aih @futthe Company's internal control over financigborting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company's internal contr@rdinancial reporting. Accordingly we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesrixiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting thewents and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarggsignificant estimates made by managementgeadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the consolidated financial
position of Willdan Group, Inc. and subsidiariesoddanuary 2, 2009 and December 28, 2007, ancbthats of their operations and their ¢
flows for each of the fiscal years in the threerymariod ended January 2, 2009, in conformity WitE. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/sl KPMG LLP

March 31, 2009
Los Angeles, California
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

January 2, December 28,
2009 2007
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 8,144,000 $15,511,00
Liquid investment: — 1,300,001
Cash, cash equivalents and liquid investm 8,144,000 16,811,00
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfttounts of $662,000 and $372,000 at January B, 200
December 28, 2007, respectivi 12,862,00 15,090,00
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billimggncompleted contrac 8,281,00! 7,336,00!
Income tax receivabl 956,00( —
Other receivable 48,00( 157,00(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,784,001 2,067,001
Total current asse 32,075,000 41,461,00
Equipment and leasehold improvements, 2,377,00i 3,354,00!
Goodwill 11,145,00 2,911,00
Other intangible assets, r 1,367,001 85,00(
Other asset 373,00( 415,00(
Deferred income taxes, net of current por 233,00( —
Total asset $47,570,00 $48,226,00
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Excess of outstanding checks over bank bal. $ 448,000 $ 633,00(
Accounts payabl 2,111,001 1,136,001
Purchase price payak 1,000,001 —
Accrued liabilities 5,253,00 5,314,00i
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnamgencompleted contrac 704,00( 941,00(
Current portion of notes payat 52,00( 1,088,001
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 168,00( 176,00(
Current portion of deferred income ta; 2,519,001 2,002,001
Total current liabilities 12,255,00 11,290,00
Notes payable, less current port 17,00( —
Capital lease obligations, less current por 157,00( 283,00(
Deferred lease obligatior 805,00( 606,00(
Deferred income taxes, net of current por — 395,00(
Total liabilities 13,234,00 12,574,00
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 steargrized, no shares issued and outstar — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 40,000,000 shartk®azed; 7,164,000 and 7,150,000 shares issued an
outstanding at January 2, 2009 and December 28, 288pectively 72,00( 71,00(
Additional paic-in capital 33,084,00 32,796,00
Retained earning 1,180,001 2,785,00!
Total stockholders' equit 34,336,00 35,652,00
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $47,570,00 $48,226,00

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Contract revenu $73,190,00 $78,798,000 $78,339,00
Direct costs of contract revenue (exclusive of defation and amortization shown separately
below):
Salaries and wage 21,991,000 25,769,000 24,602,00
Subconsultant servict 7,750,001 4,600,00! 4,168,001
Other direct cost 2,973,00i 1,568,00I 1,496,00!
Total direct costs of contract rever 32,714,00 31,937,000 30,266,000
Gross profit 40,476,00 46,861,000 48,073,00
General and administrative expens
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes and employedfitse 24,439,000 25,061,000 26,051,00
Facilities and facility relate 4,803,001 4,546,001 4,046,001
Stocl-based compensatic 214,00( 209,00t 38,00(
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,978,001 1,747,001 1,584,00!
Lease abandonme 742,00( — —
Impairment of goodwil 148,00( — —
Litigation accrual (reversa — 1,049,000  (1,049,00I)
Other 10,952,00 11,727,000 10,359,00
Total general and administrative expen 43,276,00 44,339,000 41,029,00
(Loss) income from operatiol (2,800,001 2,522,001 7,044,001
Other (expense) incom
Interest incom 313,00( 693,00( 135,00(
Interest expens (33,000 499,00( (773,000
Other, ne (15,000 (27,000 2,335,001
Total other income, nt 265,00( 1,165,001 1,697,001
(Loss) income before income tax expe (2,535,001 3,687,001 8,741,001
Income tax (benefit) expen (930,000) 1,543,00! 2,021,001
Net (loss) incom $(1,605,00) $ 2,144,000 $ 6,720,00
(Loss) earnings per shai
Basic and dilutes $ (0.22) $ 0.3C $ 1.37
Weightec-average shares outstandi
Basic 7,159,001 7,149,001 4,900,001
Diluted 7,160,00! 7,150,00! 4,900,00!
Pro Forma Data (unaudited):
Pro forma provision for income tax $ 2,596,001
Pro forma net income (los $ 6,145,001
Pro forma earnings per common share, basic anted $ 1.2

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE COMMON STOCK
AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balances for redeemable common stock at Decemh&085
Shares of redeemable common issued in connectithnbwri//sell

stock plar
Receipt of stockholder receivalt

Reclassification from common stock to additionatl-in capital

Decrease in the difference between the aggregadéemation

amount and the carrying amount for redeemable camstark

Distributions to holders of redeemable common s

Reclassification of remaining undistributed retaimarnings upc

conversion from S Corporation to C Corporat

Shares of common stock issued in connection wittaipublic

offering, net of offering cosi
Stocl-based compensatic
Net income

Balances for stockholders' equity at December 206

Shares of common stock issued in connection withleyee
stock purchase ple

Reduction of offering costs in connection with ialipublic
offering

Stocl-based compensatic

Net income

Balances for stockholders' equity at December 287

Shares of common stock issued in connection withleyee
stock purchase ple

Stocl-based compensatic

Net loss

Balances for stockholders' equity at January 29:

Common Stock Additional Receivable
Paid-in from Retained
Shares Amount Capital Stockholders  Earnings Total
4,708,000 11,141,00 — (38,000 3,557,001 14,660,00
5,00( 18,00( — — — 18,00(
- - —  38,00( - 38,00(
— (11,112,00) 11,112,00 — — —
— — (264,000 —  264,00( —
— — — — (8,634,000 (8,634,001
— — 1,266,00 — (1,266,001 —
2,435,00! 24,000 20,400,00 — — 20,424,00
— — 38,00( — — 38,00(
— — — — 6,720,000 6,720,001
7,148,00! 71,000 32,552,00 — 641,00( 33,264,00
2,00¢ — 25,00( — — 25,00(
— — 10,00( — — 10,00(
— — 209,00( — — 209,00(
— — — — 2,144,000 2,144,00!
7,150,001 71,000 32,796,00 — 2,785,001 35,652,00
14,00( 1,00( 74,00( — — 75,00(
— — 214,00( — — 214,00(
— — — — (1,605,00) (1,605,001
7,164,000  72,00( $33,084,00 $ — $ 1,180,001 $34,336,00

See accompanying notes to consolidated financassients.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net (loss) incomi

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by (used in) operating activiti

Depreciation and amortizatic
Goodwill impairmen
Lease abandonment expel
Loss (gain) on sale of equipme
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Stoclk-based compensatic
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billimggncompleted contrac
Income tax receivabl
Other receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnamgencompleted contrac
Deferred income taxe
Deferred lease obligatior

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of equipment and leasehold improven
Proceeds from sale of equipm
Purchase of other assi
Payments for business acquisitions, net of cashiwreat
Purchase of liquid investmer
Proceeds from sale of liquid investme

Net cash used in investing activit|

Cash flows from financing activitie
Changes in excess of outstanding checks over balakde
Payments on notes payal
Proceeds from notes payal
Borrowings under line of cred
Repayments of line of crec
Principal payments on capital lea:
Payments on liabilities to stockholde
Proceeds from stockholder receivat
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable common
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in thealrptiblic offering
Proceeds from sales of common stock under emplstgeé purchase ple
Distributions to holders of redeemable common s
Refund (payment) of offering cos

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest
Income taxe:
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing evah¢ing activities
Equipment acquired under capital lea
Note payable issued in connection with acquisitbasset:
Purchase price payak

Fiscal Year

2008 2007 2006
$ (1,605,000 $ 2,144,000 $ 6,720,00
1,978,00! 1,755,001 1,584,001
148,00( — —
742,00( — —
17,00( 28,00( (13,000)
585,00( 212,00( 481,00(
214,00( 209,00( 38,00(
3,266,000  (1,032,00) (3,071,001
187,00( 624,00 (731,000
(956,000) — —
53,00( 4,348,000 (1,090,001
292,00( (209,000 (535,000)
50,00( 69,00( (8,000
(186,000) (134,000 226,00(
(831,000  (8,792,00)  1,026,00!
(236,000) (281,000 (134,000
(112,000 737,00( 1,602,00!
(60,000 59,00( 178,00(
3,546,001 (263,000 6,273,001
(552,000) (654,000 (2,822,001
49,00( 35,00( 5,00(C
(75,000 — (100,000)
(10,236,00) — —
(7,100,000 (22,800,00) —
8,400,001 21,500,00 —
(9,514,00)  (1,919,00)  (2,917,00(
(185,000 376,00( (115,000
(1,119,00)  (1,210,00) (1,482,001
— 1,184,001 973,00(
— 418,00( 11,700,00
— (418,000 (11,700,00)
(170,000 (175,000 (158,000)
— — (3,000
— — 38,00(
— — 18,00(
— — 22,646,00!
75,00( 25,00( —
—  (3,150,00)  (5,484,00)
— 10,00( (2,222,001
(1,399,00)  (2,940,00) 14,211,00
(7,367,00)  (5,122,00) 17,567,00
15,511,00 20,633,00 3,066,00!I
$ 8,144,000 $ 15,511,000 $ 20,633,000
$ 34,00C $ 84,000 $ 143,00(
853,00( 902,00( 72,00(
$ 42,000 $ 147,000 $ 386,00¢(
100,00( — 150,00(
1,000,00! —_ —_



Accrued final distributions to holders of redeengattbmmon stoc — — 3,150,001
See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgsients
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Years 2008, 2007 and 2006
1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY
Nature of Business

Willdan Group, Inc. and subsidiaries ("Wéh Group” or the "Company") is a provider of outsed services to small and mid-sized
public agencies in California and other westertestaOutsourcing enables these agencies to pravidde range of specialized services
without having to incur and maintain the overheadassary to develop staffing in-house. The Companyides a broad range of services to
public agencies and, to a lesser extent, privatestry, including civil engineering, building anafsty services, geotechnical engineering,
environmental engineering and environmental sesyifteancial and economic consulting, energy efficly, sustainability, water
conservation, renewable energy, disaster prepasedpablic safety consulting, management consu#titdjhomeland security. Clients
primarily consist of cities, counties, redeveloptnagencies, water districts, school districts andersities, state agencies, federal agencies,
variety of other special districts and agenciesgpe industry and tribal governments.

Willdan Group, Inc., a Delaware corporatinthe successor to The Willdan Group of ComparaeCalifornia corporation. Willdan
Group, Inc. was formed during fiscal year 2006a asibsidiary of The Willdan Group of Companies, andlune 30, 2006, the assets and
liabilities of The Willdan Group of Companies weransferred to Willdan Group, Inc. Willdan Groupg¢l had no operations prior to this
transfer of assets and liabilities. Since the tatisn occurred between entities under common obritre transfer was recorded at historical
carrying values in a manner similar to the poolgnterests method of accounting. This resulted reclassification of $11.1 million from
common stock to additional paid-in capital since Willdan Group, Inc. common stock has a par valug0.01 per share and The Willdan
Group of Companies common stock had no par valeesiHafter, Willdan Group refers to both Willdano@p, Inc. and its predecessor, The
Willdan Group of Companies.

On November 27, 2006, Willdan Group comgaleits initial public offering (IPO). The IPO reged in the sale by Willdan Group of
2,000,000 shares of common stock at an initialrisféeprice per share of $10.00, generating grossgads to Willdan Group of $20.0 millic
A selling shareholder also sold 900,000 share@wiaon stock in the IPO. The aggregate proceedsilitda Group, net of underwriter's
discounts and other offering costs, were approxéga16.4 million. On December 20, 2006, WilldaroGp sold an additional 435,000 sh:
of common stock at $10.00 per share as a resthieafinderwriter exercising its over-allotment opti@his resulted in additional net proceeds
of approximately $4.0 million to Willdan Group. Wian Group issued stock warrants in connection thiehlPO to the underwriter for the
right to purchase 290,000 common shares at 120%edPO share price, or $12.00 per share. The wiarkeecame exercisable on
November 20, 2007 and expire on November 20, 2

Effective as of the completion of the IRfle Company's book value stock purchase plan fdd Group's redeemable common stock
was terminated and all of the outstanding sharaitdlan Group's common stock previously subjedtt® terms of this plan were no longer
redeemable by Willdan Group. This resulted in dassification of the Company's equity to permaresqtity as of the completion of the IPO.

Prior to completion of the IPO, Willdan Gmwas owned by its employees, board members ardvice provider. With the consent of
its stockholders, Willdan Group had elected torbated as an
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2008, 2007 and 2006
1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY (Cont inued)
S Corporation for purposes of federal and statenretaxes. Effective as of the first day of tradofigVilldan Group's common stock,

November 21, 2006, the S Corporation status termihand thereafter the Company has been subjésti¢val and state income taxes as
Corporation.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements ithelthe accounts of Willdan Group Inc. and its whollvned subsidiaries, Willdan Engineeri
Willdan Financial Services, Willdan Geotechnicalijldan Homeland Solutions, Willdan Energy Solutipk¢illdan Resource Solutions and
Public Agency Resources. Willdan Energy Solutiensicluded as of June 9, 2008, the date of itsiaitoun. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminatezhsotidation.

Fiscal Years

The Company operates and reports finanegallts on a fiscal year of 52 or 53 weeks endimt¢he Friday closest to December 31. Fi
year 2008 contained 53 weeks. Fiscal years 2002606 contained 52 weeks. All references to yeatkea notes to consolidated financ
statements represent fiscal years.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Liquid I nvestments

All highly liquid investments purchased kwén original maturity of three months or less@residered to be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents include money market funds andwsdeposit accounts. Outstanding checks in exafesash on deposit have been
classified as current liabilities.

As of January 2, 2009, the Company had eashcash equivalents of $8.1 million. Of this amo®0.4 million was invested in the We
Fargo Stage Coach Sweep Investment Account, $8lidmivas invested in the Wells Fargo Money Markkttual Fund and $0.6 million
was invested in the Wells Fargo Advantage Herifaged. The balance of $1.1 million represents cashamd in business checking accounts.

As of December 28, 2007, cash equivalertisided $0.5 million invested in the Orange CouBiiginess Bank Money Market Fund and
$14.2 million invested in Lehman Brothers Natiokkini Money Fund Reserve Class. The $1.3 milliofignid investments was invested in
various auction rate securities.

The Company from time to time may be exgdsecredit risk with its bank deposits in excesthe FDIC insurance limits and with
uninsured money market investments. The Companydtasxperienced any losses in such accounts dievé®it is not exposed to any
significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalent

Fair Value of Financial | nstruments

As of January 2, 2009 and December 28, 2@7carrying amounts of the Company's cash, egslvalents, liquid investments,
accounts receivable, costs and estimated earningsciess of billings on
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2008, 2007 and 2006
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

uncompleted contracts, income tax receivable, agivables, prepaid expenses and other curreatsagxcess of outstanding checks over
bank balance, accounts payable, purchase pricélgaycrued liabilities, billings in excess of tsoand estimated earnings on uncompleted
contracts, approximate their fair values becaugsbefelatively short period of time between thigioation of these instruments and their
expected realization. The carrying amounts of nptagble approximate their fair values since thmseare comparable to terms currently
offered by local lending institutions for loanssifmilar terms to companies with comparable crasi.r

Segment I nformation

Willdan Group, Inc. (WGI) is a holding coempy with seven wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Camygaresents segment information
externally consistent with the manner in which @@mpany's chief operating decision maker revieiarination to assess performance and
allocate resources. WGI performs all administrafivections on behalf of its subsidiaries, suchraadury, legal, accounting, information
systems and human resources, and earns revenug dindit incidental to the activities of the entésp. As a result, WGI does not meet the
definition of an operating segment. Five of theeseWGI subsidiaries are aggregated into one refplersegment as they have similar
economic characteristics including the nature ofises, the methods used to provide services amtifie of customers. The remaining two
subsidiaries each comprise separate reporting sggme

Off-Balance Sheet Financings and Liabilities

Other than lease commitments, legal coeticges incurred in the normal course of business.eaployment contracts, the Company
does not have any off-balance sheet financing geraents or liabilities. In addition, the Comparpddicy is not to enter into derivative
instruments, futures or forward contracts. Finatiy, Company does not have any majority-owned didré@s or any interests in, or
relationships with, any special-purpose entitieg #re not included in the consolidated finandialesnents.

Accounting for Contracts

The Company enters into contracts witltlients that contain three principal types of pricprovisions: fixed price, time-and-materials,
and unit-based. Revenue on fixed price contragiscisgnized on the percentage-of-completion mebased generally on the ratio of direct
costs (exclusive of depreciation and amortizatiosts) incurred to date to estimated total direstxat completion. Revenue on time-and-
materials and unit-based contracts is recognizédeawork is performed in accordance with the dpetdrms of the contract. Revenue for
amounts that have been billed but not earned erdef and such deferred revenue is referred tdlagb in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts in the accompgrognsolidated balance sheets.

Adjustments to contract cost estimatesw@ade in the periods in which the facts requiringhsievisions become known. When the
revised estimate indicates a loss, such loss iaged for currently in its entirety. Claims revengaecognized only upon resolution of the
claim. Change orders in dispute are evaluatedaams! Costs related to unpriced change ordersx@ensed when incurred and recognitio
the related contract revenue is based on an ei@iuaitthe probability of recovery
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2008, 2007 and 2006

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

of the costs. Estimated profit is recognized fopriced change orders if realization of the expegtéck of the change order is assured bey
a reasonable doubt.

Applying the percentage-of-completion meklod recognizing revenue requires the Company timeate the indicated outcome of its
long-term contracts. The Company forecasts suctoougs to the best of its knowledge and belief ofesut and expected conditions and its
expected course of action. Differences betweelCtrapany's estimates and actual results often @esutting in changes to reported revenue
and earnings. Such changes could have a mateieat eh future consolidated financial statements.

Direct costs of contract revenue consisharily of that portion of technical and nontectalisalaries and wages that has been incurt
connection with revenue producing projects. Diasts of contract revenue also include productigrerses, subconsultant services and
other expenses that are incurred in connection rgitknue producing projects.

Direct costs of contract revenue excluasg ffortion of technical and nontechnical salaries wages related to marketing efforts,
vacations, holidays and other time not spent diregnerating revenue under existing contractsh®wsts are included in general and
administrative expenses. Additionally, payroll taxeonuses and employee benefit costs for all Cagnparsonnel are included in general
and administrative expenses in the accompanyingatolated statements of operations since no allotaff these costs is made to direct
costs of contract revenue. No allocation of faeiitcosts is made to direct costs of contract negeror is depreciation and amortization
allocated to direct costs. Other companies maysifiaas direct costs of contract revenue some @ttsts that the Company classifies as
general and administrative costs. The Company esgsedirect costs of contract revenue when incurred.

Accounts receivable are carried at originabice amount less an estimate made for doubtfabunts based upon a review of all
outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Managedetatmines the allowance for doubtful accountsdeyiifying troubled accounts and by
using historical experience applied to an agingamfounts. Credit risk is minimal with governmergatities. Accounts receivables are written
off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of actogreivables previously written off are recordden received.

The value of retainage is included in actsueceivable in the accompanying consolidateahitial statements. Retainage represents the
billed amount that is retained by the customegadoordance with the terms of the contract, geneuattil performance is substantially
complete.

Leases

All of the Company's office leases are sifted as operating leases and rent expense isdedlin facilities expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Some détee terms include rent concessions and rentatgratlauses, all of which are taken into
account in computing minimum lease payments. Mimmease payments are recognized on a strédiighbasis over the minimum lease te
The excess of rents recognized over the amountsaobmally due pursuant to the underlying leasesflscted as a liability in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Thetosprovements that the Company makes to the tkaffice space is capitalized as
leasehold improvements.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2008, 2007 and 2006
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Equipment and Leasehold | mprovements

Equipment and leasehold improvements atedtat cost less accumulated depreciation andtiaatoon. Equipment under capital leases
is stated at the present value of the minimum lpagenents. Depreciation and amortization on equipiraee calculated using the straidjine
method over estimated useful lives of two to fieaks. Leasehold improvements and assets undealdapies are amortized using the
straight-line method over the shorter of estimateefful lives or the term of the related lease.

Following are the estimated useful livesduto calculate depreciation and amortization:

Category Estimated Useful Life
Furniture and fixture 5 years
Computer hardwar 2 years
Computer softwar 3 years
Automobiles and truck 3 years
Field equipmen 5 years

Equipment and leasehold improvements afiewed for impairment whenever events or changesraumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover&aeoverability of assets to be held and used ssored by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted feagik flows expected to be generated by the db#®t. carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impaitroharge is recognized by the amount by whiclkc#nigying amount of the asset exceeds
the fair value of the asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of costs farevalue of the assets acquired. The goodwitlich has an indefinite useful life, is not
amortized, but instead tested for impairment adtlaanually or more frequently if events and cirstances indicate that the asset might be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognized to tkieet that the carrying amount exceeds the adaét'galue.

Accounting for Claims Against the Company

The Company records liabilities to claingafur probable and estimable claims on its conatéid balance sheet, which is included in
accrued liabilities, and records a correspondingik@ble from the insurance company for the portibthe claim that is probable of being
covered by insurance, which is included in otheeneables. The estimated claim amount net of theusrnestimated to be recoverable from
the insurance company is included in general amiir@dtrative expense.

Stock Options

The Company accounts for compensationgéltt stock options using the fair value methodamfounting. The estimated fair value of
the fully vested stock options granted upon conmuedf the IPO was expensed and the fair valub®funvested stock options granted is
being amortized over the vesting period of thegeksbptions.
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Fiscal Years 2008, 2007 and 2006
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Income Taxes

Prior to November 21, 2006, for federabime tax purposes, the Company filed as an S Cdiponaherein the Company elected and
the stockholders consented to be taxed in a maméar to partners in a general partnership. Sfederal income taxes on S Corporation
income are the responsibility of the individualcitioolders, no federal tax provision is includedha accompanying consolidated financial
statements for periods prior to November 21, 2@ #ective January 1, 2002, the Company electecettvdnted as an S Corporation for state
tax purposes and has provided for state incomes taixéhe applicable S Corporation statutory radenfdanuary 1, 2002 through November
2006.

Effective upon the first day of tradingtbé Company's common stock as a result of the iF&OS Corporation status was terminated and
thereafter the Company has been subject to fedrthbtate income taxes as a C Corporation. Theteffeecognizing the Company's
deferred tax liability using C Corporation fedezald state tax rates instead of S Corporation &ateates is included in the fiscal year 2006
tax provision in the accompanying consolidatedesteint of operations.

Income taxes are accounted for under thetasd liability method. Deferred tax assets @tllities are recognized for the future tax
consequences of temporary differences betweerrtapdial reporting basis and tax basis of the Camisaassets and liabilities. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enaatedites expected to apply to taxable income iry#aes in which those temporary differer
are expected to be recovered or settled. The affedeferred tax assets and liabilities of a changax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

Operating Cycle

In accordance with industry practice, antewnalizable and payable under contracts, whicheséend beyond one year, are included in
current assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financfatements in conformity with generally acceptedoaitting principles in the U.S. requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae reported amounts of assets and lialsliied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahstatements. Estimates also affect the reportealiats of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial AccounStandards Board (FASB) issued Statement of FiaaAcicounting Standard (SFAS)
No. 157,"Fair Value Measurement{SFAS 157) which defines fair value, establishésmework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. The @oynadopted SFAS 157 on the first day of fiscal @898 and the adoption did not have
a material effect on its financial statements aisdldsures.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAST™®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and &mtial Liabilities—Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. I(SFAS 159). SFAS 159 provides companies with aioogb measure, at specified election dates,
many financial instruments and certain other it@mf&ir value that are not currently measured iatviue. A company that adopts SFAS 159
will report unrealized gains and losses on itemmsyvioich the fair value option has been electedaimimgs at each subsequent reporting date.
SFAS 159 also establishes presentation and diselosquirements designed to facilitate comparisgmteeen entities that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of asmedsliabilities. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscaars beginning after November 15, 2007.
provisions of SFAS 159 are elective, and througtuday 2, 2009, the Company had not elected to &8BAS 159 for any of its financial
assets or liabilities.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMG. (revised 2007)Business Combination§SFAS 141R). SFAS 141R establishes the
principles and requirements for how an acquirg@mggognizes and measures in its financial statésrthe identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling intereghe acquiree; (ii) recognizes and measuregttoelwill acquired in the business
combination or a gain from a bargain purchase,(didletermines what information to disclose tabfe users of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of thar®ss combination. SFAS 141R makes significan@és to existing accounting practices
for acquisitions. Under SFAS 141R, adjustmentfiéoaicquired entity's deferred tax assets and wieeax position balances occurring
outside the measurement period are recorded amporent of the income tax expense, rather thanwiipdhich nullifies EITF 93-7,
Uncertainties Related to Income Taxes in a Purclgasgness CombinatiofEITF 93-7). This requirement applies to all busie
combinations regardless of consummation date. SEAR applies prospectively to business combinatifmmsvhich the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual rejngr period on or after December 15, 2008, exceptte transition provisions of EITF 93-7.
The Company adopted SFAS 141R on January 3, 2aD¢hamhad no effect on the Company's financigkstents. The Company will
evaluate the impact, if any, that SFAS 141R willdan future business combinations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 14ZEtermination of the Useful Life of Intangible Ass'(FSP 142-3). FSP 142-3 amends the
factors that should be considered in developingwet or extension assumptions used to determinagéil life of a recognized intangible
asset under SFAS No. 143podwill and Other Intangible Asset&ESP 142-3 will be effective for fiscal years breing after December 15,
2008. The Company is currently assessing the effdeSP 142-3 on its consolidated financial stateime

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. I8¢ Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountingeiples"(SFAS 162), which
identifies the sources of accounting principles pravides a framework, or hierarchy, for selecting principles to be used in preparing
U.S. GAAP financial statements for nongovernmeatdities. SFAS 162, effective November 15, 2008esghe hierarchy explicitly and
directly applicable to preparers of financial sta¢mts. This recognizes the preparers' respongBilior selecting the accounting principles
their financial statements. The Company does ni@\eethat the adoption of SFAS 162 will have aeniat effect on its consolidated
financial statements.
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3. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On June 9, 2008, the Company acquiredf éfleoutstanding stock of Willdan Energy Solutioftsmerly known as Intergy Corporatic
a California—based consulting company that assimtspanies, institutions and agencies with planaimgjimplementing their energy
efficiency, water conservation and renewable enstgtegies. The acquisition cost recorded by th@@ny as of January 2, 2009 was
$11.7 million, consisting of $9.9 million in cashig at closing, a $0.2 million net asset value stifient, a guaranteed payment of
$1.0 million in cash due on or before June 24, 2608 $0.6 million of transaction costs. The adtjois cost may increase by up to
$6.2 million if Willdan Energy Solutions achievesrtain financial targets in the first three yeaofving the acquisition. The acquisition ¢
was allocated as follows:

Current assel $ 3,242,00
Equipment 49,00(
Backlog 1,264,00!
Customer relationshiy 272,00(
Other asset 8,00(
Current liabilities (1,502,00i)
Goodwill 8,382,001
Total $11,715,00

The Company has preliminarily estimatedfthievalues of the assets acquired and the ligdslassumed. The Company will finalize the
fair value estimates within twelve months of thegusition date.

Unaudited pro forma consolidated statemehtgperations for the fiscal years ended Januap@9 and December 28, 2007 as though
Willdan Energy Solutions had been acquired as efitist day of each of the respective periods priegkis as follows:

Year Ended
January 2, December 28,
2009 2007
Contract revenu $77,831,00 $86,121,00
(Loss) income from operatiol (1,254,00) 4,125,001
Net (loss) incomi (1,231,00) 2,770,001
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per st $ 0.17) $ 0.3¢
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4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The changes in the carrying value of goddwireporting unit for the fiscal year ended Jaryu2, 2009 were as follows:

Fiscal Year 2008

Balance at Goodwill Balance at
Beginning of Yeal Additions Impairment End of Year
Reporting Unit:
Energy Solution: $ — $8,382,000 $ — $ 8,382,001
Financial Service 2,763,00! — — 2,763,00!
Homeland Security Servict 148,00( — (148,000 —

$ 2,911,000 $8,382,000 $(148,00() $11,145,00

There were no changes on the carrying vaflumodwill for the fiscal year ended December 28)7.

Willdan Homeland Solutions, formerly knoas American Homeland Solutions, was formed in 2@Mce its inception, certain
intangible assets and business enterprises weuniredgln the three years ended January 2, 2008jadiHomeland Solutions' expenses h
exceeded its revenue. The projected discountedeferash flows do not exceed the carrying valudéefgoodwill and therefore an impairment
charge of $148,000 was taken in the year endechday 2009.

The gross amounts and accumulated amaadizaf the Company's acquired identifiable intatgidissets with finite useful lives as of
January 2, 2009 and December 28, 2007, includéttangible assets, net in the accompanying CorestlilBalance Sheets, were as follows:

January 2, 2009 December 28, 2007
Accumulated Accumulated ~ Amortization
Gross Gross

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization Period (yrs)

Backlog $1,264,000 $ 355,000 $ — % — 2
Customer relationshig 272,00( 22,00( — — 7
Training materials/course 282,00( 80,00  109,00( 38,00( 5
Non-compete agreemer 30,00( 24,00( 28,00( 14,00( 3

$1,848,000 $ 481,00 $137,00( $ 52,00(

At the time of acquisition, the Companyirestes the fair value of the acquired identifiaibl&angible assets based upon the facts and
circumstances related to the particular intangilsiget. Inherent in such estimates are judgmentsstimates of future revenue, profitability,
cash flows and appropriate discount rates for agggnt value calculations. The Company prelimigpadtimates the value of the acquired
identifiable intangible assets and then finalizesestimated fair values during the purchase dltmtgeriod, which does not extend beyond
12 months from the date of acquisition. As of Jana 2009, the final purchase allocation for WaltdEnergy Solutions, formerly known as
Intergy Corporation, was not yet finalized.

For the years ended January 2, 2009, Deeef#) 2007 and December 29, 2006, the Companystization expense for acquired
identifiable intangible assets with finite usefukls was $429,000,
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4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

$31,000, and $17,000, respectively. Estimated éuaumortization expense for acquired identifiabtangible assets is as follows:

Fiscal year:

2009 $ 729,00(

2010 370,00(

2011 85,00(

2012 76,00(

2013 51,00(

Thereaftel 56,00(

$1,367,00!

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE—NET
Net accounts receivable consisted of tHeviing:
January 2, December 28,
2009 2007

Billed $13,507,00 $15,416,00
Unbilled 8,281,00I 7,336,001
Contract retention 17,00( 46,00(
21,805,00 22,798,00
Allowance for doubtful accoun 662,00( 372,00(

$21,143,00 $22,426,00

Billed accounts receivable represent amebitied to clients that have yet to be collectddbilled accounts receivable represent reve
recognized but not yet billed pursuant to conttawns or accounts billed after the period end. Buitiglly all unbilled receivables as of
January 2, 2009 and December 27, 2007 are expcbedbilled and collected within twelve monthssath date. Contract retentions
represent amounts invoiced to clients where paysreae been withheld pending the completion ob@erilestones, other contractual
conditions or upon the completion of the projedte3e retention agreements vary from project togpt@nd could be outstanding for several
months or years.

Allowances for doubtful accounts have bdetermined through specific identification of amtsuconsidered to be uncollectible and
potential write-offs, plus a non-specific allowarfoe other amounts for which some potential loss ben determined to be probable based
on current and past experience.

No client accounted for more than 10% ef @ompany's outstanding receivables as of Jany@§0® or December 28, 2007.
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6. EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Equipment and leasehold improvements cbosike following:

January 2, December 28,
2009 2007
Furniture and fixture $ 4,680,000 $ 4,917,001
Computer hardware and softw: 4,921,00 4,518,001
Leasehold improvemen 772,00( 900,00t
Equipment under capital leas 790,00( 787,00(
Automobiles, trucks, and field equipme 419,00( 412,00(
11,582,00 11,534,00
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (9,205,00) (8,180,00I)

Equipment and leasehold improvements,  $ 2,377,000 $ 3,354,00

Included in accumulated depreciation andrimation is $176,000 and $189,000 of amortizatielated to equipment held under capital
leases in fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively.

7. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the follovgn

December 28

January 2,
2009 2007
Accrued bonuse $ 155,00 $ 202,00(
Paid leave ban 1,449,000 1,746,00i
Compensation and payroll tax 719,00  1,495,00!
Accrued lega 54,00( 92,00(
Accrued workers' compensation insura 18,00( 19,00(
Litigation accrua 110,00( 235,00(
Accrued interes 4,00( 52,00(
Accrued ren 562,00( 113,00(
Income taxes payab — 425,00(
Employee withholding 265,00( 225,00(
Client deposit: 790,00( 92,00(
Other 1,127,001 618,00(
Total accrued liabilitie: $5,253,000 $5,314,00!

8. STOCK OPTIONS

As of January 2, 2009, the Company hassfiare-based compensation plans, which are desdrédedl. The Company may no longer
grant awards under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plaa.cbmpensation cost that has been charged againste for stock options issued under
these plans was $214,000, $209,000 and $38,0G3¢at years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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8. STOCK OPTIONS (Continued)
2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In June 2006, the Company's board of dirschdopted the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan ("20@&'Pland it received stockholder appro
The Company re-submitted the 2006 Plan to its $toiclers for post-IPO approval at the 2007 annualtmg of the stockholders and it was
approved. The 2006 Plan will terminate ten yeatey dfie board of directors approved it and no ot awards were or will be granted
under the 2006 Plan after the Company's sharelsmégmroved the 2008 Plan (as defined below) in 2008. The 2006 Plan had 300,000
shares of common stock reserved for issuance t@dhngpany's directors, executives, officers, empsyeonsultants and advisors. As of
June 9, 2008, approximately 36,167 shares werdadaifor award grant purposes under the 2006 Alaese shares became available for
grant under the 2008 Plan following shareholderaygd of the 2008 Plan. Options granted under ©@62Plan could be "non-statutory stock
options" which expire no more than ten years frobmdate of grant or "incentive stock options" aéndel in Section 422 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Upon exercisene$tatutory stock options, the Company is geheesititled to a tax deduction on the
exercise of the option for an amount equal to tteess over the exercise price of the fair markktevaf the shares at the date of exercise.
Company is generally not entitled to any tax deidncbn the exercise of an incentive stock optiopti@ awards provide for accelerated
vesting if there is a change in control (as defimethe 2006 Plan). Through January 2, 2009, optgmanted, net of forfeitures and
expirations, under the 2006 Plan consist of 214dG0es and 19,000 shares for incentive stockmgptod non-statutory stock options,
respectively.

2008 PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN

In March 2008, the Company's board of doecadopted the 2008 Performance Incentive P12A08 Plan") and it received stockholder
approval at the 2008 annual meeting of the stoadrslin June 2008. The 2008 Plan will terminateytsars after the board of directors
approved it. The 2008 Plan has 486,167 sharesnoifmam stock reserved for issuance to the compang'stdrs, executives, officers,
employees, consultants and advisors. The maximumbeuof shares of the Company's common stock thgthe issued or transferred
pursuant to awards under the 2008 Plan can alghEased by any shares subject to stock opticarsten under the 2006 Plan and
outstanding as of June 9, 2008 which expire, oafgrreason are cancelled or terminated, after 9uR@08 without being exercised. Awards
authorized by the 2008 Plan include stock optiste;k appreciation rights, restricted stock, stockuses, stock units, performance stock,
and other share-based awards. No participant mgydred an option to purchase more than 100,08@slin any fiscal year. Options
generally may not be granted with exercise priess than fair market value at the date of grarh westing provisions and contractual terms
determined by the compensation committee of thedoofdirectors on a grant-by-grant basis. Optigrated under the 2008 Plan may be
"nonqualified stock options" or "incentive stocktiops" as defined in Section 422 of the Internal&mie Code of 1986, as amended. The
maximum term of each option shall be 10 years. Uparcise of nonqualified stock options, the Conypargenerally entitled to a tax
deduction on the exercise of the option for an amegual to the excess over the exercise prickeofair market value of the shares at the
date of exercise. The Company is generally notledtto any tax deduction on the exercise of asritiwe stock option. Option awards
provide for accelerated vesting if there is a cleaingcontrol (as defined
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8. STOCK OPTIONS (Continued)

in the 2008 Plan). Through January 2, 2009, optgraated under the 2008 Plan consist of 57,500eshard 12,000 shares for incentive si
options and non-statutory stock options, respelgtive

The fair value of each option is calculatisthg the Black-Scholes option valuation model thses the assumptions noted in the
following table. Expected volatility is based upaistorical volatility of "guideline companies" simthe length of time the Company's shares
have been publicly traded is shorter than the erplear contractual term of the options. The expktdem of the option, taking into account
both the contractual term of the option and theatf of employees' expected exercise and expeoste/psting termination behavior is
estimated based upon the "shortcut" approach. Uhéeapproach, the expected term is presumed théomidpoint between the vesting d
and the end of the contractual term. The risk-fege for periods within the contractual life of thetion is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant. The assurmsiare as follows:

2008 2007 2006

Expected volatility 35%- 39% 31%- 34% 31%- 36%
Expected dividend 0% 0% 0%
Expected term (in year 5.00- 6.0C 5.00- 6.0C 1.00- 5.2¢
Risk-free rate 1.50%- 3.61% 4.34%- 5.26% 4.54%- 4.71%

A summary of option activity under the 2@@@&n and 2008 Plan as of January 2, 2009 and ekahging the fiscal years ended
January 2, 2009, December 28, 2007 and Decemb@028,is presented below. The intrinsic value efdptions is $0, based on the
Company's closing stock price of $2.03 on JanuagpR9.

Weighted- Weighted-

Average

Average Remaining

Exercise Contractual

Options Price Term (Years)

Outstanding at December 28, 2( 233,000 $ 9.5¢C 8.€
Granted 119,00( 3.81 9.€
Exercisec — — —
Forfeited or expires 49,00( 9.72 —
Outstanding at January 2, 20 303,000 $ 7.2¢ 8.8
Vested at January 2, 20 85,00 $ 8.8t .5
Exercisable at January 2, 20 85,00 $ 8.8t 8.5
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Weighted- Weighted-

Average

Average Remaining

Exercise Contractual
Options Price Term (Years)
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 28,00C $ 10.1¢ 4.2
Granted 205,00 9.4C 9.4
Exercisec — — —
Forfeited or expirer — — —
Outstanding at December 28, 2( 233,000 $ 9.5C 8.€
Vested at December 28, 20 33,000 $ 10.2Z 4.2
Exercisable at December 28, 2( 33,00 $ 10.2¢ 4.2

Weighted- Weighted-

Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual
Options Price Term (Years)
Outstanding at December 30, 2( — $ — —
Granted 28,00( 10.1¢ 4.2
Exercisec — — —
Forfeited or expirer — —
Outstanding at December 29, 2( 28,00C $ 10.1¢ .
Vested at December 29, 20 20,00C $ 10.0cC 1.¢
Exercisable at December 29, 2( 20,00C $ 10.0C 1.2

A summary of the status of the Companyfs/ested options and changes in nonvested optiamsgdthe fiscal year ended January 2,
2009, December 28, 2007 and December 29, 2006esepted below:

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Options Fair Value

Nonvested at December 28, 2( 200,00 $ 3.7¢
Granted 119,00( 1.47%
Vested (74,000 3.3¢
Forfeited (27,000 3.7¢
Nonvested at January 2, 20 218,00( 2.64
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Weighted-

Average
Grant-Date

Options Fair Value
Nonvested at December 29, 2( 8,00 $ 3.91
Granted 205,00( 3.7¢
Vested (23,000 3.9¢
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 28, 2( 200,00( 3.7¢
Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Options Fair Value

Nonvested at December 30, 2(C — % —
Granted 28,00( 2.2¢
Vested (20,000 1.64
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 29, 2( 8,00( 3.91

As of January 2, 2009, there was $408,0Q0tal unrecognized compensation cost relatedtorasted stock options. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 1.7 years. The total fair value of vesbgtions granted during the fiscal years
ended January 2, 2009, December 28, 2007 and Deceét@p2006 was $29,000, $20,000 and $33,000 regplyc

AMENDED AND RESTATED 2006 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The Company adopted its Amended and Resgf186 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to allow déiginployees the right to purchase
shares of common stock, at semi-annual intervdth, tweir accumulated payroll deductions. The pleeived stockholder approval in June
2006. The Company re-submitted the plan to itsktolclers for post-IPO approval at the 2007 anntgalkholders' meeting and obtained
approval. A total of 300,000 shares of the Commaogmmon stock have been reserved for issuance tiredplan, with no more than
100,000 shares being issuable in any one calemdar y

The plan has semi-annual periods beginaimgach January 1 and ending on each June 30 girthimgy on each July 1 and ending on
each December 31. The first offering period comredran February 10, 2007 and ended on June 30, 2007.

Participants make contributions under tta@ jpnly by means of payroll deductions each paymiliod. The accumulated contributions
are applied to the purchase of shares. Sharesierkgsed under the plan on or as soon as pradieétier, the last day of the offering period.
The purchase price per share equals 95% of thenfaiket value of a share on the last day of sufdrinfy period.
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The Company's Amended and Restated 2006dysg Stock Purchase Plan is a non-compensatony Ataa result, stock-based
compensation expense is not recognized in relaidhis plan.

9. NOTES PAYABLE AND LINE OF CREDIT

Notes payable consist of the following:

2008 2007

Unsecured notes payable to insurance compani@satock insurance premiums, interestat5. $ — $1,088,00!
Other 69,00( —
$69,00( $1,088,00!

Less current portio 52,00C  1,088,00!
Notes payable, less current port $17,00C $ —

The Company has a credit agreement anidi@derevolving line of credit note and securityesgment (collectively with the credit
agreement and the note, the "agreements") withd#elfgo Bank, National Association. There were utstanding borrowings under this
credit agreement as of January 2, 2009 or Decehez007.

As of January 2, 2009, under the term$iefdredit agreement, the Company could borrow §5t0 million from time to time up to and
until January 1, 2010. Advances made under theviengpline of credit bore interest at either (igtfoating rate of 0.50% below the Prime
Rate in effect from time to time or (ii) the fixedte of 1.25% above LIBOR, at the election of therpany. The interest rate was subject to
adjustment based on changes in the Company'sofatiital funded debt to EBITDA (as defined in thredit agreement). Upon a default, the
interest rate would be increased by a defaultmetegin of 4.00%. Upon the occurrence of an eveieddult under the credit agreement,
Wells Fargo has the option to make all indebtedtte=s owed by the Company under the agreementsdimateéy due and payable.

The Company was in violation of its finaalaiovenants at January 2, 2009 and on March 30,2b86 credit agreement was amended.
The amendment included a waiver of the financiaeoant violation, the elimination or modificatiohtbe financial covenants under the
credit agreement, an increase in pricing and airepent that the $5.0 million commitment be coltateed by cash, cash equivalents and
securities with a collateral value of at least $8ilion held at Wells Fargo.

Borrowings under the credit agreement aceised by all accounts receivable and other righpmyment, general intangibles, inventory
and equipment of the Company and its subsidiatiesf March 30, 2009, borrowings are also secusethb cash, cash equivalents, and
securities held in the Wells Fargo securities antddach subsidiary of the Company (except Pubtiercy Resources and Willdan
Resources Solutions) has signed an unconditiorabgty of the Company's obligations under the ages¢s. The credit agreement also
contains customary representations and affirmaibienants, including a covenant to maintain a mimmtangible net worth of at least
$18.0 million at all times. The credit agreemesbahcludes customary negative covenants, includingvenant that
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prohibits the incurrence of additional indebtedrn®sshe Company or its subsidiaries other thanpage money indebtedness not to exceed
$2.0 million and indebtedness existing on the datbe credit agreement, and a covenant that pitstpayment of dividends on the
Company's stock and redemptions, repurchases er atiguisitions of the Company's stock; provided the Company can repurchase stock
with an aggregate fair market value up to $5.0iamlin any calendar year. In addition, the credie@ment includes customary defaults for a
credit facility.

10. COMMITMENTS
Leases

The Company is obligated under capitaldsder certain furniture and office equipment tigpire at various dates through the year
2012.

The Company also leases certain officdif@s under noncancelable operating leases thgiteeat various dates through the year 2014
and is committed under noncancelable operatingtefs the lease of computer equipment and autdesothirough the year 2011.

Future minimum rental payments under capita noncancelable operating leases are summagzéallows:

Capital Operating
Fiscal year
2009 $240,00( $ 4,043,00!
2010 136,00( 3,432,001
2011 61,00( 3,148,001
2012 7,00( 2,128,001
2013 — 1,118,00I
Thereatftel — 727,00(
Total future minimum lease paymel 444,000 $14,596,00
Amount representing maintenar (91,000

Amount representing interest (at rates ranging flons% to 11.0%  (28,00()

Present value of net minimum lease payments uragetat lease  325,00(
Less current portio 168,00(

$157,00(

Rent expense and related charges for conaremmaintenance for all facility operating lease2008, 2007 and 2006 was
approximately $3,544,000, $3,337,000 and $2,957 @&pectively.

During the fiscal year ended January 292@ie Company closed certain of its offices ottipos of offices. Additionally, a tenant that
was subleasing an office from the company defaudteds lease. As a result of the office closunmed the sublease default, the Company
recorded lease abandonment expense of $742,00¢h vghincluded in the accompanying consolidatetéstant of operations for
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10. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

the fiscal year ended January 2, 2009. This expiectgles future rental obligations and other castociated with the leased space.
Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a qualified profit shaptan (the Plan) pursuant to Code Section 401 (a)qanadified cash or deferred arrangement
pursuant to Code Section 401(k) covering substintfi employees. Employees may elect to contebup to 50% of compensation limitec
the amount allowed by tax laws. Company contritmgiare made solely at the discretion of the Compdroard of directors. The Company
made matching contributions of approximately $260,86237,000 and $277,000 during fiscal years 22087 and 2006 respectively.

The Company has a discretionary bonus folaregional managers, division managers and othedetermined by the Company
president. Bonuses are awarded if certain finamggals are achieved. The financial goals are m¢dtin the plan; rather they are
judgmentally determined each year. In addition,itbard of directors may declare discretionary beaus key employees and all employ
are eligible for what the Company refers to as'ttee hand" bonus program, which pays awards fostanting performance. Bonus expense
for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 totaled agprately $316,000, $202,000, and $2,687,000 resggtiof which approximately
$155,000 and $202,000 is included in accrued liggslat January 2, 2009 and December 28, 200Fectisely.

Post employment health benefits

In May 2006, the Company's board of directgpproved providing lifetime health insurancearage for Win Westfall, the Company's
former chief executive officer and current chairnedithe board of directors, and his spouse and iftfa Heil, the widow of the Company's
former chief executive officer, Dan Heil. Mrs. H&lalso a member of the Company's board of directedditionally, the board approved
health insurance coverage for Mrs. Heil's two depeis until they reach the maximum age for depent®mrerage under the Company's
health insurance policy.

During fiscal year 2006, the Company reedrdeneral and administrative expense equal tprésent value of the expected payments
for health insurance coverage for Mrs. Heil anddegendents. As of January 2, 2009, $119,000 isded in accrued liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet relatdistobligation. The Company also began to amartzgeneral and administrative
expense, the present value of the expected payrfoemiestemployment health coverage for Mr. Westfall anddpisuse over the period frc
approval of the benefit to his estimated date tifement. During fiscal year 2007, Mr. Westfall coranicated his intent to retire as chief
executive officer and the Company prospectivelysidid the amortization. As of December 28, 2007Jamdiary 2, 2009, the entire amount
related to Mr. Westfall had been amortized.
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The (benefit) provision for income taxesnprised of:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Current federal (benefit) taxi $(827,0000 $ 650,000 $ 200,00(
Current state taxe 9,00( 156,00( 219,00(
Deferred federal taxe 77,00( 570,00 1,282,00I
Deferred state (benefit) tax (189,000 167,00( 320,00t

$(930,00() $1,543,00 $2,021,00!

The (benefit) provision for income taxesarciles to the amounts computed by applying thrigiry federal tax rate to our (loss) incc
before income taxes. The sources and tax effedtedifferences for fiscal years 2008, 2007 an@b2fre as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Computed "expected" federal income tax (benefipesse $(862,00() $1,253,000 $ 2,972,00!
Permanent differen—federal income tax effect of n-taxable life insurance proce« — — (765,000
Other permanent differenc 74,00( 81,00( 87,00(
Current and deferred state income tax (benefitgpgp, net of federal bene (119,000 217,00( 145,00(
Tax effect of earnings not subject to federal inedax due to S Corporation electi — — (1,931,000
Federal and state tax effect of S to C Corporatmmversior — 1,543,001

Other (23,000 (8,000) (30,000)
$(930,00() $1,543,00 $ 2,021,00!
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11. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differencest tive rise to significant portions of the neteteéd tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

January 2, December 28, December 29,
2009 2007 2006
Current deferred tax asse
Accrued litigation judgmer $ 65,000 $ 127,000 $2,517,00
Accounts receivable allowan: 250,00 206,00( 268,00(
Other accrued liabilitie 520,00( 643,00( 882,00(
835,00( 976,00( 3,667,001
Current deferred tax liabilitie:
Deferred revenu (3,306,00) (2,978,00) (3,242,00i)
Other (48,000 — —
Litigation receivable — — (1,687,000
(3,354,00) (2,978,00) (4,929,00)
Net current deferred tax liabilit $(2,519,00) $(2,002,00) $(1,262,00i)
Deferred tax assets, net of current port
Federal and state net operating los $ 628,000 $ — 9 —
Equipment and leasehold improvement depreci: 165,00( 162,00( 94,00(
Stock options 27,00( 23,00( —
820,00 185,00( 94,00(

Deferred tax liabilities, net of current portic
Goodwill amortizatior (587,00() (580,001 (492,00()

Net deferred tax assets (liability), net of currpattior $ 233,000 $ (395,000 $ (398,00()

Management believes it is more likely timan that the Company will realize the benefit of theferred tax assets existing at January 2,
2009. Further, management believes the existingeductible temporary differences will reverse dgrmperiods in which the Company
generates net taxable income. There can be ncaasgjthowever, that the Company will generate texadrnings or any specific level of
continuing earnings in the future.

Management also believes that there amaaterial uncertain tax positions with respect td BB that would impact the 2008 financial
statements.

At January 2, 2009, the Company had federdlstate net operating loss carryovers of $1lidomiand $3.2 million, respectively. These
carryovers expire in 2029 and 2030 for federal statk income taxes, respectively.

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has three segments: Engine8engces, Public Finance Services and Homelandrig&ervices. The Engineering
Services segment includes Willdan Engineering, dsitl Geotechnical, Public Agency Resources, WilRasource Solutions and Willdan
Energy Solutions. The
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Engineering Services segment performs servicea bopad range of public agency clients and, teseleextent, private industry, and offers a
full complement of civil and geotechnical enginegribuilding and safety services, energy efficiersustainability, water conservation,
construction management, and municipal planningises to clients throughout the western Unitedestathe Public Finance Services
segment, which consists of Willdan Financial Segsjqrovides expertise and support for the varimascing techniques employed by put
agencies to finance their operations and infrasirecalong with the mandated reporting and othguirements associated with these
financings. The Homeland Security Services segmnith consists of Willdan Homeland Solutions, pdes homeland security,
management consulting and public safety consuftergices to cities, counties and related municpalice agencies.

The accounting policies applied to detesrtime segment information are the same as thoseilted in the summary of significant
accounting policies. There were no intersegmemssalr any of the fiscal years in the three-yeaiogeended January 2, 2009. Management
evaluates the performance of each segment basedngmme or loss from operations before yead performance bonuses and income t:
Certain segment asset information including expenes for longhived assets has not been presented as it is pottegl to or reviewed by ti
chief operating decision maker. In addition, entegwide service line contract revenue is notudeld as it is impracticable to report this
information for each group of similar services.
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial information with respect to tleportable segments and reconciliation to the anso@morted in the Company's consolidated
financial statements follows:

Homeland
Engineering Public Unallocatec Consolidatec
Finance Security
Services Services Services  Corporate Intersegment Total
Fiscal Year 2008:
Contract revenu $57,324,000 $13,660,00 $2,206,000 $ — $ — $ 73,190,00
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,639,00I 252,00( 87,00( — — 1,978,00I
Interest expense (incom 18,00( (8,000 23,00( — — 33,00(
Segment (loss) profit before bonuses and incomexaens (3,555,001 2,126,00! (955,00() (101,000 — (2,485,001
Income tax (benefit) expen (1,377,000 863,00( (376,000) (40,000 — (930,000
Net (loss) incom¢ (2,203,00I) 1,238,00! (579,00() (61,000)(1) — (1,605,001
Segment asse 82,062,000 14,396,00 2,657,000 74,470,00' (2) (126,015,00) 47,570,00!
Fiscal Year 2007:
Contract revenu 64,372,001 12,684,00 1,742,001 — — 78,798,00!
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,352,00! 336,00( 59,00( — — 1,747,001
Interest (income) expen: (494,000 (26,000 21,00( — — (499,000
Segment profit (loss) before bonuses and incomexaens 2,076,00( 1,765,001 (68,000 (86,000 — 3,687,001
Income tax expense (benet 875,00( 727,00( (25,000 (34,000 — 1,543,001
Net income (loss 1,200,00! 1,038,00! (42,000 (52,000(1) — 2,144,001
Segment asse 26,852,000 10,658,00 1,048,000  29,040,00' (2) (19,372,00) 48,226,00!
Fiscal Year 2006:
Contract revenu 65,887,00! 11,495,00 957,00( — — 78,339,00!
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,215,00! 333,00( 36,00( — — 1,584,00I
Interest expens 732,00( 12,00( 29,00( — — 773,00(
Segment profit (loss) before bonuses and incomexaens 8,213,001 1,554,00! (322,000) 1,446,00! — 10,891,00
Income tax expense (benet 2,093,001 460,00( (134,000) (398,000 — 2,021,001
Net income (loss 4,589,001 757,00( (222,000) 1,596,001 (1) — 6,720,001
Segment asse 36,926,000 10,158,00 480,000  29,639,00 (2) (20,095,00) 57,108,00!
1) The following sets forth the amounts included ie ttet income (loss) that was Unallocated Corpdmatéscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006:
2008 2007 2006
Unallocated net income (los¢
Annual bonuse $ —  $ — $ (248,000)
Special bonuse — — (104,00()
Salaries and wages, payroll taxes and employesdfitse — — (366,00()
Life insurance proceec — — 2,250,001
Post employment health benel — — (162,000
Stock-based compensatic — — (38,000
Income tax benef 40,00( 34,00( 398,00(
Other (101,000 (86,000) (134,000

$ (61,000 $(52,00() $1,596,00!

Most types of overhead costs incurred by Willdanu@y, Inc. are allocated to the Company's segmelaiwever, because management makes operating deceinl assesses
performance of the Company's segments based ancfadanformation before bonuses, the bonuses fidldah Group, Inc. employees were not allocatethosegments. The income from
life insurance proceeds received during fiscal &6 were not allocated for a similar reason.
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

) The following sets forth the assets that are inetlith Unallocated Corporate as of January 2, 2D@@8ember 28, 2007 and December 29, 2006.
2008 2007 2006
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 7,049,000 $15,299,000 $20,331,00!
Liquid investment: — 1,300,00! —
Prepaid expenst 1,498,001 1,524,001 1,406,001
Intercompany receivable 46,910,00! 4,352,001 955,00(
Income tax receivabl 956,00( — —
Other receivable 44,00( 69,00( 130,00(
Equipment and leasehold improvements, 669,00( 952,00( 1,227,001
Investments in subsidiarit 16,919,00 5,354,001 5,354,001
Other asset 425,00( 190,00( 236,00(

$74,470,000 $29,040,000 $29,639,00

13. OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in subconsultant services expeimsttee accompanying consolidated statements afatipas are expenses for services prov
to the Company by an affiliate of a member of tln@any's board of directors totaling $23,000 fer pleriod during fiscal year 2006 in
which this individual served as a board member.

Included in other general and administexBxpenses in the accompanying consolidated staterokoperations are expenses for
services provided to the Company by an affiliate édrmer member of the Company's board of diredimtaling $32,000 for the period
during 2006 in which this individual served as attbmember.

14. PRO FORMA INCOME TAXES (UNAUDITED)

Upon completion of the IPO (as more fulgsdribed in Note 1), the Company ceased to quadifgn S corporation. Thus, the Company
is taxed at regular corporate rates. For infornmatipurposes, the Company's consolidated stateroofserations include pro forma
adjustments for income taxes at a 40% rate thatdMuawve been recorded if the Company were a C Qatipo for fiscal year 2006. The pro
forma tax provision for fiscal year 2006 refledis nontaxability of life insurance proceeds.

15. LIFE INSURANCE PROCEEDS

On May 15, 2006, the Company's co-founder chief executive officer, Dan W. Heil, passed wawihe Company carried two life
insurance policies on Mr. Heil totaling $2.3 mitiin coverage. The $2.3 million was received indlsyear 2007 and is included in other, net
under other (expense) income in the accompanyingatwated statement of operations for the fisearyended December 29, 2006.
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16. CONTINGENCIES
Claims and Lawsuits

The Company is subject from time to timevanious claims and lawsuits, including those afiggrofessional errors or omissions that
arise in the ordinary course of business againssfthat operate in the engineering and consuftinfessions. The Company carries
professional liability insurance, subject to certdeductibles and policy limits, for such claimdfaesy arise and may from time to time
establish reserves for litigation that is considgueobable of loss.

County of San Diego v. WilldaBuperior Court of California, Riverside County

A complaint was filed against the Companyrebruary 28, 2008 relating to a project for theonstruction of a portion of Valley Center
Road located in an unincorporated area of San Dagmty. The Company completed the design and &amirwas awarded to a construc
contractor for construction of the improvementse Tonstruction was originally scheduled for corniplein December 2008; however
completion has been delayed until fall 2009. Theslait alleges that the delays in construction voengsed by errors and omissions in the
Company's preparation of reports and design antheedng of the project, resulting in additionakim and construction costs, in an amount
to be determined but believed to be in excess df Bllion. The Company denies the allegations idsden the lawsuit and will vigorously
defend against the claims. At January 2, 2009Cthmpany did not have a liability recorded on itlahae sheet related to this complaint.

Topaz v. City of Laguna BeaclSuperior Court of California, Orange County

This suit concerns a project by the Cityafjuna Beach to reconstruct a retaining wall supppa city road. The Company served as
construction observer for this project and desigihedretaining wall. Subsequent to completion efphoject, a slope below the retaining wall
failed damaging the plaintiffs' residence. Theiréte wall did not fail. The construction work wperformed from February to March 2005
and the slope failure occurred in June 2005. Thintiffs were not injured in the incident. The pitifs allege that the City of Laguna Beach
violated its own ordinances by not obtaining appadp geotechnical data during the design stageogradlowing the work to be constructed
during the rainy season. The lawsuit names Merifigering, the project designer, Peter§&rase Engineering, the general contractor an
Company, the construction observer, as defenda@htesCompany was named as a defendant in the firshded complaint filed on
October 17, 2007. The plaintiffs filed a mediattmef on April 25, 2008 indicating damages to raadl personal property in the amount of
$0.8 million and general damages between $1.6anilind $4.7 million. A cross-complaint has beeexfiin the action by Peterson-Chase
Engineering against the Company seeking equitgigersionment. The Company denies the allegatiossrtexd in the lawsuit and cross-
complaint and will vigorously defend against thairls. At January 2, 2009, the Company did not lsalability recorded on its balance sh
related to this complaint.
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17. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The tables below reflect selected quartiefigrmation for the fiscal years ended Januar®@®9, December 28, 2007 and December 29,
2006.

Fiscal Three Months Ended

March 28, September 2€
June 27, January 2,
2008 2008 2008 2009
(in thousands except per share amounts)
Contract revenu $17,77¢ $17,80°7 $ 18,65 $ 18,95¢
Income (loss) from operatiol 43 (130 (704) (2,009
Income tax expense (bene! 95 16 (250 (791)
Net income (loss 11€ (55) (437) (1,229
Earnings (loss) per shai
basic and dilute $ 00z $ (0.01) $ (0.060 $ (0.17)
Weightec-average shares outstandil
Basic 7,15¢ 7,15¢ 7,16( 7,164
Diluted 7,15¢ 7,157 7,16( 7,17
Fiscal Three Months Ended
March 30, September 26 December 2€
June 29,
2007 2007 2007 2007
(in thousands except per share amounts)
Contract revenu $19,26¢ $21,18( $ 19,68 $ 18,66
(Loss) income from operatiol (1,107 1,68¢ 1,65%(3) 284(1)
Income tax (benefit) expen (2093 754 77¢ 114
Net (loss) incomi (250 1,05¢ 1,05: 28¢
(Loss) earnings per shai
basic and dilute $ (005 $ 018 $ 0.1t $ 0.0
Weightec-average shares outstandi
Basic 7,14¢ 7,14¢ 7,15( 7,15(
Diluted 7,14¢ 7,151 7,161 7,151
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17. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (Co ntinued)

Fiscal Three Months Ended

March 31, September 2¢  December 2¢€
June 30,
2006 2006 2006 2006
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Contract revenu $17,827 $20,27: $ 20,95¢ $ 19,29:
Income from operatior 1,013 1,84¢ 2,914(3) 1,2754)
Income tax expens 13 25 41 1,947
Net income (loss 88¢€ 3,87¢(2) 2,69¢ (744
Earnings (loss) per shai

basic and dilute: $ 01¢ $ 08z $ 057 $ (019
Weightec-average shares outstandi

Basic and dilute: 4,711 4,71z 4,71z 5,46¢
Pro forma data
Pro forma provision for income tax 36C 662 1,09¢ 47¢
Pro forma net incom 53¢ 3,24% 1,64 72C
Pro forma earnings per common share,

basic and dilute: $ 011 $ 06¢ $ 03 $ 0.1z

1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

On February 25, 2008, the appeals court set asaedurt's favorable ruling for a $1.0 million caiThis subsequent event resulted in
the Company concluding that the $1.0 million reable was no longer considered to be probable ¢téattn. Accordingly, the
Company reversed the receivable and increasedtlitiy expense in its fiscal year 2007 consolidéiteahcial statements.

Net income for the fiscal three months ended Jin@B06 includes $2.3 million in life insurance peeds related to the death of the
Company's co-founder and former chief executiveeeffin May 2006 (as more fully described in No%).1

Income from operations for the fiscal three morghded September 29, 2006 includes a reductiotigation accrual expense of
$1.0 million related to a court ruling awarding thempany approximately $1.0 million on a claim ffedlemnity in connection with a
claim that arose in fiscal year 2002.

The income tax provision for the fiscal three maenginded December 29, 2006 includes approximatefyiilion related to the
Company's conversion from an S Corporation to ao€p@ration. Effective upon the first day of tradioigthe Company's common
stock as a result of its IPO, the Company's S Gatjm status was terminated and thereafter thep@omis subject to federal and
state income taxes as a C Corporation. Approxim&el5 million of the income tax provision is thiéeet of recognizing the
Company's deferred tax liability using C Corporatiederal and state tax rates instead of S Coriporatate tax rates. The Company's
policy for accounting for income taxes is describetllote 2. The Company's presentation of pro foimcame tax data is described in
Note 14.

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company's revolving line of credit wifells Fargo Bank, National Association ("Wells galf) was amended on March 30, 2009

following the Company's breach of its maximum sl
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18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

covenant for the year ended January 2, 2009. Wallgo waived this breach and eliminated or modifiedain financial covenants in the
credit agreement in exchange for increased priaimjthe Company providing additional collaterale Tiew collateral provided is investment
property the Company holds in a securities accatki¥ells Fargo that must at all times have a cedidtvalue of at least $5.0 million.

Loans made under the $5.0 million revolMing of credit currently accrue interest at eitligthe floating rate equal to the prime rate in
effect from time to time or (i) the fixed rate ®f75% above LIBOR, at the Company's election. Fiong rate loans, the interest rate will be
adjusted when each prime rate change by the baarkisunced and becomes effective. The minimum liémget worth the Company is
required to maintain was reduced from $20.0 milli@$18.0 million, and all of the other financialvenants in the credit agreement were
eliminated.
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 8, B§@nd among Willdan Group, Inc., Intergy Cogimm and the
Stockholders of Intergy Corporation(
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Willdan Group, Incndluding amendments thereto
3.2 Bylaws of Willdan Group, Inc.(2
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate for shares of the Remgiss Common Stock(:
4.2 The Company agrees to furnish to the SecuritiesEattange Commission upon request a copy of eattument with respect
to issues of long-term debt of Willdan Group, land its subsidiaries, the authorized principal amaf which does not exceed
10% of the consolidated assets of Willdan Group, &md its subsidiarie
10.1 Credit Agreement, dated December 28, 2007, betwdéidan Group, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, NatioAakociation, relating
to the Revolving Line of Credit Note in 10.6(
10.z First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated May®& between Willdan Group, Inc. and Wells FargolB&ational
Association(4
10.2 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated JuB8(dRB, between Willdan Group, Inc. and Wells FaBgok, National
Association(4
10.4 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, entered imda&cember 19, 2008, between Willdan Group, Ind.\&tells Fargo Bank,
National Association(t
10.t Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, entered amd/larch 30, 2009, between Willdan Group, Inc. ¥ells Fargo Bank,
National Association’
10.€ Revolving Line of Credit Note for $5,000,000, daMdrch 30, 2009, by Willdan Group, Inc. in favorWeklls Fargo Bank,
National Association’
10.7 Security Agreement: Equipment, dated December @87 2between Willdan Group, Inc. and Wells FargalBalational
Association, relating to the Revolving Line of Citedote in 10.6(3
10.& Continuing Security Agreement: Rights to Paymermt lrventory, dated December 28, 2007, between Wfll@roup, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, relatinghe Revolving Line of Credit Note in 10.6(
10.¢ Security Agreement: Securities Account, dated M&@h2009, between Willdan Group, Inc. and WellggBaBank, National

Association, relating to the Revolving Line of Citedote in 10.6*

10.1(T Willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

10.11T Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement

10.1:7 Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement(

10.1T Amended and Restated Willdan Group, Inc. 2006 Epg#cStock Purchase Plan

10.1<F Willdan Group, Inc. 2008 Performance Incentive PIa

10.1:T Form of Indemnification Agreement between WilldaroGp, Inc. and its Directors and Officers




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
10.1€ Office Lease by and between Spectrum WaplestStrte€, a California limited liability company, Spgum Lambert
Plaza, LLC, a California limited liability compamnd The Willdan Group of Companies dated Octobe2@84 for the principal
office located at 2401 East Katella Avenue, Anah&alifornia(2)
10.17 First Amendment to Lease by and between 2401 KatellC and The Willdan Group of Companies, datebr&ary 27, 2006 fc
the principal office located at 2401 Katella AvenAeaheim, California(2
10.1¢ Second Amendment to Lease by and between 2401l&dtelC and The Willdan Group of Companies dateddfe, 2006 for
the principal office located at 2401 Katella Avepdaaheim, California(2
10.1¢ Warrant Agreement between Willdan Group, Inc. anetish Morgan Securities Inc.|

10.2(T Indemnification Agreement between Willdan Groug;. land Linda Heil(2

10.21t Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Inel @homas D. Brisbin dated April 2, 2007

10.2:T Employment Agreement between Willdan Group, Ind Kimberly D. Gant dated July 23, 2007

10.2:T Offer Letter from Willdan Group, Inc. to Daniel Cralated October 29, 2008 and accepted NovembeXOB(20)

14.1

21.1

23.1

24.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

Code of Ethical Conduct of Willdan Group, Inc.
Subsidiaries of Willdan Group, Inc

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*
Power of Attorney (included on signature page logi

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Secuktkebange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to 8 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Secuiifiehange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to 8 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002*

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, dsped pursuant to § 906 of
the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002*

(1)

()

(3)

(4)

Filed herewith.

Indicates a management contract or compensatimggplarrangement.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, In€tsrent Report on Form B; filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio
June 9, 2008.

Incorporated by reference to Willdan Group, InR&gistration Statement on Form S-1, filed with $eeurities and Exchange
Commission on August 9, 2006, as amended (File388:136444).
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Exhibit 10.5
FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "fendment") is entered into as of March 30, 200%y between WILLDAI
GROUP, INC., a Delaware corporation ("Borrower)daVELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Bank").

RECITALS

A. Borrower is currently indebted to Bgwursuant to the terms and conditions of thattei€redit Agreement between Borrower and
Bank dated as of December 28, 2007, as amendedtifr@rio time ("Credit Agreement").

B. Pursuant to Section 4.9 (b) of thediirAgreement, Borrower and its Subsidiaries werpiired to maintain, on a consolidated b
net losses before taxes of not more than $1,00@M00fh an annual basis as of the fiscal year enthngary 2, 2009. Borrower and its
Subsidiaries sustained net losses before taxe®@ than $1,000,000.00 in the fiscal year endimydey 2, 2009, resulting in a violation of
this covenant and an Event of Default under theliCAgreement (the "Existing Default").

C. Borrower has requested that Bank evétie Existing Default and Bank has agreed to dswdgject to the terms and conditions set
forth herein. In addition, Bank and Borrower hageed to certain changes in the terms and condigenforth in the Credit Agreement and
have agreed to amend the Credit Agreement to tefied changes.

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideratithe receipt and sufficiency of which are herebynaeviedged, the parties hereto agree
that the Credit Agreement shall be amended aswsllo

1. The Line of Credit Note dated Decem®B, 2007 referred to Section 1.1 (a) of the Erkgreement shall be replaced witl
promissory note dated as of March 30, 2009, (wpidmissory note shall be deemed the Line of Ciédte defined in and made
pursuant to the Credit Agreement).

2. Section 1.2 (c) is hereby deleteiisirentirety, and the following substituted theref

"(c) Unused Commitment Fee.Borrower shall pay to Bank a fee equal to yhfite hundredths percent
(0.35%) per annum (computed on the basis of a 28§0ydar, actual days elapsed) on the average wiaiiged amount
of the Line of Credit, which fee shall be calcuthtsn a fiscal quarterly basis by Bank and shallibbe and payable by
Borrower in arrears within ten (10) days after ebiting is sent by Bank."

3. Section 1.4 is hereby deleted iritdrety, and the following substituted therefor:
"SECTION 1.4. COLLATERAL.

As security for all indebtedness and otitdigations of Borrower to Bank subject hereto, Barer hereby grants
to Bank security interests of first priority in &8brrower's accounts receivable and other rightsatoment, general
intangibles, inventory, equipment and custody antoumber 13041132 held with Wells Fargo Instita¢ib
Securities, LLC.

As security for all indebtedness and otitdigations of Borrower to Bank subject hereto, Barer shall cause
Willdan Financial Services, Willdan Geotechnicalilldan Engineering, Willdan Homeland Solutions, \4&n Energy
Solutions and any other Subsidiary (as definedvigeto grant to Bank security interests of firstgpity in all
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accounts receivable and other rights to paymemieig intangibles, inventory and equipment.

All of the foregoing shall be evidenceddnd subject to the terms of such security agreespnénancing
statements, deeds or mortgages, and other docuaseB@nk shall reasonably require, all in form anlstance
satisfactory to Bank. Borrower shall pay to Bankniediately upon demand the full amount of all chargests and
expenses (to include fees paid to third partiesadnallocated costs of Bank personnel), expendedaurred by Bank
in connection with any of the foregoing securifygluding without limitation, filing and recordingés and costs of
appraisals, audits and title insurance."

4. Section 4.3 (c) is hereby deleteiisirentirety, and the following substituted theref
"(c) not later then 30 days after and athefend of each month, brokerage statements ab®er;"
5. Section 4.9 is hereby deleted iritsrety, and the following substituted therefor:

"SECTION 4.9. TANGIBLE NET WORTH. U=l generally accepted accounting principles comsilst
applied and used consistently with prior practi@sept to the extent modified by the definitiorsdin), Borrower
shall, and shall cause each Subsidiary to, maini@Tangible Net Worth of Borrower and its Sulwsiidis, on a
consolidated basis, of not less than $18,000,00@@y time. As used herein, "Tangible Net Woithdefined as the
aggregate of total stockholders' equity less atgnigible assets and less any loans or advancesitojestments in, ar
related entities or individuals."

6. Subject to the terms and conditigetsforth herein, Bank hereby waives the Existirgdanlt. This waiver applies only to the
Existing Default. It is not a waiver of any breaufrany other provision of the Credit Agreement. &picas expressly stated in this
Amendment, Bank reserves all of the rights, powaeid remedies available to Bank under the Crediefgrent and any other contre
or instruments signed by Borrower or any guarantatuding the right to cease making advances tod@®eer and the right to
accelerate any of Borrower's indebtedness, if abgaquent breach of any other provision of the i€Aggteement should occur.

7. Except as specifically provided frgrall terms and conditions of the Credit Agreetr@main in full force and effect,
without waiver or modification. All terms defined the Credit Agreement shall have the same meamiiregn used in this Amendment.
This Amendment and the Credit Agreement shall bd tegether, as one document.

8. Borrower hereby remakes all repreg@ns and warranties contained in the Credit Agrent and reaffirms all covenants
forth therein. Borrower further certifies that ddfte date of this Amendment there exists no Ewéliefault as defined in the Credit
Agreement, nor any condition, act or event whicthwhe giving of notice or the passage of time athbwould constitute any such
Event of Default.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto heaesed this Amendment to be executed as of thamihyear first written above.

WELLS FARGO BANK,

WILLDAN GROUP, INC. NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ Kimberly Gant By: /s/ Randall Repp
Kimberly Gant Randall Repj

Title: Chief Financial Officel Vice Presiden




QuickLinks
Exhibit 10.5

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 10.6
WELLS FARGO REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT NOTE
$5,000,000.00 West Covina, California

March 30, 200¢

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Willd&noup, Inc. ("Borrower") promises to pay to thderof WELLS FARGO BANK,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Bank") at its office aSan Gabriel Valley RCBO, 1000 Lakes Drive, Suite #b, West Covina, CA 91790,
or at such other place as the holder hereof magme, in lawful money of the United States of Aioa& and in immediately available funds,
the principal sum 0$5,000,000.00 or so much thereof as may be advanced and benodisg, with interest thereon, to be computedawhe
advance from the date of its disbursement as sttt fierein.

1. DEFINITIONS:

As used herein, the following terms shalvdrthe meanings set forth after each, and any tha defined in this Note shall have
the meaning set forth at the place defined:

1.1 "Business Day" means any day exc&atarday, Sunday or any other day on which comialdranks in California
are authorized or required by law to close.

1.2 "Fixed Rate Term" means a period cemeing on a Business Day and continuingdioe (1), three (3) or six
(6) months, as designated by Borrower, during which all poation of the outstanding principal balance oftNite bears
interest determined in relation to LIBOR; providealvever, that no Fixed Rate Term may be selected fwincipal amount
less thar$100,000.0Q and provided further, that no Fixed Rate Termishdend beyond the scheduled maturity date heté
any Fixed Rate Term would end on a day which isanBusiness Day, then such Fixed Rate Term shalktended to the next
succeeding Business Day.

1.3 "LIBOR" means the rate per annumcd upward, if necessary, to the nearest whidef 1%) determined by
dividing Base LIBOR by a percentage equal to 108%6 lany LIBOR Reserve Percentage.

(a) "Base LIBOR" means the rate per anfominited States dollar deposits quoted by Bantha Inter-Bank
Market Offered Rate, with the understanding thahsate is quoted by Bank for the purpose of cating effective
rates of interest for loans making reference tloeiat the first day of a Fixed Rate Term for defyvef funds on said
date for a period of time approximately equal t® tlumber of days in such Fixed Rate Term and ianaount
approximately equal to the principal amount to vatsach Fixed Rate Term applies. Borrower understand agrees
that Bank may base its quotation of the Inter-Bitakket Offered Rate upon such offers or other mardicators of
the Inter-Bank Market as Bank in its discretionmseappropriate including, but not limited to, tlageroffered for U.S.
dollar deposits on the London Inter-Bank Market.

(b) "LIBOR Reserve Percentage" meansédherve percentage prescribed by the Board of Goveof the
Federal Reserve System (or any successor) for tHrmency Liabilities" (as defined in Regulation Bte Federal
Reserve Board, as amended), adjusted by Bank pmcésd changes in such reserve percentage dugrapgiicable
Fixed Rate Term.




1.4 "Prime Rate" means at any time the o&interest most recently announced within Banits principal office as its
Prime Rate, with the understanding that the Primte i one of Bank's base rates and serves aasieupon which effective
rates of interest are calculated for those loarismgaeference thereto, and is evidenced by therdieg thereof after its
announcement in such internal publication or paliis as Bank may designate.

2. INTEREST:

2.1 Interest. The outstanding principal balance of this Naltall bear interest (computed on the basis26Gday year,
actual days elapsed) either (a) at a fluctuatitg par annum equal to the Prime Rate in effect fiiame to time, or (b) at a fixed rate
per annum determined by Bank to h&5000%above LIBOR in effect on the first day of the applble Fixed Rate Term. When
interest is determined in relation to the PrimeeRaach change in the rate of interest hereunddirtsdttome effective on the date each
Prime Rate change is announced within Bank. Wigheet to each LIBOR selection option selected hetey Bank is hereby
authorized to note the date, principal amountyetterate and Fixed Rate Term applicable theredoaay payments made thereon on
Bank's books and records (either manually or bgtedaic entry) and/or on any schedule attachetitoNote, which notations shall
prima facie evidence of the accuracy of the infdiamanoted.

2.2 Selection of Interest Rate OptionsAt any time any portion of this Note bears et determined in relation to LIBOR, it
may be continued by Borrower at the end of the dFiRate Term applicable thereto so that all or éiguothereof bears interest
determined in relation to the Prime Rate or to LBfor a new Fixed Rate Term designated by Borroyxeany time any portion of
this Note bears interest determined in relatiothéoPrime Rate, Borrower may convert all or a porthereof so that it bears interest
determined in relation to LIBOR for a Fixed Ratemalesignated by Borrower. At such time as Borroreguests an advance
hereunder or wishes to select a LIBOR option fboah portion of the outstanding principal balahegeof, and at the end of each
Fixed Rate Term, Borrower shall give Bank noticedfying: (a) the interest rate option selectedloyrower; (b) the principal amot
subject thereto; and (c) for each LIBOR selectthe,length of the applicable Fixed Rate Term. Anghsnotice may be given by
telephone (or such other electronic method as Baank permit) so long as, with respect to each LIB&Rction, (i) if requested by
Bank, Borrower provides to Bank written confirmatithereof not later than 3 Business Days after stice is given, and (ii) such
notice is given to Bank prior to 10:00 a.m. onfingt day of the Fixed Rate Term, or at a lateretiduring any Business Day if Bank
it's sole option but without obligation to do socapts Borrower's notice and quotes a fixed raotwower. If Borrower does not
immediately accept a fixed rate when quoted by B#mk quoted rate shall expire and any subsequ&@HR request from Borrower
shall be subject to a redetermination by Bank efdpplicable fixed rate. If no specific designatirinterest is made at the time any
advance is requested hereunder or at the end dfiaagl Rate Term, Borrower shall be deemed to Inaage a Prime Rate interest
selection for such advance or the principal améamthich such Fixed Rate Term applied.

2.3 Taxes and Regulatory CostsBorrower shall pay to Bank immediately upon denh in addition to any other amounts 1
or to become due hereunder, any and all (a) witlihgs, interest equalization taxes, stamp taxethar taxes (except income and
franchise taxes) imposed by any domestic or forgigrernmental authority and related in any mannéiBOR, and (b) future,
supplemental, emergency or other changes in th©RIReserve Percentage, assessment rates impotsel lbgderal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, or similar requirementsaste imposed by any domestic or foreign governnhentizority or resulting from
compliance by Bank with any request or directiv@étiher or not having the force of law) from anytcainbank or other governmen
authority and related in any manner to LIBOR toéR&ent they are
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not included in the calculation of LIBOR. In deténing which of the foregoing are attributable to/diBOR option available to
Borrower hereunder, any reasonable allocation rbgdgank among its operations shall be conclusivcek@nding upon Borrower.

2.4 Payment of Interest. Interest accrued on this Note shall be payablthe 1st day of each month, commendipgil 1,
2009.

2.5 Default Interest. From and after the maturity date of this Notesuch earlier date as all principal owing hereund
becomes due and payable by acceleration or otherthis outstanding principal balance of this Not&ldear interest until paid in fi
at an increased rate per annum (computed on tlie dfees 360-day year, actual days elapsed) equéfd@bove the rate of interest
from time to time applicable to this Note.

3. BORROWING AND REPAYMENT:

3.1 Borrowing and Repayment. Borrower may from time to time during the teofrthis Note borrow, partially or wholly
repay its outstanding borrowings, and reborrowjetttio all of the limitations, terms and conditsoorf this Note and of the Credit
Agreement between Borrower and Bank defined befmayided however, that the total outstanding boimgs under this Note shall
not at any time exceed the principal amount stabteVe. The unpaid principal balance of this obiayaat any time shall be the total
amounts advanced hereunder by the holder herentiesamount of principal payments made hereorr lbgrdorrower, which
balance may be endorsed hereon from time to timédonolder. The outstanding principal balancehisf Note shall be due and
payable in full onJanuary 1, 2010.

3.2 Advances. Advances hereunder, to the total amount oftirecipal sum available hereunder, may be madééyolder
at the oral or written request of (Blomas D. Brisbin or Kimberly D. Gant or Roy Gill or Kate Nguyen, any one acting alone, who
are authorized to request advances and directigpesition of any advances until written noticeloé revocation of such authority is
received by the holder at the office designatedrabor (b) any person, with respect to advancessitgul to the credit of any deposit
account of Borrower, which advances, when so dégahsshall be conclusively presumed to have beaterntmor for the benefit of
Borrower regardless of the fact that persons dttear those authorized to request advances mayadkierity to draw against such
account. The holder shall have no obligation t@deine whether any person requesting an advararehias been authorized by
Borrower.

3.3 Application of Payments. Each payment made on this Note shall be cr(iitgt, to any interest then due and second, to
the outstanding principal balance hereof. All pagtaeredited to principal shall be applied firstttte outstanding principal balance
this Note which bears interest determined in retato the Prime Rate, if any, and second, to thstanding principal balance of this
Note which bears interest determined in relatiohlBROR, with such payments applied to the oldegeHiRate Term first.

4. PREPAYMENT:

4.1 Prime Rate. Borrower may prepay principal on any portiortto§ Note which bears interest determined in i@fato the
Prime Rate at any time, in any amount and witheuiaty.

4.2 LIBOR. Borrower may prepay principal on any portiortto§ Note which bears interest determined in i@fato LIBOR
at any time and in the minimum amount§df00,000.0Q provided however, that if the outstanding pritipalance of such portion of
this Note is less than said amount, the minimunpg@yment amount shall be the entire outstandingijmah balance thereof. In
consideration of Bank providing this prepaymeniapto Borrower, or if any such portion of this Mathall become due and payable
at any time prior to the last day of the Fixed




Rate Term applicable thereto by acceleration oemtfse, Borrower shall pay to Bank immediately upemand a fee which is the
sum of the discounted monthly differences for emomth from the month of prepayment through the mmamtwvhich such Fixed Rate
Term matures, calculated as follows for each suchtm

(@) Determinethe amount of interest which would have accruedh @agnth on the amount prepaid at the interest rate
applicable to such amount had it remained outstendntil the last day of the Fixed Rate Term aggtlle thereto.

(b) Subtractfrom the amount determined in (a) above the amotiimterest which would have accrued for the same
month on the amount prepaid for the remaining tefisuch Fixed Rate Term at LIBOR in effect on tla¢edof prepayment for
new loans made for such term and in a principalarhequal to the amount prepaid.

(c) If the result obtained in (b) foryamonth is greater than zero, discount that difieesby LIBOR used in (b) above.

Borrower acknowledges that prepayment of such atmoay result in Bank incurring additional costsperses and/or liabilities, and that i
difficult to ascertain the full extent of such cgstxpenses and/or liabilities. Borrower, therefagrees to pay the above-described
prepayment fee and agrees that said amount repsesesasonable estimate of the prepayment cogtsnses and/or liabilities of Bank. If
Borrower fails to pay any prepayment fee when tlue amount of such prepayment fee shall therebéar interest until paid at a rate per
annum2.000% above the Prime Rate in effect from time to timengputed on the basis of380-day year, actual days elapsed).

5. EVENTS OF DEFAULT:

This Note is made pursuant to and is stibgethe terms and conditions of that certain GrAdreement between Borrower and
Bank dated as dbecember 28, 2007 as amended from time to time (the "Credit Agreetf)eAny default in the payment or
performance of any obligation under this Note, my defined event of default under the Credit Agreatnshall constitute an "Event
Default" under this Note.

6. MISCELLANEOUS:

6.1 Remedies. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defaul, ttblder of this Note, at the holder's option, rdaglare all
sums of principal and interest outstanding hereutawlbe immediately due and payable without present, demand, notice of
nonperformance, notice of protest, protest or eaticdishonor, all of which are expressly waivedBoyrower, and the obligation, if
any, of the holder to extend any further credigleder shall immediately cease and terminate. Baraghall pay to the holder
immediately upon demand the full amount of all payts, advances, charges, costs and expenses,jgctedsonable attorneys' fees
(to include outside counsel fees and all allocatests of the holder's in-house counsel), expendéttarred by the holder in
connection with the enforcement of the holder'stggand/or the collection of any amounts which beeaue to the holder under this
Note, and the prosecution or defense of any aatiamy way related to this Note, including withdiatitation, any action for
declaratory relief, whether incurred at the trinhppellate level, in an arbitration proceedingtrerwise, and including any of the
foregoing incurred in connection with any bankrygbcoceeding (including without limitation, any adsary proceeding, contested
matter or motion brought by Bank or any other peyselating to Borrower or any other person ortgnti

6.2 Obligations Joint and Several. Should more than one person or entity signifuite as a Borrower, the obligations of €
such Borrower shall be joint and several.




6.3 Governing Law. This Note shall be governed by and construextaordance with the laws of the State of Califarni
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hasated this Note as of the date first written above.
Willdan Group, Inc.

By:  /s/ Kimberly Gant

Kimberly Gant
Title: Chief Financial Office
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Exhibit 10.9

SECURITIESACCOUNT
WELLS FARGO SECURITY AGREEMENT

1. GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST. Faluable consideration, the undersigned Willdan @rdoic., or any of them ("Debtor"),
hereby grants and transfers to WELLS FARGO BANK, TNMANAL ASSOCIATION ("Bank™) a security interest {@a) Debtor's account no.
13041132whether held in Debtor's name or as a Bank codhtecount for the benefit of Debtor), any subeant thereunder or
consolidated therewith, and all replacements ostwitions therefor, including any account resgtirom a renumbering or other
administrative re-identification thereof (colleatly, the "Securities Account") maintained witfells Fargo Institutional Securities, LLC
("Intermediary™), (b) all financial assets creditedhe Securities Account, (c) all security eptitlents with respect to the financial assets
credited to the Securities Account, and (d) anyalhdther investment property or assets maintaore@corded in the Securities Account
(with all the foregoing defined as "Collateral'ggether with whatever is receivable or receivedmduey of the Collateral or proceeds thereof
are sold, collected, exchanged or otherwise dighofevhether such disposition is voluntary or ilwtdary, including without limitation,

(i) all rights to payment, including returned premis, with respect to any insurance relating toafrthe foregoing, (i) all rights to payment
with respect to any claim or cause of action afifiecor relating to any of the foregoing, and (&) stock rights, rights to subscribe, stock
splits, liquidating dividends, cash dividends, demds paid in stock, new securities or other ptypefrany kind which Debtor is or may
hereafter be entitled to receive on account ofseoyrities pledged hereunder, Including withoutthition, stock received by Debtor due to
stock splits or dividends paid in stock or sumsipgion or in respect of any securities pledgedurater upon the liquidation or dissolution
the issuer thereof (hereinafter called "Proceeds¢ept as otherwise expressly permitted hereitherevent Debtor receives any such
Proceeds, Debtor will hold the same in trust ordlffadf and for the benefit of Bank and will immetdily deliver all such Proceeds to Bank in
the exact form received, with the endorsement diftBreif necessary and/or appropriate undated gtogkers duly executed in blank, to be
held by Bank as part of the Collateral, subjedltéerms hereof. As used herein, the terms "sicaritittement,” "financial asset" and
"investment property" shall have the respectivemregs set forth in the California Uniform Commeti€ode.

2. OBLIGATIONS SECURED. The obligats secured hereby are the payment and perfornedin@d all present and future
Indebtedness of Debtor to Bank; (b) all obligatioh®ebtor and rights of Bank under this Agreemand (c) all present and future
obligations of Debtor to Bank of other kinds. Therd/"Indebtedness” is used herein in its most cefmmsive sense and includes any and all
advances, debts, obligations and liabilities of Dekor any of them, heretofore, now or hereaftade incurred or created, whether voluntary
or involuntary and however arising, whether duaatrdue, absolute or contingent, liquidated orguitiated, determined or undetermined,
including under any swap, derivative, foreign exae hedge, deposit, treasury management or athéarstransaction or arrangement, and
whether Debtor may be liable individually or jontbr whether recovery upon such Indebtedness raayr bereafter becomes unenforceable.

3. TERMINATION. This Agreement wikrminate upon the performance of all obligatiohBebtor to Bank, including without
limitation, the payment of all Indebtedness of @elib Bank, and the termination of all commitmerit8ank to extend credit to Debtor,
existing at the time Bank receives written notiaaf Debtor of the termination of this Agreement.

4. OBLIGATIONS OF BANK. Bank has nbligation to make any loans hereunder. Any momegived by Bank in respect of the
Collateral may be deposited, at Bank's option, &ntmn-interest bearing account over which Deljtafl iave no control, and the same shall,
for all




purposes, be deemed Collateral hereunder. Bankiehad no duty to take any steps necessary to mefiee rights of Debtor against prior
parties, or to initiate any action to protect agathe possibility of a decline in the market vafifiehe Collateral or Proceeds. Bank shall nc
obligated to take any action with respect to th#a@eral or Proceeds requested by Debtor unleds eguest is made in writing and Bank
determines, in its sole discretion, that the retgpeeaction would not unreasonably jeopardize theevaf the Collateral and Proceeds as
security for the Indebtedness.

4. INTERMEDIARY'S REPRESENTATIONS AND ARRANTIES. Intermediary represents and warrémtSecured Party that:
4.1 The Securities Account is maintaingith Intermediary solely in Customer's name.

4.2 Intermediary has no knowledge of elaym to, security interest in or lien upon anytted Collateral, except: (a) the security
interests in favor of Secured Party; and (b) Inttiary's liens securing fees and charges, or palyfoeapen trade commitments, as
described in the last paragraph of this Section.

4.3 Any claim to, security interest inli@n upon any of the Collateral which Intermediagw has or at any time hereafter
acquires shall be junior and subordinate to tharigdnterests of Secured Party in the Collategakept for Intermediary's liens
securing: (a) fees and charges owed by Custombrrespect to the operation of the Securities Actaamd (b) payment owed to
Intermediary for open trade commitments for purelsdaa and for the Securities Account.

5. AGREEMENTS OF INTERMEDIARY AND CUSTMER. Intermediary and Customer agree that:

5.1 Intermediary shall flag its books;amls and systems to reflect Secured Party's $gdunterests in the Collateral, and shall
provide notice thereof to any party making inquas/to Customer's accounts with Intermediary to wbomvhich Intermediary is
legally required or permitted to provide informatio

5.2 Intermediary shall send copies oftdtements relating to the Securities Account kaneously to Customer and Secured
Party.

5.3 Intermediary shall promptly notifycseed Party if any other party asserts any clainségurity interest in or lien upon any
of the Collateral, and Intermediary shall not efméo any control, custodial or other similar agrnemt with any other party that would
create or acknowledge the existence of any sudr athim, security interest or lien.

5.4 Without Secured Party's prior writtemsent, Intermediary and Customer shall not anoemaodify the Account
Agreement, other than: (a) amendments to reflatihary and reasonable changes in Intermediaryssded charges for handling the
Securities Account; and (b) operational changemied by Intermediary as long as they do not ater of Secured Party's rights
hereunder.

5.5 Neither Intermediary nor Customeridleaminate the Account Agreement without givin@ @ays' prior written notice to
Secured Party.

6. AGREEMENT OF CUSTOMER. Customgrees to indemnify and hold harmless Intermediigsyofficers, directors, employees
and agents, against claims, liabilities or expefisetuding reasonable attorneys' fees) arisingoblmtermediary's compliance with any
instructions from Secured Party with respect toSkeurities Account, except if such claims, lidl@ or expenses are caused by
Intermediary's negligence or willful misconduct.




7. MISCELLANEOUS.
7.1 This Agreement shall not create dpligation or duty of Intermediary except as exphesst forth herein.

7.2 As to the matters specifically thejeat of this Agreement, in the event of any canftietween this Agreement and the
Account Agreement or any other agreement betweennhediary and Customer, the terms of this Agredrsieall control.

7.3 All notices, requests and demandglwhny party is required or may desire to givertp a@ther party under any provision of
this Agreement must be in writing (unless othervgigecifically provided) and delivered to each paittyhe address or facsimile
number set forth below its signature, or to sudteptaddress or facsimile number as any party maigdate by written notice to all
other parties. Each such notice, request and destaidbe deemed given or made as follows: (agnt &y hand delivery, upon
delivery; (b) If sent by facsimile, security, ingtnent or other document subject to this AgreeméBok's rights hereunder; (c) to
collect by legal proceedings or otherwise all dérids, interest, principal or other sums now or &féee payable upon or on account of
the Collateral or Proceeds; (d) to enter into axtgresion, modification, reorganization, deposityges or consolidation agreement, or
any other agreement relating to or affecting théa@eral or Proceeds, and in connection therevattigposit or surrender control of
Collateral and Proceeds, to accept other properxchange for the Collateral and Proceeds, add sind perform such acts and
things as Bank may deem proper, with any moneyapegrty received in exchange for the CollaterdPmceeds, at Bank's option, to
be applied to the Indebtedness or held by Bankmtihile Agreement; (e) to make any compromise dteseent Bank deems desirable
or proper in respect of the Collateral and Proce@ito insure, process and preserve the Collatard Proceeds; (g) to exercise all
rights, powers and remedies which Debtor would hbuéfor this Agreement, with respect to all Ctalal and Proceeds subject
hereto; and (h) to do all acts and things and eeesilidocuments in the name of Debtor or otherndsemed by Bank as necessary,
proper and convenient in connection with the prest@n, perfection or enforcement of its rightséherder. To effect the purposes of
this Agreement or otherwise upon instructions obog or any of them, Bank may cause any Collatndlor Proceeds to be
transferred to Bank's name or the name of Bankisimee. If an Event of Default has occurred andigtiouing, any or all Collateral
and/or Proceeds consisting of securities may histexgd, without notice, in the name of Bank omnitsninee, and thereafter Bank or
its nominee may exercise, without notice, all vgtand corporate rights at any meeting of the stwddels of the issuer thereof, any
and all rights of conversion, exchange or subsoripor any other rights, privileges or optionstpating to such Collateral and/or
Proceeds, all as if it were the absolute ownertbfeiThe foregoing shall include, without limitatiache right of Bank or its nominee
exchange, at its discretion, any and all Collateral/or Proceeds upon the merger, consolidationga@ization, recapitalization or
other readjustment of the issuer thereof, or upereercise by the issuer thereof or Bank of agiytyiprivilege or option pertaining to
any shares of the Collateral and/or Proceeds,randrinection therewith, the right to deposit anlivdeany and all of the Collateral
and/or Proceeds with any committee, depositormstex agent, registrar or other designated agepoy such terms and conditions as
Bank may determine. All of the foregoing rightsivijeges or options may be exercised without ligpibn the part of Bank or its
nominee except to account for property actuallgiesd by Bank. Bank shall have no duty to exeraisg of the foregoing, or any
other rights, privileges or options with respecthe Collateral or Proceeds and shall not be resplnfor any failure to do so or delay
in so doing.

8. PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS, TAXES, CHARGEBIENS AND ASSESSMENTS. Debtor agrees to pajgmto delinquency, all
insurance premiums, taxes, charges, liens andsassass against the Collateral and Proceeds, amithpdailure of Debtor to do so, Bank at
its option may




pay any of them and shall be the sole judge ofapality or validity thereof and the amount necegsa discharge the same. Any such
payments made by Bank shall be obligations of Defot®ank, due and payable immediately upon demaggther with interest at a rate
determined in accordance with the provisions of tgreement, and shall be secured by the Collaa@@Proceeds, subject to all terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

9. EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The occurrerafeany of the following shall constitute an "EvafitDefault" under this Agreement:
(a) any default in the payment or performance gfalbligation, or any defined event of default, un@eany contract or instrument
evidencing any Indebtedness, (ii) any other agre¢imetween Debtor and Bank, including without lettibn any loan agreement, relating to
or executed in connection with any Indebtedneséjipany control, custodial or other similar agreent in effect among Bank, Debtor and
Intermediary relating to the Collateral; (b) anpnesentation or warranty made by Debtor hereinl ghhale to be incorrect, false or misleac
in any material respect when made; (c) Debtor ghélto observe or perform any obligation or agneat contained herein; (d) any
impairment of the rights of Bank in any CollatesalProceeds or any attachment or like levy on aopgrty of Debtor; and (e) Bank, in good
faith, believes any or all of the Collateral andfwoceeds to be in danger of misuse, dissipatmmpungling, loss, theft, damage or
destruction, or otherwise in jeopardy or unsatisfigcin character or value.

10. REMEDIES. Upon the occurrencamy Event of Default, Bank shall have the rightiézlare immediately due and payable all
or any Indebtedness secured hereby and to termangteommitments to make loans or otherwise exteedit to Debtor. Bank shall have all
other rights, powers, privileges and remedies gdhtd a secured party upon default under the GalddJniform Commerical Code or
otherwise provided by law, including without lintian, the right (a) to contact all persons obligétie Debtor on any Collateral or Proceeds
and to instruct such persons to deliver all Cotdtand/or Proceeds directly to Bank, and (b) th kease, license or otherwise dispose of any
or all Collateral. All rights, powers, privilegeadremedies of Bank shall be cumulative. No deiaijyre or discontinuance of Bank in
exercising any right, power, privilege or remedyeumder shall affect or operate as a waiver of sigth, power, privilege or remedy; nor
shall any single or partial exercise of any sughtiipower, privilege or remedy preclude, waivethrerwise affect any other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other rigtnver, privilege or remedy. Any waiver, permiinsent or approval of any kind by Bank of
any default hereunder, or any such waiver of amyipions or conditions hereof, must be in writimglashall be effective only to the extent
forth in writing. It is agreed that public or prieasales or other dispositions, for cash or onitreda wholesaler or retailer or investor, ormuse
of property of the types subject to this Agreemenpublic auctions, are all commercially reasoaaihce differences in the prices generally
realized in the different kinds of dispositions ardinarily offset by the differences in the coatal credit risks of such dispositions.

While an Event of Default exists: (a) Debudll not dispose of any Collateral or Proceedsept on terms approved by Bank; (b) Bank
may appropriate the Collateral and apply all Prdsgeward repayment of the Indebtedness in suctr afthpplication as Bank may from
time to time elect; (c) Bank may take any actiothwespect to the Collateral contemplated by amgrof custodial or other similar
agreement then in effect among Bank, Debtor aretrimtdiary; and (d) at Bank's request, Debtor vgleanble and deliver all books and
records pertaining to the Collateral or Proceed3ank at a reasonably convenient place designat@&hhk. For any Collateral or Proceeds
consisting of securities, Bank shall have no obilagrato delay a disposition of any portion therémfthe period of time necessary to permit
the issuer thereof to register such securitiep@inic sale under any applicable state or Fedaval éven if the issuer thereof would agree to
do so. Debtor further agrees that Bank shall haveltigation to process or prepare any Collatayakéle or other disposition.
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11. DISPOSITION OF COLLATERAL AND PROCEEDS; TRANSREOF INDEBTEDNESS. In disposing of Collateratdunder
Bank may disclaim all warranties of title, possessiquiet enjoyment and the like. Any proceedsnyf disposition of any Collateral or
Proceeds, or any part thereof, may be applied InkBathe payment of expenses incurred by Banlommection with the foregoing,
including reasonable attorneys' fees, and the balahsuch proceeds may be applied by Bank towergayment of the Indebtedness in such
order of application as Bank may from time to tiebect. Upon the transfer of all or any part of thedebtedness, Bank may transfer all or any
part of the Collateral or Proceeds and shall blg flischarged thereafter from all liability and pessibility with respect to any of the
foregoing so transferred, and the transferee bleallested with all rights and powers of Bank hedeunvith respect to any of the foregoing so
transferred; but with respect to any CollateraPorceeds not so transferred Bank shall retaingdits, powers, privileges and remedies herein
given.

12. STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS. Until bindebtedness shall have been paid in full andathmitments by Bank to extend credit
to Debtor have been terminated, the power of satgleer disposition and all other rights, powersyifeges and remedies granted to Bank
hereunder shall continue to exist and may be eseudby Bank at any time and from time to time pezgive of the fact that the Indebtedness
or any part thereof may have become barred by tmtyts of limitations, or that the personal lidyilof Debtor may have ceased, unless such
liability shall have ceased due to the paymenulhdf all Indebtedness secured hereunder.

13. MISCELLANEOUS. When there is mdinan one Debtor named herein: (a) the word "Déktmall mean all or any one or more
of them as the context requires; (b) the obligatioheach Debtor hereunder are joint and sevemdl{@) until all Indebtedness shall have k
paid in full, no Debtor shall have any right of sodpation or contribution, and each Debtor herebivesany benefit of or right to participate
in any of the Collateral or Proceeds or any otleeusty now or hereafter held by Bank. Debtor hgnetives any right to require Bank to
(i) proceed against Debtor or any other person@rshal assets or proceed against or exhausteanyity from Debtor or any other person,
(iii) perform any obligation of Debtor with respeotany Collateral or Proceeds, and (d) make aaggtment or demand, or give any notice
of nonpayment or nonperformance, protest, notigeratest or notice of dishonor hereunder or in eation with any Collateral or Proceeds.
Debtor further waives any right to direct the apgtion of payments or security for any Indebtedméd3ebtor or indebtedness of customers
of Debtor.

14. NOTICES. All notices, requestsl@emands required under this Agreement must beiiimng, addressed to Bank at the address
specified in any other loan documents enteredbetaveen Debtor and Bank and to Debtor at the addreiss chief executive office (or
principal residence, if applicable) specified belomto such other address as any party may desidpyawritten notice to each other party, .
shall be deemed to have been given or made asvioll@) if personally delivered, upon delivery; {b3ent by mail, upon the earlier of the
date of receipt or 3 days after deposit in the Un&il, first class and postage prepaid; and (sgift by telecopy, upon receipt.

15. COSTS, EXPENSES AND ATTORNEYS' FEE®ebtor shall pay to Bank immediately upon dedtne full amount of all
payments, advances, charges, costs and experdadijrig reasonable attorneys' fees (to includeideitsounsel fees and all allocated cost
Bank's in-house counsel), expended or incurreddmkBn connection with (a) the perfection and prestion of the Collateral or Bank's
interest therein, and (b) the realization, enforeetrand exercise of any right, power, privilegeesnedy conferred by this Agreement,
whether incurred at the trial or appellate levelan arbitration proceeding or otherwise, and idicig any of the foregoing incurred in
connection with any bankruptcy proceeding (inclgdivithout limitation, any adversary proceeding, tested matter or motion brought by
Bank or any other person) relating to Debtor aaiy way affecting any of the Collateral or Banliliey to exercise any of its rights or
remedies with respect thereto. All of the foregashgll be paid by Debtor with interest from theedat demand until paid
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in full at a rate per annum equal to the greatdenfpercent (10%) or Bank's Prime Rate in effemnftime to time.

16. SUCCESSORS; ASSIGNS; AMENDMENTThis Agreement shall be binding upon and inurdlienefit of the heirs,
executors, administrators, legal representatives;essors and assigns of the parties, and may &edsn or modified only in writing signed
by Bank and Debtor.

17. OBLIGATIONS OF MARRIED PERSONSAnNy married person who signs this Agreement as @disreby expressly agrees
that recourse may be had against his or her sepamaperty for all his or her Indebtedness to Bsedured by the Collateral and Proceeds
under this Agreement.

18. SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS. Ihg provision of this Agreement shall be held tgobehibited by or invalid under
applicable law, such provision shall be ineffectbrdy to the extent of such prohibition or invatidiwithout invalidating the remainder of
such provision or any remaining provisions of thggeement.

19. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreementaditbe governed by and construed in accordancetivitiaws of the State of California.

20. ADDENDUM. Additional terms andrditions relating to the Securities Account arefegh in an Addendum attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference.

Debtor warrants that Debtor is an orgamrategistered under the laws of Delaware.

Debtor warrants that its chief executivioef (or principal residence, if applicable) isdbed at the following addres2401 East Katella
Avenue, Suite 300, Anaheim, CA 92806

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has beely executed as dflarch 30, 2009.
Willdan Group, Inc.

By:  /s/ Kimberly Gant

Kimberly Gant
Title: Chief Financial Office




ADDENDUM TO SECURITY AGREEMENT: SECURITIES ACCOUNT

THIS ADDENDUM is attached to and made & péthat certain Security Agreement: Securitiegsdunt executed by WILLDAN
GROUP, INC. ("Debtor") in favor of WELLS FARGO BANKNATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Bank"), dated as of Marc30, 2009 (the
"Agreement").

The following provisions are hereby incaigted into the Agreement:

1. Securities Account Activity. So long as no Event of Default exists, Deldomny party authorized by Debtor to act with
respect to the Securities Account, may (a) receasaments of interest and/or cash dividends earndthancial assets maintained in
the Securities Account, and (b) trade financiaétsmaintained in the Securities Account. WithoahBs prior written consent, exce
as permitted by the preceding sentence, neithetdDebr any party other than Bank may withdrawemreive any distribution of any
Collateral from the Securities Account. The Collat&/alue of the Securities Account shall at ati¢s be equal to or greater than
$5,000,000.00. In the event that the CollateraLi¢afor any reason and at any time, is less thametuired amount, Debtor shall
promptly make a principal reduction on the Indeht=s$ or deposit additional assets of a naturdaetisy to Bank into the Securities
Account, in either case in amounts or with valugficgent to achieve the required Collateral Value.

2. 'Collateral Value" means the percentage set forth below of the l@féne face or market value, or the lower of theef or
redemption value, as appropriate, for each typewefstment property held in the Securities Accatrthe time of computation, with
such value and the classification of any particulgestment property in all instances determined®byk in its sole discretion, and
excluding from such computation (a) all WF Seceastand Collective Investment Funds, (b) any staith amarket value of $10.00
less, and (c) all investment property from an issuBank determines such issuer to be ineligible.

Type of Investment Property Percentagt
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10C%

U.S. Government Bills, Notes and Bonds and U..
Government Sponsored Agency Securities:

(a) with maturities less than or equal to 5 ye 90%
(b) with maturities greater than 5 years but less tir

equal to 10 year 85%
(c) with maturities greater than 10 ye: 80%

Corporate and Municipal Bonds and Notes and

Brokered CDs:
(a) rated AAA/Aaa, AA/Aa or SP-1 by a nationally

recognized rating agency with maturities less t

or equal to 5 yeal 85%
(b) rated AAA/Aaa, AA/Aa or SP-1 by a nationally

recognized rating agency with maturities great

than 5 years but less than or equal to 10 y 80%
(c) rated AAA/Aaa, AA/Aa or SP-1 by a nationally

recognized rating agency with maturities great

than 10 year 75%
(d) rated A, Baa, BBB or SP-2 by a nationally

recognized rating agency with maturities less t

or equal to 5 yeal 75%
(e) rated A, Baa, BBB or SP-2 by a nationally

recognized rating agency with maturities great

than 5 years but less than or equal to 10 y 70%
() rated A, Baa, BBB or SP-2 by a nationally

recognized rating agency with maturities great

than 10 year 65%
(g) Brokered CDs < $100,000 that are fully FDIC
insured 90%

Commercial Paper (for split ratings, apply the lowe
advance rate):
(a) rated Al and P1 by a nationally recognized ratii

agency 85%
(b) rated Al or P1 by a nationally recognized rating
agency 80%




Type of Investment Property Percentag
(c) rated A2 or P2 by a nationally recognized ra

agency 70%
Common and Preferred Stock:
(@) traded on the New York Stock Exchar 75%

(b) traded on NASDAQ, the American Stock
Exchange or a regional exchan
(i) with a market capitalization greater that
$7.5Band
**  rated A+, A or A- by a nationally
recognized rating agen 75%
** rated B+ by a nationally recognized
rating agenc 60%
** rated B, B- or C by a nationally
recognized rating agen 50%
(i) with a market capitalization greater that
$1B but less than or equal to $7.and
**  rated A+, A or A- by a nationally

recognized rating agen 60%
** rated B+ by a nationally recognized

rating agenc 50%
** rated B, B- or C by a nationally

recognized rating agen 40%

(iii) with a market capitalization greater thatr
equal to $500MM but less than $:and
rated A+, A or A- by a nationally

recognized rating agen 50%
** rated B+ by a nationally recognized
rating agenc 40%
** rated B, B- or C by a nationally
recognized rating agen 30%
Mutual Funds:
(@) Listed Money Marke 95%
(b) Short Term Taxable or Tax Exempt Bor 90%
(c) Intermediate Term Taxable or Tax Exempt
Bonds 85%
(d) General Taxable Bonc 80%
(e) Municipal Bonds, Single State Bonds or Lon
Term Corporate Taxable Bon 75%
(f) Balanced Stock and Bond Funds (includes
flexible portfolio) 75%
(o) Domestic Large Cap Growth, Value and Cot
Stock 70%
(h) Domestic Equity Income Stoc 70%
() Domestic Mortgage Taxable Bon 70%
(i) Domestic Multi Cap Growth, Value and Core
Stock 60%
(k) Domestic Mid Cap Growth, Value and Core
Stock 60%
() Domestic Small Cap Growth, Value and Cor
Stock 50%
(m) Domestic Specialty Equity Stox 50%
(n) Sector, Global, International, High Yield
Taxable and Tax Exempt Stocks and Bo 50%
(o) Listed NASDAQ Mutual Fund 50%

3. Exclusion from Collateral. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrding terms "Collateral" and "Proceeds" do not
Include, and Bank disclaims a security interestliWWF Securities and Collective Investment Fund or hereafter maintained in the
Securities Account.

4. 'Collective Investment Fundsneans collective investment funds as describedli€FR 9.18 and includes, without
limitation, common trust funds maintained by Baok the exclusive use of its fiduciary clients.

5.  'WF Securitie$ means stock, securities or obligations of Welisge & Company or of any affiliate thereof (as thiem
affiliate is defined in Section 23A of the Feddraserve Act (12 USC 371(c), as amended from tintienie).
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Addendum has berecuted as of the same date as the Agreement.

WILLDAN GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ Kimberly Gant

Kimberly Gant
Title: Chief Financial Office!

WELLS FARGO BANK,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ Randall Repp

Randall Repj
Vice Presiden
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WILLDAN GROUP, INC.

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Name of Entity

NogkrowdpE

Willdan Engineerin
Willdan Geotechnic:i
Willdan Energy Solutior
Willdan Resource Solutiol
Public Agency Resourc
Willdan Financial Service
Willdan Homeland Solutior

Jurisdiction
of Organization

Ownership Interest

California
California
California
California
California
California
California

100% Willdan Group, In
100% Willdan Group, In
100% Willdan Group, Ini
100% Willdan Group, In
100% Willdan Group, In
100% Willdan Group, In
100% Willdan Group, In

Exhibit 21.1
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Willdan Group, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by refeeecincthe registration statements (No. 333-13912/Nm 333-152951) on Forms S-8 of
Willdan Group, Inc. of our report dated March 3@09, with respect to the consolidated balance steawilldan Group, Inc. as of January
2009 and December 28, 2007, and the related cdasetl statements of operations, redeemable comiock and stockholders' equity, and
cash flows for each of the fiscal years in thedhrear period ended January 2, 2009, which reportasan the January 2, 2009 annual re
on Form 10-K of Willdan Group, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 31, 200¢
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Exhibit 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE R
I, Thomas D. Brisbin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K\éidan Group, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitate a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Hd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forringistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including itnsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisanternal control over financial reporting tlegcurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahreport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditonsl éhe audit committee of the registrant's boardictors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesssethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéein the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: April 2, 200¢

By: /s/ THOMAS D. BRISBIN

Thomas D. Brisbin
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICE R
I, Kimberly D. Gant, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K\didan Group, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitate a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Hd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forringistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including itnsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisanternal control over financial reporting tlegcurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahreport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl ghe audit committee of the registrant's boardictors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesssethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéein the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: April 2, 200¢

By: /s/ KIMBERLY D. GANT

Kimberly D. Gant
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presidi
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxl&ct of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report onfRdk0-K of Willdan Group, Inc. (the "Company") fdre annual period ended January 2,
2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the "Report"), ThomaBiishin, as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Kimberly Dar, as Chief Financial Officer and Senior VicesdRtent of the Company, each hereby
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopteduant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act o22@fat, to the best of his or her
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations
of the Company.

By: /s THOMAS D. BRISBIN

Thomas D. Brisbin
President and Chief Executive Offic
April 2, 2009

By: /s/ KIMBERLY D. GANT

Kimberly D. Gant
Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President
April 2, 2009

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to § 906 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the aktequirec
by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed Eilethe Company for purposes of § 18 of the Seesriixchange Act of 1934, as
amended. A signed original of this written statetmequired by 8§ 906 has been provided to the Compad will be retained by the Compe
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon request.
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